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Chairman’s Statement

ETREHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of China
Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “reporting period” or the “Year”).

RESULTS

For the reporting period, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB3,449.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately 17.8% compared with the year
ended 31 December 2021. The gross profit for the reporting
period was approximately RMB957.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately 17.5% compared with the year
ended 31 December 2021. The profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the reporting period amounted
to approximately RMB42.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 75.2% compared with the year ended 31
December 2021. Basic earnings per share was RMB0.83
cents (2021: RMB3.34 cents). The contracted property sales
of the Group for the reporting period was approximately
RMB2,277.0 million with contracted gross floor area
("GFA") of approximately 209,343 square meters (“sq.
m.”), representing a decrease of approximately 58.4% in
contracted sales and approximately 57.0% in contracted GFA
in comparison with the year ended 31 December 2021.

REVIEW OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

In year 2022, the real estate industry faced unprecedented
challenges due to repeated epidemics in many places,
overlapping with the expected decline in residents’ income
and the weakened release of homebuyer demand. According
to the data from the National Bureau of Statistics, from
January to December 2022, the national sales area of
commercial properties was approximately 1,358.37 million
sq.m., decreased by approximately 24.3% compared with
the same period last year; the sales amount of commercial
properties was approximately RMB133.38 billion, decreased
by approximately 26.7% compared with the same period last
year. A new low since 2017.

Under the impact of the epidemic across the country and the
continuous downturn of the real estate market, the Group
adhered to the development keynote of seeking progress in
a stable manner, ensuring the development and delivery of
projects, proper cash flow management and consolidation of
strategic layout advantages to form a virtuous cycle.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2023, China’s economic work will
continue to focus on “stability”, concentrating on “stabilizing
growth, employment and price” and vigorously maintaining
healthy and stable economic development. In respect of
the real estate market, it is expected that, with the policy
keynote of keeping land costs, housing prices and market
expectations stable and the principle of “housing is for
living, not for speculation”, local governments will continue
to introduce various policies and measures to support real
estate development, with the aim of achieving virtuous circle
and healthy development of the industry. The management
believes that the Group is well-poised for the challenges
ahead and is determined to strive for higher returns.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valued
customers, suppliers and business associates for their
invaluable contributions and support. | also want to express
my gratitude to our management team and all staff of the
Group for their hard work during the Year. Last but not least,
I am most grateful to our shareholders for their continuous
support and confidence.

Guo Jiadi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENR®RR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total revenue for the reporting period was
approximately RMB3,449.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately 17.8% as compared to
approximately RMB2,927.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Gross profit for the reporting period was approximately
RMB957 million, representing an increase of
approximately 17.5% as compared to approximately
RMB814.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Profit for the reporting period was approximately
RMB14.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 93.0% as compared to approximately
RMB205.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Profit attributable to owners for the reporting period
was approximately RMB42.1 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 75.2% as compared to
approximately RMB169.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Basic earnings per share was RMB0.83 cents (2021:
RMB3.34 cents).

Contracted sales amount of the Group for the reporting
period amounted to approximately RMB2,277.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 58.4% as
compared to approximately RMB5,473.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Contracted GFA was approximately 209,343 sqg.m.
for the reporting period, representing a decrease of
approximately 57.0% as compared to approximately
487,388 sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®R DN

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the reporting period (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group is principally engaged in property development,
and holding of property for investment and rental purpose.

Property development

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 18 property projects
under development which are situated in different cities
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Key cities
include Shanghai, Fuzhou, Xian, Baoji and Hangzhou. The
Group primarily focuses on the development of residential
properties, as well as residential and commercial complex
properties, product types including apartments, offices, retail
shops, villas, etc.

Contracted property sales

During the reporting period, the Group achieved contracted
sales of approximately RMB2,277.0 million with contracted
GFA of approximately 209,343 sq.m., representing a
decrease of approximately 58.4% in contracted sales and
approximately 57.0% in contracted GFA in comparison
with the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease
in contracted sales is mainly influenced by the COVID-19
epidemic in 2022.
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The table below illustrates the contracted sales (stated before
the deduction of applicable taxes) achieved by the Group for
the reporting period:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENW®RR DN

Percentage of

TRITAGEREHAZANHER
(FBR @A TIERAD)

Average price total
Contracted Contracted  of contracted contracted Group
Property projects Type sales amount sales area sales  sales amount interest
BHHE BHRHE
MWHEEE i BRHEE ANHEER THEE HA¥EEIHM KAREER
RMB’000 (sq.m.) RMB/sq.m. % %
ARY
ANREF T (FHK) FI A % %
Shanghai
)<}
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 517,853 14,955 33,527 22.7 100
“HERE GES
Zhejiang Province
WL
Sandi Yasong Meizhu Residential 382,301 25,747 14,545 16.8 100
SHEEEL FE
Shaanxi Province
PR &
Sandi Bahe Yihao Residential 234,220 13,682 17,119 10.3 70
“HBASH T
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commercial 207,617 26,698 1177 9.1 100
=t R TE/H%
Sandi Jinyu Bowan Residential/Commercial 157,785 30,934 5,101 6.9 51
ZleHnE FE/TWE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENR®RR DN

Percentage of

Average price tota
Contracted Contracted  of contracted contracted Group
Property projects Type sales amount sales area sales  sales amount interest
BRHE BHHE
NEER - Fid RNHER SHHEEHR FHERE #ABAIL XEEER
RMB'000 (sq.m.) RMBIsq.m. % %
ANEES
ANEETT (FHAK) FK % %

Fujian Province

BRE

Sandi Yungitai Residential 225,197 22,318 10,081 9.9 51

—BEER FE

Sandi Jinyu Yunjing Residential 186,284 13,678 13,619 8.2 100

“HeHER FE

Others Residential/Commercial 365,710 61,331 5,634 16.1

At /%

Total 2,276,967 209,343 10,587 100

st

Attributable to the Group 2,029,392 174,037

KBRS

Notes: Hat -

(@)  Contracted sales and the calculation of average selling price (@) AXHELERTHEBNHEEER
are based on the sales revenue before the deduction of KBRS /L (E R B E M hn 18
business/value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes. THHE N BEEE o

(b) Contracted sales and GFA attributable to the car parking by BEBEREEMMALNEERERER

spaces are excluded in the contracted GFA and average selling
price calculation.
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Property under development

The table below summarises the major property development

Management Discussion and Analysis

projects of the Group as at 31 December 2022:

BEEENW®RR DN
BREYHE
FRBBEAEER —F - %+ A

—t—HBHCxEYEERER

Completed
BRI
Expected Saleable GFA Planned GFA
completion delivered/ GFA available  GFA under for future Group's
Property projects dates Site area pre-sold for sale development development interest
BRft/
Bst BETHE AHHE BRER RRBEY S 1.
N=ER ZIAH tHER AREEE ARLER AREER 4REER B
sg.m. sq.m. sq.m. 5g.m. sq.m. %
FHK FIK FIK FHK FIK %
Shaanxi Province
BREE
Sandi Century New City 2023 169,923 1,084,484 91,750 81,268 - 100
St e k- St
Sandi Jinyu Gaoxin 2023 65,157 94,563 2,285 105,114 - 100
“adHEH “E-CE
Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan - Xian Sand 2022 124,304 332,779 75,848 - - 100
AR = @IEEEA it Sl
Sandi Yunding Fengdan 2024 52,870 47,848 - 87,832 - 100
—HEREM b o2
Sandi Bahe Yihao 2024 77,018 - - 235,433 - 70
“HEBEIEH b o 12
Sandi Jinyu Bowan 2023 59,789 - - 99,573 - 51
SHeHNE k- St
Sandi Jinyunfu 2023 40,592 - - 77,331 - 51
CHRER k- St
Fujian Province
BEE
Sandi Jiangshan Waterfront 2023 310,176 10,525 - 215,010 40,086 100
Z#ITIKE —RCZE
Sandi Xishanyuan 2024 177,010 - - 96,449 - 100
AN b 12
Sandi Yungu Fengdan 2022 57,813 - - 115,772 - 51
SHEARR it S
Sandi Fengdan Yazhu 2023 58,169 6,836 62,316 67,664 - 100
SRS it St
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Management Discussion and Analysis

=5 = A yaN
EEENWER DN
Completed
BxI
Expected Saleable GFA Planned GFA
completion delivered/ GFA available ~ GFA under  for future Group's
Property projects dates Site area pre-sold for sale development development interest
BRf/
Rt RETHE AHLE BRT ARBREY ARE
NxER ZIAH IHER AREAR AREER ABEER AREER i
sg.m. sq.m. sq.m. sg.m. sq.m. %
FoK FuK FoK FuK FIK %
Sandi Yasong Fengdan Garden 2023 38,539 - - 39,825 - 100
ZEREAATLE k- St
Sandi Yungitai 2023 60,928 - - 96,879 - 51
“HEER “BC=F
Sandi Jinyu Yunjing 2024 29,332 - - 67,193 - 100
—HEHER S 1k:3
Sandi Jinyu Yunyue 2024 17,386 - - 15,383 - 100
“HeHEH It ol L2
Zhejiang Province
HIE
Sandi Fengdan Yaju 2023 27,491 - - 54,769 - 100
“ERAERE —F=
Sandi Yasong Meizhu 2024 37,252 - - 66,090 - 100
CHREES it 112
Shanghai
L
Sandi Manhattan 2024 104,251 150,713 62,724 120,280 - 100
BERE —EomE
Total 1,508,000 1,722,748 294,923 1,641,865 40,086
@zt
Attributable to the Group 1,377,525 1,722,748 294,923 1,380,353 40,086
AEEEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:

The table above includes properties for which the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s) but has
not obtained the requisite construction permits or the Group
has received the confirmation letter(s) on bidding of granting
land use rights but is in progress to obtain the land use
right certificate(s). The figures for “GFA available for sale”,
“GFA under development” and “Planned GFA for future
development” are based on figures provided in the relevant
governmental documents, such as the property ownership
certificates, the construction work planning permits, the
pre-sale permits, the construction land planning permits or the
land use rights certificate. The categories of information are
based on our internal records.

The figures of “Saleable GFA pre-sold” and “GFA available for
sale” include saleable GFA of car parking spaces; while figures
of “GFA under development” and “Planned GFA for future
development” also include non-saleable GFA such as ancillary
area.

“GFA available for sale”, “GFA under development” and
“Planned GFA for future development” are derived from the
Group's internal records and estimates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®R DN

The following section provides further details of major
ongoing projects of the Group.

Fujian Province

Sandi Yasong Fengdan Garden

N

\

Sandi Yasong Fengdan Garden (“Yasong Fengdan”) is a
residential project located in Gaoxin District, Nanyu County,
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province with a total site area of
approximately 38,539 sg.m.. Gaoxin District is the fourth
commercial district in Fuzhou City and Yasong Fengdan
is close to 117 County Road, Qishan Avenue and Gaoxin
Avenue, the central area of Gaoxin District.

Yasong Fengdan is designed as an intelligent community and
planned to be developed into 7 high-rise apartment buildings
and 11 low-rise apartment buildings with ancillary facilities,
including a supermarket. There is nearly 35% greening area
inside the community. The project has been launched for
pre-sales in September 2020. The contracted sales amount
of approximately RMB716.9 million was recorded during the
period from the pre-sales day up to 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Sandi Jinyu Yunjing

Sandi Jinyu Yunjing (“Jinyu Yunjing”) is the first project of
Jinyu series in Longyan City, Fujian Province. It is a privileged
quality residential area with a commercial complex project
located in Xinluo District, Longyan City with a total site area
of approximately 29,332 sq.m..

Jinyu Yunjing is situated at the intersection of Gongye Road
and Xiniu Road, linking to Longyan Bridge. It is in the vicinity
of Xinhuadu Plaza, Minxi Trading Center and Exhibition
Center.

Jinyu Yunjing is planned to be developed into 6 high-rise
apartment buildings with ancillary facilities, including a
kindergarten and a wet market. There is approximately 30%
to 40% greening area inside the community. The project has
been launched for pre-sales in February 2021. The contracted
sales amount of approximately RMB290.0 million was
recorded during the period from the pre-sales day up to 31
December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®R DN

Zhejiang Province
Sandi Yasong Meizhu

Sandi Fengdan Yaju (“Fengdan Yaju"”) is located in Qiantang
New District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province. Qiantang
New District is one of the high-speed developing areas in
Hangzhou City, which is a “Pudong New Area” of Hangzhou
planned by the government.

Fengdan Yaju is approximately 12 kilometers from Hangzhou
Xiaoshan Airport. Nearby Fengdan Yaju, there are two
metro lines under construction and it is planning to have a
high-speed railway station. In addition, there are national
wetland park, commercial areas, school and hospital nearby
Yasong Meizhu.

Yasong Meizhu is a privileged quality project of the
Group, and is planned to be developed into 11 high-rise
apartment buildings. The project has been launched for
pre-sales in November 2021. The contracted sales amount of
approximately RMB475.3 million were recorded during the
period from the pre-sales day up to 31 December 2022.

7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Shanghai

Sandi Manhattan

Shanghai Sandi Manhattan project (“Sandi Manhattan”) is
a major project of the Group in Shanghai. It is situated in
the prime location of Shanghai Songjiang District, Songjiang
New Town International Ecology Business District with a site
area of approximately 104,251 sg.m.. Sandi Manhattan is a
mixed-use development complex, including offices, shopping
malls and hotels. Hyatt Regency Shanghai Songjiang (“Hyatt
Regency”) and Shanghai Sandi Xintiandi (“Sandi Xintiandi"),
the projects of Sandi Manhattan, opened in July and
December 2021, respectively.

Hyatt Regency, an international 5-star hotel, belongs to
one of the major investment properties of the Group in
Sandi Manhattan. Hyatt Regency is located at the core area
of Songjiang New Town International Ecology Business
District and provides privileged services to guests. It provides
multi-functional spaces of approximately 1,900 sq.m. and
256 guestrooms, including 18 suites, with floor-to-ceiling
views of Wulong Lake, gardens or Ecology Business District
skyline.
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Sandi Xintiandi is also located at the core area of Songjiang
New Town International Ecology Business District. It is the
first ecology semi-open commercial complex project, with
approximately 170,000 sq.m. GFA. The contracted sales
amount of approximately RMB1,885.6 million were recorded
during the period from the pre-sales day up to 31 December
2022.

Land bank replenishment

The Group's strategy is to maintain the sufficiency of land
bank portfolio to support the Group’s own development
pipeline for the next few years. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had a quality land bank amounting to a total GFA
of approximately 1,879,000 sg.m., of which approximately
1,609,000 sq.m. were attributable to the owners of the
Company.

The table below summarises the landbank by location as at
31 December 2022:

N

\

= 3E e R 2K M [B) A5 {0 B AT H A B BR A
EFEROZOMIL AEERIRSE
e ErANAmESRSER £
BEMBELI170,000F 5K -HHAERR
—TE-oFF+ - A=Z+—HILEHE B
RIS ELHEERY ARKK1,885,600,000
IT o

THFEERT

AEBNEBEARFTIUIFELAEE
AR ERR I HEBERBEAE KN
T THFF-A=Z=+—H AEEHEAR
EEMIE41,879,000F F AR EE it
& H 491,609,000 B K 8 B K
NABER A o

TN S -—~—~4&#+—-_H=+—H
B[R B & b R

Total GFA Attributable GFA
Land bank by location Ry EE 20 LA E MEEEE REBHEZEER
('000 sqg.m.) (000 sq.m.)
(FFHK) (FFHK)
Fujian Province BES 831 718
Shaanxi Province =) 744 587
Shanghai Bapis) 183 183
Zhejiang Province TE 121 121
Total HET 1,879 1,609
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Property Investment

During the reporting period, the Group recognised rental
income and property management and related fee income
of approximately RMB152.4 million (2021: approximately
RMB159.9 million), which was mainly generated by two
furniture malls situated in Fuzhou and Baoji. The Group's
investment properties also include hotels, kindergarten,
commercial and office premises, all of which are all located
in the PRC and generated a stable income stream to the

Group.

Set out below are the major investment properties held by

the Group as at 31 December 2022:

EEEBNWR DM

MERE

HEHANAEERERASBRANR
MEEEBERBEBEEBRURALNARE
152,400,000 (ZE - —F : HARU
159,900,0007T) * £ Z E 4 B iz A& M
NEENMRIE®SG AEEKREY
ENBREMEUNATENEE  HRE -
BELRBFAZE TAAEBELEBTEKR
AR °

TERIFWAEBER_ZE-_—_F+=H
—t—HFBEZETEREYWE

Existing/ Approximate Group's
Location Intended use(s) GFA interest
uE BE/BREAE BHEREER N E Bk
5q.m. %
FIR %
Completed investment properties
BERIRENE
Fujian Province
EEE
Sandi Furniture Plaza, No. 173 Gongye Road, Yizhou Street, Shopping Mall 113,252 100%
_ Taijiang District, Fuzhou City
BNTAIEENEEIERIR=0F5EES B0HE%S
Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Square Zone B, Fuxia Road, Commercial/Hotel 48,713 100%
__Cangshan District, Fuzhou City o
RN A LR R R AR B B = Bl B B 5B R mE/BIE
Various blocks, Sandi Kaixuan Fengdan, No. 202 Minjiang Avenue, Commercial/Hotel 13,477 100%
__ Cangshan District, Fuzhou City
BMTALEETABE202% = aelEE S E FiE CEYALS
Shaanxi Province
BREE
Red Star Macalline, Block 196, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jin Tai District, Shopping Mall 63,643 100%
Baoji City
EUMS AR ERKRSEI1906EAEE B
Sandi\PIaza, Block 186, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jin Tai District, Baoji City Shopping Mall 63,125 100%
EEMLARERKSHI186E = BES EES
Ramada Hotel, Block No. 184, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jintai District, Hotel 15,181 100%
Baoji City
EEMA AR EERS I IS4 EZEAE BIE
Pesht Boutique, Block No. 25 No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jintai District, Hotel 12,248 100%
Baoji City
EEMEARERRSHR2SEMNBRBE BIE
Jinjiang Inn, Block No. 18, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jintai District, Hotel 7,094 100%
Baoji City
EEMEARERRSHITI18ER T Z2BE BIE
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Existing/ Approximate Group's
Location Intended use(s) GFA interest
L8 RE/BREAE BOEREEE FEBAH
5¢.m. %
FroK %
Shanghai
L&
Lot N5, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neighbourhood, Congjiang District Commercial/Hotel 61,434 100%
NI LB NS mE/BIE
Lot N11, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neighbourhood, Songjiang District Commercial 26,071 100%
IWIES LEENEINI R [k
Investment properties under construction
EERENE
Fujian Province
BEd
Tgng \Ko\u, Xi Nan Village, Ge Ling Town, Yongtai County, Fuzhou City Hotel 89,187 100%
BN ARGEEEEEAMNS BIE
Northwest of Huandao East Road and Jinsan Road, Hotel 39,850 100%
06 -11 Wutong Gaolin Area, Huli District, Xiamen City
EFmHERE-NMARSMAEREREES =RRIXARILE BIE
Shanghai
L&
Lot N6, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neighbourhood, Songjiang District Commercial/Hotel 117,629 100%
INTEA LEET N6 %/ BE
Zhejiang Province
Northwest of Weiliu Road and Jingwu Road, Qiantang New District, Residential 16,356 100%
_Hangzhou City \ }
MNTSEENEE A RELCARINOAELA Tz
Northeast of Jingsi Road and Changfeng Road, Qiantang New District, Residential 8,337 100%
_ Hangzhou City )
MNTmREFELNEERERERIXAOEILA F=E
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OUTLOOK

In year 2022, although the sales figures of the real estate
market have declined compared to last year, the state has
issued a number of important policies to give financing
support to real estate companies and provide credit support
to individual home buyers to drive the market sales recovery
since November 2022. Also, the comprehensive optimization
of preventive measures will further drive the economic
recovery in 2023. It is believed that the real estate market
will turn around and embark on a healthy development path
in 2023.

The Group will keep abreast of policy changes, grasp changes
in the market cycle and adjust its marketing strategies to
promote sales returns. We will seize the opportunity of
the new round of market restart, make scientific decisions,
identify potential regions and cities, seize structural
opportunities and enhance our product and service strength
to achieve steady development.

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from property sales,
which contributed approximately 95.6% of the revenue
for the reporting period. The table below sets forth the
breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operating segment as
indicated:

For the year ended
31 December 2022

EEEBNWR DM

RE
R-ZZF-Z—_F BEFHEMSHNHEE
BRFrREFEMTR BEB-_T-__F

T—AE BREHEGZEHEERR
REMEARRHBESR  LAMEA
BEERHEGEXR NEHHHHEE
BEE - USh AR RESE— 5
HH _FT_—FHNKEEE -HE_F
“ZFRMETSBERERK  E L2
FERE -

AEBEEREIBRREEBRN  BHEMSH
BHIZ AELHERE RAHEED
H-AEESLEER WM GERNK
B FHANMBRENRR  BHREEER
R MEAEERE  RTERE
RHEEL BRBEER-

CEXERYHORE

A

AEBZWATERRYMEHE 6
EH 2 WA #95.6% o T REFIIRAT R
En a2 AEEWARA

For the year ended
31 December 2021

BE-Z-C HE_T-_—F
tZA=+—BLtEFEE +T-A=T-HLFE
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
AR¥FT % AREFor %
Property sales MEIHE 3,296,618 95.6 2,767,676 94.5
Property investment Y ELE 152,350 4.4 159,878 5.5
3,448,968 100 2,927,554 100
Revenue from property sales MEHERA

The Group’s revenue from property sales increased to
approximately RMB3,296.6 million for the reporting period
(2021: approximately RMB2,767.7 million).

REHRNASEMEHEEWRALMNELD
AR #3,296,600,0007T (ZF = —4F : 4
AR#2,767,700,0007T) °

RE=ZAZRARALT
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The table below summarises the revenue from property sales
for the reporting period:

TERBARERRZWEHERA

Average  Percentage
Sales selling of total
Property projects Type revenue GFA price amount
kR
NEER E<Fil HEWA AEEER FHEE 2B
RMB’000 sq.m. RMB/sq.m. %
AEBTT FHR ARE %
FHK
Shaanxi Province
PR &
Quijiang Xiangsong Fengdan Residential/Commercial 1,453,462 92,488 15,715 44.1
Xian Sandi
P& = et T B BT FE/H%
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commercial 529,839 78,015 6,783 16.1
SR G ki) FE/H%
Sandi Jinyu Gaoxin Residential 491,669 94,563 5,199 14.9
By k=Y Fx
Sandi Yunding Fengdan Residential 179,631 42,847 4,192 5.4
—HEERN =
Shanghai
b=}
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 427,336 14,106 30,295 13.0
SHERE RS
Others Residential/Commercial 214,681 12,501 15,740 6.5
Hith FE/m%
Total 3,296,618 334,520 9,799 100
M@t
Notes: Bzt -

Sales revenue amount and the calculation of average price are
based on the sales revenue after the deduction of business/
value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes.

HEBRATERFHEEAERENE
MR EER R AWM MHEIEZ
HEWABRESE -

ii. GFA and sales revenue attributable to the car parking spaces i EENEEMNAEEmBLRBERA
are excluded in the GFA sold and the average selling price TEREECERAZEmBLRIFHEB
calculation. &rho
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Revenue from property investment

Revenue from property investment including rental income
and property management and related fee income amounted
to approximately RMB152.4 million for the reporting period
(2021: approximately RMB159.9 million), which was derived
from the Group's investment properties situated in the
PRC, including shopping malls, commercial buildings and
kindergartens.

Cost of properties sales

The Group's cost of properties sales increased to
approximately RMB2,485.0 million for the reporting period
(2021: approximately RMB2,106.2 million). The increase
was primarily attributable to the increase in the cost of
construction materials during the reporting period compared
with 2021, which led to the increase in the cost of properties
sales.

Change in fair value on investment properties and
upon transfer to investment properties

For the reporting period, the Group recognised a net fair
value loss of approximately RMB7.1 million on its investment
properties (2021: a net fair value gain of approximately
RMB9.5 million).

Change in fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a fair
value gain of approximately RMB101.4 million (2021:
approximately RMB121.8 million) on the derivative
components of the convertible bonds with principal amount
of HK$500 million, issued to Primary Partner International
Limited (“Primary Partner”), which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), on 30 January 2019 as the
consideration for acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited.
The derivative component of the convertible bonds
represented the conversion option to convert into shares of
the Company and early redemption option before its maturity
date on 30 January 2024, which were classified as derivative
financial instrument and measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

EEEBNWR DM
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Other gains and losses

The Group recognised net other losses of approximately
RMB38.7 million for the reporting period (2021: net other
gains of approximately RMB33.6 million), which was
mainly attributed to net exchange losses during the Year as
mentioned above.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses decreased
by approximately RMB16.2 million from approximately
RMB218.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB202.2 million for the reporting period.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by
approximately RMB88.3 million from approximately
RMB214.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB125.7 million for the reporting period.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest expenses on banks and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, promissory note, contract
liabilities, amounts due to a related company and lease
liabilities. The finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB117.8 million (2021: approximately RMB178.2 million)
for the reporting period. The decrease in finance cost was
attributable to contract liabilities.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense mainly comprises the PRC enterprise
income tax and land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately RMB158.1 million for the reporting period
(2021: approximately RMB178.3 million).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB6,720.0 million
denominated in RMB (31 December 2021: approximately
RMBS8,205.2 million denominated in RMB) and other
debts comprising convertible bonds, promissory note and
amounts due to a related company in total amount to
approximately RMB1,153.4 million denominate in HK$ and
RMB (31 December 2021: approximately RMB1,346.2 million
denominated in HK$ and RMB). As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, all bank and other borrowings were secured with fixed
interest rate. The bank and other borrowings with maturities
falling due within one year, in the second year, in the third
to the fifth year, over five years amounted to approximately
RMB1,933.7 million, RMB2,375.8 million, RMB1,423.5
million and RMB987 million, respectively (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB1,798.6 million, RMB1,889.7 million,
RMB3,788.9 million and RMB728.0 million, respectively).
Further details of the bank and other borrowings, are set out
in note 25, to the consolidated financial statements in this
report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB310.9 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB592.9 million) which were mainly
denominated in HK$ and RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio for the
Group was approximately 149.0% (31 December 2021:
approximately 175.5%), calculated based on the net debts
(comprising bank and other borrowings and other debts
comprising convertible bonds, promissory note and amounts
due to a related company less cash and cash equivalent)
of approximately RMB7,562.5 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB8,958.5 million) over the total equity
of approximately RMB5,074.3 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB5,105.7 million). The debt ratio was
approximately 80.6% (31 December 2021: approximately
83.0%), calculated as total liabilities over total assets of the
Group.
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The Group's current available liquidity resources are sufficient
to meet its capital commitments. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group’s net current assets amounted to approximately
RMB1,542.4 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB3,564.9 million). The Group’s current ratio, being
percentage of its current assets and its current liabilities,
amounted to approximately 111.2% (31 December 2021:
approximately 122.6%).

The Group continued to adopt a prudent funding and
treasury policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is
to maintain adequate funds for financing working capital and
capture investment opportunities as and when they become
available. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
Shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group and fund raising activities
during the reporting period are summarised as follows:

(i) Bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB6,720.0 million
(31 December 2021: approximately RMB8,205.2
million), of which approximately RMB1,933.7 million
are repayable within one year and approximately
RMB4,786.3 million are repayable beyond one year. The
Group’s bank and other borrowings bear interest rates
ranging from approximately 2.8% to 11% per annum.
All the bank and other borrowings were denominated
in RMB.
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(ii)

(iii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Promissory note

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company
had a 5-year promissory note (the “Promissory Note”)
with principal amount of HK$600 million issued to
Mr. Guo, the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, with interest to be 3% per annum for the
first and second years after the date of issuance,
4.5% per annum for the third and fourth years after
the date of issuance and 6% per annum for the fifth
year after the date of issuance, with interest payable
annually in arrears and the principal will be repaid when
the Promissory Note falls due on 30 January 2024.
Promissory Note is denominated in HK$. There was no
early redemption of the Promissory Note requested by
the Company or Mr. Guo during the reporting period.

Convertible bonds

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company had
a 5-year convertible bonds (the “CBs”) with principal
amount of HK$500 million issued to Primary Partner,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Guo, the chairman of
the Board and an executive Director, with interest being
1% per annum payable annually in arrears and carrying
a conversion price of HK$0.412 per conversion share,
with conversion rights to convert into a maximum of
1,213,592,233 shares. The principal will be repaid when
the CBs fall due on 30 January 2024 if no conversion
happened on or before 30 January 2024. The CBs are
denominated in HK$. There was no early redemption of
the CB requested by the Company or Mr. Guo during
the reporting period.

(ii)

(iii)
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(iv) Amounts due to a related company (iv) Ef—EBEARNRE

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Nanping Sandi
Yungu Real Estate Development Co., Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, had a 3-year borrowing with
principal amount of RMB233.75 million, from Fujian
Sandi Real Estate Development Co., Limited (”Fujian
Sandi”), which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Guo.
Interest is payable quarterly with interest rate of 12%
per annum and the principal will be required to be fully
repaid when the borrowing falls due on 14 April 2024.
As at 31 December 2022, the balance of this borrowing
is RMB31.75 million.

As at 31 December 2022, Nanping Sandi Yunfu Real
Estate Development Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, had 2 year borrowings with principal amount
of RMB82.0 million and RMB96.0 million, respectively,
from Fujian Sandi. Interest is payable quarterly with
interest of 9% and 11% per annum, respectively. The
principal of the borrowings will be required to be fully
repaid when the borrowings fall due on 6 January 2024
and 28 April 2024, respectively. As at 31 December
2022, the balance of this borrowing is RMB160.0
million.

As at 31 December 2022, Wuyishan Gaojia Real
Estate Development Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, had a 2-year borrowing with principal
amount of RMB32.0 million, from Fujian Sandi. Interest
is payable monthly with interest of 9% per annum and
the principal will be required to be fully repaid when
the borrowing falls due on 13 January 2024.

There is no early repayment of the borrowings
requested by Fujian Sandi during the reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed of its 100% equity interests in Best Way Industries
Incorporated, Link Equity International Limited, Bestway
Success Development Limited, Xi‘an Sanxie Real Estate Co.,
Ltd and Xi'an Diyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, 60%
equity interest in Nanping Sandi Xiangsong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd (collectively referred to as the Disposed
Subsidiaries) to independent third parties. Further details of
the disposal of subsidiaries are set out in note 30, to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

Except for investment in subsidiaries, there were no
significant investments held by the Group as at 31 December
2022.

Save as disclosed above and/or elsewhere in this report,
the Group had no other material acquisitions or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this report.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged certain
investment properties, properties under development,
land use rights and certain inventories of properties of an
aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB17,756.8
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB22,195.9
million) together with certain rental proceeds over investment
properties, and shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group to
secure the bank and other facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had entered into agreements with certain banks
to provide guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties. As at
31 December 2022, the Group provided guarantees for
mortgage loans in an amount of approximately RMB4,692.2
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB6,237.3
million) to banks in respect of such agreements. Certain
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EEEN®R DN

subsidiaries of the Group has provided corporate guarantees
of approximately RMB872.8 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB896.6 million) to certain financial
institutions in respect of loan facilities granted to certain
companies that were indirectly wholly owned or controlled
by Mr. Guo. In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group
had also provided corporate guarantees amounting to
approximately RMB233.6 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB270.0 million) to certain financial
institutions in respect of loan facilities granted to certain
independent third parties during the reporting period.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of investment properties, properties
under development and property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB987.1 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB1,098.4 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the business operations in the
PRC and Hong Kong denominated in RMB and HK$,
respectively. The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong as investment
holdings companies and its principal operating subsidiaries
in the PRC is RMB. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
did not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of its foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group
will closely monitor its foreign currency exposure and will
consider using hedging instruments in respect of significant
foreign currency exposure as and when appropriate. As at
31 December 2022, the Group had no investment in any
financial derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or
currency swaps, hedging or other financial arrangements for
hedging purposes to reduce any currency risk nor made any
over-the-counter contingent forward transactions.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of
417 employees (31 December 2021: 490 employees) of
which 415 employees (31 December 2021: 488 employees)
were hired in the PRC and 2 employees (31 December
2021: 2 employees) in Hong Kong. Total remuneration
paid to the employees for the reporting period amounted
to approximately RMB93.2 million (2021: approximately
RMB176.4 million). In addition to competitive remuneration
packages offered to the employees, the Group also provides
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Management Discussion and Analysis

other benefits including contributions to mandatory provident
fund, as well as group medical and accident insurance.
On-going training sessions were also conducted to enhance
the competitiveness of the Group’s human assets. The
Company also maintains a share option scheme, pursuant
to which share options may be granted to the Directors,
executives and employees of the Company to provide them
with incentives in the growth of the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuation on the Group’s investment properties
located in the PRC as at 31 December 2022 had been
carried out by an independent qualified professional valuer,
Graval Consulting Limited. The property valuation was used
in preparing the annual results. The valuation was based
on income capitalization approach by making reference to
comparable market information as available in the relevant
markets. For investment properties under development, the
valuation has also taken into account the construction costs
expended and to be expended to complete the development.
The Group’s investment properties were valued at
approximately RMB10,734.3 million as at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: approximately RMB10,564.7 million).
A net fair value loss of approximately RMB7.1 million (2021:
net fair value gain of approximately RMB9.5 million) was
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the reporting period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing
Rules”, respectively) as its code of conduct in respect of the
securities dealing by the Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors in respect of the securities
dealing by the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the reporting
period.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise an effective Board, sound internal control,
appropriate independence policy, transparency and
accountability so as to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders.

The Board is committed to comply with the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules to the extent that the Directors consider
it to be practical and applicable to the Company. During
the reporting period and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be segregated and not be exercised by the same
individual. The chairman is responsible for the corporate
strategic planning and formulation of corporate policies for
the Group, while the chief executive officer is responsible for
overseeing day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Guo currently serves as the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman™).

Up to date of this report, no individual was appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ"). The
day-to-day management of the Group's business is monitored
by the executive Directors and senior management. Given
the size of the Group, the current business operations
and administration have been stable, the Board is of the
view that the current management structure is able to
effectively discharge the duties of both positions. However,
going forward, the Board will review from time to time
and separate the roles of the Chairman and the CEO when
necessary.

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code to
its corporate governance structure and practices as described
in this report. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code. The Board will continue to monitor
and review the Company’s corporate governance practices
in order to ensure that such practices may meet the general
rules and standards as required by the Listing Rules. The
Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for sustainable growth of
the Group and for benefit of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board's primary responsibilities include the formulation
of long-term corporate strategies, policy decisions and
overseeing the management of the Group’s operations. In
addition, the Board evaluates the performance of the Group
and assesses the achievement of targets periodically set by
the Board. In carrying out its duties and projects, the Board
delegates certain specific considerations to designated
board committees and management task forces. The daily
management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the CEO, executive Directors and senior
management and divisional heads. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned
officers. All Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information in discharging their duties, and in
appropriate circumstances are normally granted rights to seek
independent professional advices at the Company’s expense.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience for effective leadership and
independence in decision making. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprises 6 Directors, whose biographical
details and their relationships are set out in the “Biographical
Details of the Directors of the Company” on pages 61 to
64 of the Report of the Directors. There are 3 executive
Directors, namely Mr. Guo lJiadi, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and
Mr. Wang Chao and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Ma Shujuan and
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic. Mr. Guo Jiadi serves as the
Chairman. Ms. Amika Lan E Guo is a daughter of Mr. Guo
Jiadi. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
a sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise throughout
the reporting period. The Company has received annual
confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
that they did not have any businesses or financial interests
with the Group and were independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

TEERBE

EEEgCHE

EFg /I ERAEBEFIERELER
B REBRRLEBAKEZEBERE
B EFEFEAEEZRE LFZ
ELENEFETHRTEZBEE -RE
TBRENEERER EFEeRETA
BEEFEEXHETZIESFZESRE
BNEABE - ARBZAFER  1TBK
BERITHAHE BITEELRSRER
EURZHMPATERE - EFSEHR
AR BB RIE FieRBE
REATLEMNEAR SR WEAEEES
FENRE- 2REFHAVEFETEL
FTEHEBENNETERSE L H &
ERENEEBATHABLIERER
&M B AR A APE -

BEEE2 AR

EEg AR ERBERERE Y
AR BRERER ZHERE - RA
WMEBH EECHNBEETHEK K
ECRENRBREREENESTSHREES
61E6AB [ARBIEEZ@AABGE] - B
AB=2WITES  HRlAMNETLE -
Amika Lan E GuoZ T R TRBEA U=
BEIUIERTEE  DRIARIRF A -
5ORIB 2 = RME & S o Zhhnid Sk A
¥EEEE - Amika Lan E GuoZ A& N
BMAEEZZ - ARAIRBREHRN—HE
FEMRBEIN0MNEIN0IEEBEE
TRHREZBILIERTESRRLE
P BB ERNTESEABRERE
BRI ST EETBEEREEENHZZ
BME - AARCEEZ2EBYIENTE
ERBLITRBEIIBEREFER
RE RTEEVERAEEEETM
ES SR YEBBIALT

RE=ZAZRARALT

2022F % 3 3



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

ARAFDRIES  NEREFSAE
BEUBRRES HEMEHIWOT

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure that
independent views and input are available to the Board, a

summary of which is set out as follows:

1.

In terms of composition of the Board, (i) at least
one-third of its members are independent non-executive
Directors; (i) the Company would receive independence
confirmations from its independent non-executive
Directors annually pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules; and (iii) the Board composition and
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors are reviewed by the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company
on an annual basis (in particular, for independent
non-executive Directors who have served for more than
nine years).

In terms of conduct of Board proceedings, (i) all
Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are provided with regular updates of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to make informed decision; (ii) all members of
the Board may seek independent professional advice
when necessary to perform their responsibilities; (iii) the
Directors shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any Board resolution approving any contract,
arrangement or any other proposal concerning a matter
that is significant to the Company’s business in which
such Director or any of his/her close associates has a
material interest, save as otherwise permitted under the
Listing Rules; and (iv) the chairman of the Board shall
meet the independent non-executive Directors at least
once annually.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
the above mechanisms on an annual basis.
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APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
OF DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors;
and monitoring their succession. The Board’s established
policies include procedures for the appointment of Directors
nominated by the Company’s shareholders. The existing
Bye-laws of the Company empower the Board to appoint any
person as Director either as an additional member or to fill a
casual vacancy.

The term of office for each of the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors is 3 years. The existing
Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retire may fill the vacated office.
In addition, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director shall retire in the next annual
general meeting but eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
in respect of the securities dealing by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors in respect
of the securities dealing by the Directors and all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the reporting period.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established 3 Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, each of which is delegated with
specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the Board
committees follow the same principles and procedures as
those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee on a regular basis, including their decision and
recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”). The Audit Committee of the Company
comprises the following independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (Chairman)
Ms. Ma Shujuan
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic

The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or
related financial management expertise and members of the
Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the Company’s financial information
including annual report and half-yearly report and the
appropriateness of any significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein;
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(b) to review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures. Further information is disclosed in the
section titled “Risk Management and Internal Controls”
below.

The Company’s results for the reporting period and interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2022 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before the submission to
the Board.

During the reporting period, two meetings had been held
by the Audit Committee. Attendance of each member at the
Audit Committee meeting is set out in the table under the
section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this report.

Summary of work in 2022/2023

For the reporting period, the Audit Committee has performed
the following:

o reviewed the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 and the related documents, made
recommendations to the Board for approval and
discussed with the management and the external
auditor the accounting policies and practices which
may affect the Group, the report prepared by the
external auditor covering major findings in the course
of the audit and the accounting and financial reporting
matters;

o reviewed the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2022 and the related
documents, and the issues noted by the Company’'s
external auditors and made recommendations to the
Board for approval;
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XERBRE

reviewed and monitored the Company’s financial
reporting procedures, the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems as well as
the Group’s internal audit function;

reviewed the re-appointment, remuneration and
engagement letter of the Company’s external auditors,
its independence and objectivity, and the effectiveness
of the audit process;

reviewed the appointment of the internal control
consultant;

reviewed the Audit Committee’s independence and
effectiveness in discharging its role and responsibilities,
and its terms of reference; and

5T R B R A RO B 75 R SRR -
7 L 2 T P 4 A
R AN 55 [ PO B0 8 4 B A 0 7 B

WA ARBINEZEEN 2B F
MLzBEE EBIEREBRNE
AR BEBZIEF ZBMIE

@ AR EE B R R &

BEEZZEeERTERERE
EHENBIMERBERE  UEHE
BERE &

R BESEREBGMMAMRK

reviewed the composition of the Audit Committee. o

BERZEGZRERE T NARQRFHL
Ko Bt 52 P b B B o

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
for inspection on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange's website.

3 L o
EVZEECBHARARARAINE
RHMAESEESTMELMERA
A (TRE]D) RRERREHEAT RS M
BN/ ERZBE -

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/
payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”), the
external auditor of the Company, for the following services
provided for the reporting period.

Remuneration

Nature of services Paid/Payable

PR 7% & B NS

RMB’'000

AR For

Audit service EIZRE 1,530

Non-audit services IEEZR

— agree-upon procedures on interim —F M BRERZHERF

financial statements 220

1,750
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The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board
that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement
between the external auditor and the management of the
Company for the reporting period.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee.
The existing Nomination Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Ms. Ma Shujuan

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years and shall be eligible for
re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for consideration. The process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria is based
mainly on the assessment of their professional qualifications
and experience relevant to the Company’s businesses.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the reporting period. Attendance of each member at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table under
the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this report.
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Summary of work in 2022/2023

. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

o reviewed the implementation with measurable targets,
progress and effectiveness of the Company's policy on
board diversity (the “Board Diversity Policy”);

o assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;

° reviewed appointments or re-appointments of the
Directors;

o reviewed succession planning for Directors;

o nominated Board candidates for election/re-election by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting; and

o reviewed the time required by the Directors and the
evaluation of whether the Directors have devoted
enough time to fulfill their responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy, including
measurable objective, monitoring and review of the
Policy

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Company’s Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Board’s composition has been disclosed in the Report of the
Directors.

The Board aims to have at least one member of the Board
to be female. As the Board currently has two members who
are female, the Board considers that the objective for gender
diversity has been achieved.

To develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board
to achieve gender diversity, the Company has adopted
relevant hiring policies for considering candidates of senior
management positions which would take into account
diversity perspectives including gender diversity.

As at 31 December 2022, the percentage of male and
female in the workforce (including the senior management)
is 53.2% and 46.8%, respectively. The Company’s
workforce (including its senior management) has achieved
gender diversity between males and females. The Company
will continue to take into account diversity perspectives
including gender diversity in its future hiring to maintain
gender diversity across its workforce (including its senior
management).
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Monitoring and review

The Nomination Committee has monitored the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and there is no
derivation from this Board Diversity Policy for the reporting
period. The Nomination Committee will keep on review
this Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

NOMINATION POLICY

A nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) sets out the
selection criteria, procedures and process of appointing
and reappointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, his/
her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity
and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the
Board as detailed in the Policy. The procedures and process
of appointing and reappointing a Director are summarised as
follows:

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

—  evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate
and making recommendation for the Board’s
consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive
Director, assessing the candidate’s independence under
the relevant Code Provisions and the Listing Rules;

— where nominating an independent non-executive
Director for election at general meetings, having due
consideration of matters under Code Provision B.3.4);
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— in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the
Board and/or the shareholders for consideration in
connection with his/her re-election at general meetings;
and

— convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a
Director.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The Remuneration Committee
comprises the following independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Ma Shujuan (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendation on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Company, the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy, and the review of
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management of the Company by reference to
corporate goals and objective resolved by the Board from
time to time. The Remuneration Committee will review and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

The principal elements of the executive Directors’
remuneration package include basic salary, benefits in kind,
discretionary bonus, retirement benefits and participation
in the share option scheme adopted by the shareholders
of the Company in 2011. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors will be proposed by the Chairman
of the Group annually for the review by the Remuneration
Committee based on the following factors:

(a) the executive Director’s responsibilities and contribution;
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(b) the executive Director’s individual performance; and

(c) performance of the business unit(s) headed by the
executive Director.

The independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration
includes Directors’ fee and participation in the share
option scheme, and subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee. The term
of appointment of the independent non-executive Directors is
three years. Other detailed terms of appointment have been
disclosed in the Report of the Directors and the consolidated
financial statements. The Board’s authority to fix Directors’
remuneration was granted by the Company’s shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the reporting period. Attendance of each member at the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table
under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.

Summary of work in 2022/2023

o reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o reviewed the remuneration package of the executive
Directors and senior management;

o reviewed the remuneration of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

o assessed the performance of the Directors.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model under
Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) and make recommendations to the
Board for approving in relation to remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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The term of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the reporting
period are set out in the note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and as business
need arises. The Company’s memorandum of association and
Bye-laws provide for participation at meetings via telephone
and other electronic means. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group and independent professional
advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

During the reporting period, two board meetings had been
held for reviewing business performance, considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company,
and other business matters. Attendance of each member at
the board meetings, board committee meetings and general
meetings of the Company, on a named basis, during the
reporting period is set out in the table below.
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Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held during the reporting period

FEANERESNY/ EONEERY

Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings Meeting

gMzee  RgZaeg ENZEE
Directors EZ Ezeed ] ] e RRAE
Mr. Guo Jiadi Imars 22 NATER NARER NATER 17
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan £ Guo 22 NATER NARNER NATER 1/1
Mr. Wang Chao IEnE 21 NAT NARNER NATER 17
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael BERTEE M 1/1 11 0 11
Ms. Ma Shujuan SHExt 22 I 11 22 111
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic WEBLE 0N 1 i 0N 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEERRBAE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate EEeREETTRETAKEXEA2.1E
governance duties as set out in the terms of reference HlEBESEMSTEE ARG -

equivalent to Code Provision A.2.1.

—Eo_F /R _FEEMLERE
E’JIVHE%%-

Summary of work relating to corporate governance in
2022/2023:

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and made recommendations to
the Board;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual of the employees and Directors;

s MEARFNEREBHRENMEMR
THEFSHFEOEBRRR:

° $AAE—J’&%5%%$&%§&%EE%1%
FRFEEEER

. BUREEANTEETEERE
EREHENOBERER

e BEAKEREEMREFHNERTER
K& RFAm

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code; o fEEIAARA TFOAEEATHNGE
and oK
e  endorsed the annual corporate governance report. o DUFEEBNEZTARE -

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
covering the liabilities of the Directors and officers that may
arise out the corporate activities which has been complied
with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

ESkERBEBZES
ADFERHFEERRE REEREMR
BEERREHRAgEEEERHR
REF - YEMTFEEEARTA - RREBE
B EFETHE -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial period/year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or condition that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the
Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to the regulators as well as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The above statements, which should be read in conjunction
with the independent auditor’s report set out from pages
86 to 94 of this annual report, are made with a view to
distinguishing for Shareholders how the responsibilities of
the Directors differ from those of the auditor in relation
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Having
made appropriate enquiries and examined major areas
which could give rise to significant financial exposures, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the reporting period,
the Directors considered the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. The interim and annual
results and reports were published within the time limits as
required under the Listing Rules after the end of the relevant
periods to provide stakeholders with transparent and timely
financial information.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged at the expenses
of the Company where necessary. During the reporting
period, each of the Directors has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars and/
or studying materials relevant to Director’s duties and
responsibility. Their training records have been provided to
the Company.

Directors =

EECRKESERE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted various
risk management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. For details of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the reporting period, please refer to the
section on the summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee above.

The Group has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions.

All divisions/departments conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact
the business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly
complied with by each division/department.
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During the reporting period, the Group engaged an
independent professional consultancy firm for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control systems. Key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls are examined
and the independent professional consultancy firm provided
its findings and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well
as the management report and the internal audit findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls,
for the reporting period, and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and internal audit function and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

With reference to the Internal Audit Manual of the Group,
the Group’s internal audit function has been established
to provide risk-based and objective assurance, advice and
insight to the Board through the Audit Committee. The risk
management and internal control systems are reviewed and
assessed on a continuous basis by the Audit Committee and
the executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and
assessed at least once each year by the Board. These systems
were considered effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. Since
shares of the Company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy which aims
to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors, officers and
all relevant employees to ensure inside information of the
Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
He/she is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development
of Directors.

During the reporting period, Ms. Ho Wing Tsz, Wendy
("Ms. Ho") have attended relevant professional seminars
to update her skills and knowledge. She met the training
requirement set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board
practices and matters. Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, Executive
Director has been designated as the primary contact person
at the Company which would work and communicate
with Ms. Ho on the Company’s corporate governance and
secretarial and administrative matters.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on
21 March 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide
return to the shareholders of the Company.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided that the Group is
profitable and without affecting the normal operations
of the Group, the Company may consider to declare and
pay dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, the Group's
actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings
and distributable reserves, working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion plans,
liquidity position, Shareholders’ interests, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group
and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Declaration and payment of dividend shall remain to be ERMENBEEDNEREEZ2HEEEB
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject EBiE ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%LxﬁWU PiN/N T%HE\'J&EE
to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and @ AEE - BEIRROIFTHERE - XA

any applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company will  ¥3#5 &5 I8 B HE « WIREE BFEHTE%)T
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right Bk BZIERREBRRN R LB
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or BEE REBREBTIEXARAFAS
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy SRR RN 2 EE  BIRE B AEMEF
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by F&ZEMNE BT E S A& QG RE
the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular sk TR EIRMRE ©

amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a

dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS JiR R #E R

() How Shareholders Can Convene A Special ) BEDNMAEBEKREZIASRRA
General Meeting And Putting Forward Proposals BREAZREEZR
at Shareholders’ Meeting
The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene a EERNEZRAEGBEZRHIEERER
special general meeting, and special general meetings HERAD  MEEERAZ IR
shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by R ﬂ}iﬁﬁ%ﬁiZEﬁSjﬁ%@ I
the Companies Act, and, if default, may be convened EEZBRKE[RARERFI A
by the requisitionists. On the requisition of members EIJTEE XA”E%H&%%%‘JK@ °
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of EXERETABBEARTEHE
the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the LX?-? EIJtZ$ RIBEWER (B
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the EARRNAIRERE FRR) TR+
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings D2 ZARNBBREELFRKEZ
of the Company, the Directors forthwith proceed duly BAT EFEIAEBHRAR
to convene a special general meeting of the Company. BERA MBERERFERKE
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from EHEF -+ —BHRDNABHEAS -
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed ;Z:;%qi}\iﬁi\%%ﬁf;%i)\—i
duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any N P 2 EMBRARNAE
of them representing more than one half of the total ﬂ ARAARE HEMNAETHERE
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a gt HEAEET B A = (A A1 & 1T o

meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date.

(1) Procedures by which enquiries may be put to ) AEESEREEAZER

the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company [i% 3 7] 1% 38 F # Zinfo@chinasandi.
either by email at info@chinasandi.com.cn or by post to comcnEBEFERXRAB B EBHE
the Company’s Hong Kong head office at Room 2008, B (Mt R EE T #HBFE118572018
20th Floor, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong. 2008%) @ [MIARNARIELEH IR
Shareholders can also make enquiries with the Board MARBREARE FEERESSE
directly at the general meetings. HEH -
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognises the importance of the
communication with shareholders. In order to maintain
and further enhance the investors’ relationship with the
Company’s shareholders, the Company established various
channels of communication with its shareholders:

° The annual general meeting provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
members of the Board and external auditors will attend
the meeting. The Group encourages all shareholders to
attend and raise any comment on the performance of
the Group. The Board welcomes to exchange views with
its shareholders at the meeting.

e  The Company has regularly met with financial analysts,
fund managers and potential investors during the
reporting period, in order to enhance the understanding
the Group’s operations and developments.

o Information relating to the Company’s financial
information is provided through publications of annual/
interim reports, announcements, circulars and press
release.

o The Company has established a corporate website
which provides regularly updated Company financial
information and other corporate information.

The Board reviewed the Shareholder communication policy
for the reporting period and found that the Shareholder
communication policy is both effective and adequate as the
Board was able to solicit the Shareholders concerns in an
efficient manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, in order (i) to further improve
the corporate governance of the Company; (ii) to conform
with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards (Appendix
3 to the Listing Rules); (iii) to make other house-keeping
amendments that are in line with the laws of Bermuda and
the Listing Rules; and (iv) to reflect the change of the name
of the Company on 11 October 2012, it was resolved during
the annual general meeting held on 30 June 2022 that
the new amended and restated Bye-laws of the Company,
containing proposed amendments to certain provisions in the
Bye-laws, were adopted.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) herein
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the reporting period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group by operating
segments for the reporting period is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the reporting period and the
financial performance of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 95 to 264.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
any dividend for the reporting period.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND COMMENTARY
Financial Results

The financial results and business review of the Group for
the reporting period are set out in this annual report and
particulars in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from pages 6 to 31.

Environmental measure and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and maintaining a high standard
of corporate social governance essential for creating a
framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating
a sustainable return to the Group.

Detail of which are disclosed in our Environmental, Social
and Governance report, which will be issued separately by
the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During the reporting period,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable of relevant laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. We enjoy good relationships
with suppliers and customers with mutual trust. Accordingly,
our management have kept good communications, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them
when appropriate. During the reporting period, there were
no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its suppliers and/or customers.

Employees are valuable assets of the Group. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path
and improvement of their skills by encouraging them to take
part in external training courses, professional seminars and
examinations and support them by sponsoring. The Group
puts efforts into providing staff with a harmonious, positive
and inspiring working environment. The Group always
adheres to its people-oriented concept, values and maintains
their employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

By providing employees with a good working environment
and competitive trainings, employees’ productivities and their
performances are greatly improved.

Report of the Directors
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group's businesses which including business risk, policy and
market risk, operational risk and financial management risk.

Business Risk

Performance of our Group's core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions such as performance of regional property markets,
which would hardly be mitigated even with careful and
prudent investment strategy and strict procedure.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillar industry for the PRC’s development,
the property sector is more susceptible to the impact
of macro-economic and industrial policies. Our Group's
performance may be adversely affected by changes of the
political, social and economic conditions in the PRC if we are
unable to respond to the ever-changing market conditions in
a timely manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with every function at the divisional and
departmental levels. Key functions in our Group are guided
by their standard operating procedures, limit of authority
and reporting framework. Our management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate
risk responses can be taken.

Financial management risk

The main financial management risk and the Group’s
financial management measures are shown in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those mentioned above which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years/periods, as extracted from the published
audited consolidated financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out below. The summary does not form
part of the consolidated financial statements.
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RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFLE AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFI

(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i)

(Hiiti) (Hiiti) (Hrdti) (Hi#ti)

Revenue i 3448968 2927554 3255088 1,941,565 365,048
Profit (loss) for the year/period ~ AR REHAEEE/

attributable to the owners of M RA (F8)
the Company 42,103 169,707 420,503 482,165 (114,580)
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Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest

gE

CEBERFERERS

At 31 December

R+=B=1+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“E-CE ZZCZ- ZZZ%F ZE-nf ZE-N\F
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETL AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFI
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note i)
(Hiti) (Hi#i) (i) (Hrstii) (W)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,866,575 10,683,219 9,868,688 8,847,037 6,762,538
Current assets REHEE 15,254,762 19,305479 17,239,739 11,427,775 11,319,342
Total assets BEE 26,121,337 29,988,698  27,108427 20,274,812 18,072,880
Current liabilities nBER 13,712,319 15740,603 14,061,175 10,375,071 11,762,223
Non-current liabilities ¥RBER 7334677 9,142,434 8,140,547 5,900,209 2,249,663
Total liabilities BAE 21,046,996 24,883,037 22,201,722 16,275,280 14,011,886
Total equity BRH 5,074,341 5,105,661 4,906,705 3,999,532 4,060,994
Attributable to: WTETER -
Owners of the Company NI 4,881,630 4,836,052 4,672,807 3,945,563 3,982,357
Non-controlling interests AR ER 192,711 269,609 233,898 53,969 78,637
Notes: B -
(i) These financial information were extracted from the audited () ZEFBHERESE AHEEI5E264
consolidated financial statements as set out on page 95 to BEfSZRERGATBEHE
264 in this report.
(i) The financial information for the year ended 31 December (il HEZZE—NF+_A=1+—"BLFE

2019 and the nine months ended 31 December 2018 was
extracted from the Company’s 2019 annual report, which has
been restated under merger accounting and has also been
adjusted for the change of presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment
purposes are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the reporting period are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’'s share capital
during the reporting period are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’'s share options
during the reporting period are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the reporting period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 99 and
100 of this annual report and in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately RMB1,042,596,000 as at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB1,042,596,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, less than 10% of the Group’s
sale were attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers respectively.

In addition, the five largest suppliers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 52% of the Group’s total
purchases during the reporting period, with the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 46%.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
substantial shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers during the year.

Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

EEYE
FIERBEZEEMEFBINKE S M
WRMET

ME - BERRE
AREWE  BERBRERSEHR 2L
BRI A B TS IR B 1S o

R A K Bs AR fE
NS e S L
A BT B M 26 -

ABER

7R B IR AN 3R 25
WA B R A 27 -

=1

i
AEBRARFBERN 2 GBS B
5 IR A £ Q9K 1008 2 A HE
S DESE IS LIRS

CIR:: 33
ARBR-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—82
Al DR FEE S A AR ®1,042,596,000
T(ZEZ—F+-_A=+—H:HAE
#1,042,596,0007T) o

IREFRHER
BERNAEBRARTAES DRI
REEHETETRI0%

O AEBAAEEEHEKEAEE
EHREHANBRBELND2%  HP &
A5 #046% °

AAFEE BEAAEEHRALR
FEAEERR EEEFMRM  HHAL
AE BT RAE%IA L&) £ P 50 7K
BT AR R4 7 A 1 E 3
2 -

REZHEERERAT 202253

59



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the reporting period, the Group made charitable
contributions approximately RMBO0.3 million (2021:
approximately RMB2.2 million) to various charitable
organisations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Jiadi (Chairman)
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo
Mr. Wang Chao

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Ms. Ma Shujuan
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic

In accordance with the Bye-laws 111(A) and 111(B) of the
Bye-laws of the Company, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Lam
Wai Fung, Dominic shall retire from their offices at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and (i)
Ms. Ma Shujuan will not offer herself for re-election and (ii)
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic, being eligible, will offer himself
for re-election at the said meeting.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is the updated information of Director required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael resigned as an independent
non-executive director of SoftMedx Healthcare Limited
(formerly known as China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited)
(stock code: 648) with effect from 31 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), aged 63, is a merchant and
was appointed as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company with effect from 12 December 2014. Mr. Guo
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands
(the "BVI") respectively engaged in investment holding and
also a director and legal representative of certain operating
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. Mr. Guo is also an
ultimate beneficial owner of a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Guo started his business in international trading and,
in 26 years, diversified into businesses including footwear
manufacturing, chemical technology, mining, real estate
development and hotel investment with presence throughout
Europe, the United States, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Fujian,
Shaanxi and Jilin. Mr. Guo has over 30 years of experience in
trading business and over 20 years of experience in property
development.

Mr. Guo entered into the property market in the PRC by
establishing Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Fuzhou Gaojia”) and has since acted as its chairman.
Fuzhou Gaojia has obtained (Qualification Certificate (Class
1) for Real Estate Development Enterprise in the PRC¥*)
from the Department of Housing and Urban and Rural
Development of the PRC*. Fuzhou Gaojia has completed
certain real estate projects in Fuzhou, Putian, Baoji and
Shanghai.

Mr. Guo is the father of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, who is an
executive Director of the Company. Apart from the aforesaid,
Mr. Guo does not have any other relationship with any
Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Guo does not hold directorship in other public listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only

Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

ARBREEZZEAGE

BITES

Fn@LE ((BERE]D 635 B —F
BMA-B-ZT-—WNE+-_A+-_HER
RERARBEFRRATEST L
NRARAREENRBRAES ([H
BRLEE]) EMARLLEFREZER
ZETHERRZES REBRARLR
AETHEZEMNBRARZESTREE
RR-FBEEMB/ARBDEIERR 2 &
REmBAA -

BEENBREZREXEESH R
“HAREHSZTBEREEE (LTH
o BRiE - BHEREARBERES
EBxmELAEOMN XE -FE LB 8
2RAREH - FEETEREHER
7T E ERB30F KR - N EE E0FY
XERER -

MEESRPEARKMEYETS -
RiZEMeEEwERBEARAR (118
MEED Y —EBEETEEF -BMS
EERPEARKME (TR MM ER
BMEPEARANBEEHERELE
BEHEE (ER  BMNEESEXRET
fIREMN - FH BB LEBZFEMER
=S

FEEBARRAHITE EAmika Lan E
GUO = 2 A Fi o Br L Pt o) - BF 5 4
HARNFARNES SREEE TEHX
TR EBBETENER R EXHES
O BAEEEBE=ZFLEERBRE
G NEHE FTARARETE B -

* EREBS

RE=ZAZRARALT

20224 5 61



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo (“Ms Guo”), aged 37, has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from 9 July 2014 and is a director of certain Hong
Kong and BVI subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Guo is
responsible for the overall business development of the
company. Her current position is the Director of Business
Operations and is responsible for general operation
management, corporate development and planning matters.
Ms. Guo has graduated from Simon Fraser University in
Canada with a bachelor degree of Business Administration.
She also holds a MBA degree from The University of Hong
Kong.

Ms. Guo is the daughter of Mr. Guo Jiadi, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director and the ultimate
beneficial owner of a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Guo does not have
any other relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Guo does not hold directorship
in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. Wang Chao (“Mr. Wang"), aged 46, was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company with effect from
5 February 2018. Mr. Wang hold a bachelor’'s degree of
Laws from the Xiamen University*. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in companies that specialised in property
development industries for over ten years. Mr. Wang is
the general manager of Fujian Sinco since 1 January 2018
and responsible for the overall operation for the various
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC.

Mr. Wang does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang does
not hold directorship in other public listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (“Mr. Chan"), aged 45, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 9 July 2014. Mr. Chan was also appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member with practicing
certificate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over ten years of
working experience in the fields of accounting and audit,
corporate secretarial management and corporate governance.

He is currently the company secretary of China Sunshine
Paper Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2002), which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as
Northeast Electric Development Co., Limited (stock code: 42),
a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange respectively.

He was also an independent non-executive director of
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 1470), Champion Alliance International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1629) and SoftMedx Healthcare Limited
(formerly known as China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited)
(stock code: 648) from September 2017 to December 2018,
from November 2018 to February 2021 and from July 2014
to May 2022, respectively. Mr. Chan has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director for two companies,
namely, StarGlory Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
8213) since November 2016 and Beijing Media Corporation
Limited (stock code: 1000) since June 2020.

Mr. Chan is the director of MCI CPA Limited. Mr. Chan
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

BYFHITES

BT EE (REE]D 45 RN _-F
—HELANAERERBIUNNTE
ZE-REENEZERARBZERE
EerTRULRRZESENFMNEZES
B8 - [ﬁﬁ'ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁlk Beitg

(& éﬁ)lﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁ B -BAHESR
"B JrEﬂi“/\%(L%Eé‘% ZE@BNEHE

B E @u?QquEﬂi/"\ REE - RELE
iEu-I—&%E-I— j%‘%a%iil/}\&ﬂ:%
ERTEERS TFIELR -

IR AP RG AR EERERAR (&
5% £ 2002 - BAﬂﬁi/\ﬁﬁﬁ&tm)u&
RItERERERBROHER QT (BRH AR
42 A BEGEMAK L 2B AR AT K
PFRINEER ST RBRATER ™) 2
NAIME -

BhHhE-_ZE—tFLAZE=_ZE—N\F
+=—A- Q—E—J\EJr A%
T ANERBZE—NFEERAEC
T _FHAD EIHJ‘*EE*I/T\ TRRAE
BRAR (RS - 1470) ~ BB IE

f& B BR A B (B R 1629) A R R
EERRARAR (AIEPEECEES
BRG] (BRD R : 648) 2B FERTT
EE - RELCEZTAMBERTZE
VHERTEF BT —R"F+—A
R—E_ZFEXARDPIEZTALE
TRBERAT (MRS :8213) kitF
EEHEOHER 2 (MDA 1000) 2
B IEHITES -

RELERRZGFAMEBRERAAZ
EX -RAELEARAENESE  SRE
BE - TEHERBRBMECMER - K
EXREEIN RELEEBE=FKE
EREBRBIEMETARABELE
SRS -

RE=ZAZRARALT

2022F % 6 3



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

Ms. Ma Shujuan (“Ms. Ma"), aged 39, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 5 February
2018. Ms. Ma was also appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Ms. Ma graduated
from China University of Political Science and Laws* in
2007 with a Bachelor’'s degree in Laws. She also holds a
degree of Executive Master of Business Administration in
Finance from Shanghai Jiao Tong University*. Ms. Ma is
a practicing lawyer in the PRC. She has over ten years of
extensive experience in different kinds of legal and financial
works including corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions,
property investment, trust and commercial litigations. She is
currently a practising lawyer of Beijing King & Capital Law
Firm, (Shanghai Branch)*.

*  For identification purposes only

Ms. Ma does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Ma does not
hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic (“Mr. Lam”), aged 50, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 10 April 2021. Mr. Lam was also appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Lam is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a chartered financial
analyst of the CFA Institute and a certified financial risk
manager of the Global Association of Risk Professionals.
Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) Degree
in Accountancy in the City University of Hong Kong and
Mr. Lam worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong
for over seven years for assurance and business advisory
services and has worked in various finance roles in listed
companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Lam does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lam does not
hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Jiadi, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 12 December 2014.
The service contract had been renewed for a further term
of three years commencing on 12 December 2017 and 12
December 2020, respectively.

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, being the existing executive Director,
has entered into service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing on 9 July 2014. The
service contract had been renewed for a further term of
three years commencing on 9 July 2017 and 9 July 2020,
respectively.

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, being the existing independent
non-executive Director, has entered into service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on 9 July 2014.The service contracts had been renewed for a
further term of three years commencing on 9 July 2017 and
for a further term of two years commencing on 9 July 2020.

Mr. Wang Chao, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing on 5 February 2018
and the service contract had been renewed for a further term
of three years commencing on 5 February 2021.

Ms. Ma Shujuan, being the existing independent
non-executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 5 February 2018 and the service contract
had been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing on 5 February 2021.

Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic, who has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 10 April
2021, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 10 April 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, the Group had entered into
the following transactions with connected person which
constituted connected transaction under Listing Rules:

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All
Excel”) and provision of guarantees

On 21 September 2018, Grand Supreme Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) had
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Primary
Partner International Limited (“Primary Partner”, as vendor),
a company beneficially owned by Mr. Guo, to acquire the
entire equity interest in All Excel. The total consideration of
the acquisition was HK$1,500 million, which is satisfied by
i) cash of HK$200 million; ii) issue of promissory notes in
principal amount of HK$600 million; iii) issue of 485,436,893
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.412 per share
(equivalent to HK$200 million); and iv) issue of convertible
bond in principal amount of HK$500 million.

All Excel and its subsidiaries (collectively the “All Excel
Group”) are principally engaged in property development,
property investment and hotel operation business in the
PRC. Certain members of the All Excel Group have also
provided corporate guarantees (the “Corporate Guarantees”)
to certain entities (the “CP Group”) that were indirectly
wholly owned or controlled by Mr. Guo or Ms. Shum Xi Xia
("Ms. Shum”), the sister-in-law of Mr. Guo, to guarantee
the payment obligations of the bank loans (the “Guaranteed
Loans”) grant to the CP Group. The aggregated principal of
these Guaranteed Loans amounted to RMB1,410.3 million
before the acquisition.

The Corporate Guarantees will become contingent liability of
the Group upon the completion of the acquisition. In order
to protect the Group from the potential liabilities arising
from the Corporate Guarantees, on 21 December 2018,
the parties entered into a supplemental deed, pursuant to
which, (i) Mr. Guo has undertaken to indemnify the Group
in full regarding any loss incurred by the Group under the
Corporate Guarantees, and (ii) the amount due by the Group
to Mr. Guo and/or CP Group, the promissory note and the
convertible bonds issue to Primary Partner were charged
as first charge in favour of the Company to safeguard the
Group's interest. Details of term of the supplemental deed
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 31
December 2018.
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As Mr. Guo is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and a controlling shareholder of the Company, Primary
Partner is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Guo and therefore the acquisition
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as Ms. Shum is a deemed
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.21(1)(a),
each of the entities of the CP Group is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Guo
or Ms. Shum. As such, the on-going provision of Corporate
Guarantees upon the completion of the acquisition also
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The acquisition and provision of Corporate Guarantees were
approved at the Company’s special general meeting held
on 16 January 2019 and the acquisition was completed
on 30 January 2019. Further details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 September 2018,
31 December 2018, 16 January 2019 and 30 January 2019,
and the circular of the Company dated 26 December 2018,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the existing Corporate Guarantees
provided by the Group to the CP Group were set out as
follows:
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Borrower Lenders Guarantor principal Outstanding Interest rate date
&h L] BRA ENAeE REERE FlE BXAH
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Fujian Sandi Real Estate Huaxia Bank Co., Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate 690,000 562,000 5.40% 16 October 2028
Development Co., Limited Limited Development Co., Limited
("Fujian Sandi”) ("Fuzhou Gaojia")
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Fujian Sandi Hang Seng Bank Fuzhou Gaojia 420,000 310,800 6.98% 16 August 2023
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1,110,000 872,800

These Guaranteed Loans were also secured by the pledged of
certain properties held by the CP Group. None of these loans
is overdue.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken by the Group during the year are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company has complied with the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions. Other related party
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” disclosed above and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements headed “Related Party
Transactions”, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or in existence during the
reporting period.

Mr. Guo Jiadi ("Mr. Guo”) is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Company and a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Guo carries out property development
and investment businesses and other businesses in the PRC
through companies controlled by him, including but not
limited to Fujian Sandi Property Development Limited (“Fujian
Sandi”) and Fuzhou Gaojia. Fuzhou Gaojia had become an
indirect wholly-owner subsidiary of the Company since 30
January 2019.

To deal with the potential conflict of interests between
Mr. Guo and the Company, Mr. Guo; Fujian Sandi;
Fuzhou Gaojia and the Company had entered into a deed
of non-competition dated 1 January 2015 (the “2015
Deed”). Each of Mr. Guo, Fujian Sandi and Fuzhou Gaojia;
(the “Covenantor(s)”) has given his/its non-competition
undertakings in favour of the Company on the terms set out
below:

(@) The Covenantors will not, and will procure his/its close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage,
invest or be involved in any manner any business which
competes with the business of the Company from time
to time with the following exceptions:

(i) the holding of shares of a company which is
engaged in the business of acquisition of land
for development, building construction and
acquisition of real properties (including projects
with construction in progress) in the PRC for sale,
lease or other investment purposes (the “Property
Investment Business”) and whose shares are listed
on a recognised stock exchange provided that
such shares do not exceed 10% voting rights at
the general meeting of the company;

(i) the engagement in the Property Investment
Business through the Group;

(iii) the acquisition or holding of real property for
self-use;
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(iv) the property projects that the Covenantors
have already engaged as at the date of the

undertakings;

(v) the engagement of property projects in any
province of the PRC in which the Group has
not considered, planned to or invested in the
development of its Property Investment Business;

and

(vi) the engagement of property projects in any
province of the PRC in which the Group has
considered, planned to or invested in the
development of its Property Investment Business
subject to the right of first refusal granted to the
Group (on the terms set out in the undertakings).

Since the date of the 2015 Deed, the scope of the
operation of the Group was expanded. Therefore,
Mr. Guo and the Company has entered into a new
Non-competition Deed on 15 March 2017 (the “2017
Deed”) to replace the 2015 Deed. Further details was
disclosed in the announcement dated 15 March 2017.
Set out below is a summary of the principal terms of

the 2017 Deed and relevant information.

Mr. Guo (for himself and as the agent for his close
associates) irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes

in favour of the Company that:

(a) he shall and shall procure that his close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in,
participate in, whether on his own account or with
each other or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person or company or otherwise holds or
owns any interest in any manner in the PRC in any
business that may compete, directly or indirectly,

with the Group Business;

(b) he shall provide all the information that the
Company reasonably considers to be necessary to
enforce the undertakings given by him under the
2017 Deed and would make an annual declaration
on compliance with the 2017 Deed in the annual

report of the Company; and
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he and/or his close associates shall abstain from
voting in the Board meetings and the general
meetings of the Company in relation to any matter
in connection with 2017 Deed.

Mr. Guo further undertakes to the Company that he
shall not (and shall procure his close associates not to):

(a)

solicit or entice away any customer, contractor,
supplier, director, employee or consultant of the
Group (or any potential customer, contractor,
supplier with whom the Group has already entered
into negotiations); and/or

use, disclose to anyone or publish, or allow
the disclosure or publication of, the non-public
information in relation to the Group (trade secrets,
business strategies or otherwise) that he or his
close associates received or may receive.

If any New Business Opportunity is made available to
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates, he and/or his close
associates:

(a)

(b)

shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company making an informed
evaluation of the New Business Opportunity; and

shall not pursue or otherwise participate in the
new business opportunity in any manner unless
and until the New Business Opportunity has been
declined by the Group, provided that Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates cannot pursue the New
Business Opportunity on terms more favourable
than those offered to the Group.
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If Mr. Guo and/or any of his close associates wishes to
sell any interest in the Guo Business (same meanings as
defined in the announcement dated 15 March 2017) (in
whole or in part) to any third party (the “Opportunity
for Sale”), Mr. Guo will offer and will procure that his
close associates to offer the Opportunity for Sale to the
Company and the Company shall have a right of first
refusal in respect of such Opportunity for Sale. In this
regard, Mr. Guo and/or his close associates:

o shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company to reasonably evaluate
the Opportunity for Sale; and

o shall be at liberty to offer the Opportunity for
Sale to third parties if the Opportunity for Sale is
declined by the Group, provided that the terms
thereof shall not be more favourable than those
provided to the Group.

The Non-competition Undertakings do not apply to the
following:

(a) the same property projects excluded from the
2015 Deed (being those property projects of
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates already in
existence as at the date of the 2015 Deed);

(b) the hotel business in connection with three existing
hotels located in Fujian Province which has been
engaged by Mr. Guo (and/or his closes associates)
prior to the Group’s proposed engagement in the
hotel sector;

(c) the holding of or being interested in, directly or
indirectly, by Mr. Guo and/or his close associates
any shares in any company, provided that (i) such
shares are listed on a recognized stock exchange;
and (ii) the total number of such shares held by
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates does not
amount to more than 5% of the issued shares
carrying voting rights;
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(d) the engagement in any business via the holding of
the equity interests through the Group;

(e) the acquisition or holding of property by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates for their respective
self-use;

(f) the engagement in the Group Business in any
province in the PRC where the Group has not
considered or planned to carry out the Group
Business; or

(g) (subject to the provisions regarding the New
Business Opportunity) the engagement in the
Group Business in any province in the PRC where
the Group has considered or planned to carry out
the Group Business.

The obligations of Mr. Guo under 2017 Deed shall be
terminated upon the earlier of:

(@) the Shares ceasing to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; and

(b) Mr. Guo and his close associates together ceasing
to control 30% (or such percentage as may from
time to time specified in the Listing Rules to be
regarded as a controlling shareholder) or more of
the voting rights at any general meeting of the
Company.

During the Year and up to the date of this report,
Mr. Guo declares that he complied with all the terms
and conditions as set out in 2015 Deed and 2017 Deed.

Save as disclosed, during the Year and up to the date
of this report, no Directors are considered to have
an interest in a business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules,
other than those businesses for which the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interest of
the Company and/or the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

EERFETBRAERKRSG A
EROREEE2RBRAXR

ng::¢+:ﬂi+—ﬁ'%$&
PiN/N ZITH A B R A 2k B AR
&@(m%ﬁ?ﬂ%%SﬂiifﬁU %&Hﬁ
mﬂ;kﬁ‘J(W;‘%?&Hﬂ S &A1) EEXVER) 2 I&
- EERD REREFR  BEE)ERE
%&Hﬁf1|$1§|J%XV*B%7&%8“*B%D
/\K AR (BEREESRREE
{6 1 4B B8 (& S B 1E SR B 2 1 2 ]k
) (iR IEEFH & B E 1§ F 352K
BARNRTFE ZE L MATEE 8% ¢ 2i(iii)Aa
RIS 08 BIF &+ 2 2 2ESF BN
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(a) RALXARDREEARDZER

Number Approximate

Number of of share  percentage
Number  underlying options of the issued
Name of Director Capacity of shares shares held capital
HERA FEBERE HERTRAE
EEns EL) BOHE gE 2B ZHNE
(note 3) (note 4)
(H1323) (Hiit4)
Mr. Guo Interest of controlled corporation  3,386,905,895 1,213,592,233 - 90.41%
(note 1) (note 2)
BrE XEEEER (Hisz1) (Hf3z2)
Beneficial owner - - 2,000,000 0.04%
ExBEBA
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%
Amika Lan E Guor+ EZHEAA
Ms. Ma Shujuan Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%
SRBRL EaBEBA
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These shares were held by the controlled corporations of
Mr. Guo as follows:
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et -

ZERMD B L 2 TEEE R
GE U

No. of Shares

Name of controlled corporation FREIEEE R4 & B
United Century International Limited (“United Century”) United Century International Limited

([United Century])

2,581,054,801

Primary Partner International Limited (“Primary Partner”) Primary Partner International Limited

([Primary Partner]) 485,436,893
King Partner Holding Limited (“King Partner") King Partner Holding Limited

([King Partner ) 320,414,201
Total @t 3,386,905,895

All the above corporations were incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Guo.

This represents the maximum number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bonds issued to Primary
Partner on 30 January 2019.

The share options were granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme (as defined below), details of which
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme"” below.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 5,088,207,546, which
has been used for the calculation of the approximate
percentage.
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(b) Long positions in associated corporation

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor
the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short position in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, otherwise
notified to the Company and Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code. Nor any of the Directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during

the reporting period.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, other than the interests of a
Director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
under the heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interest and short position in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, the following persons (not being a
Director or the chief executive officer of the Company) have
an interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares
which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Shares issued capital
HERTREZ
EENS B/ BEutE RAHE HERAHE BRAB I
Long Position
e
United Century Beneficial owner 2,581,054,801 - 50.73%
United Century EnBEA
King Partner Beneficial owner 320,414,201 - 6.30%
King Partner EREEA
Primary Partner Beneficial owner 485,436,893 1,213,592,233 33.40%
Primary Partner EnBEA
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Person having a Security interest - 2,604,479,555 51.20%
in shares (note 1)
FRESHEEREMTAF R EEEREG AL
(H#t1)
Chance Talent Management Ltd Person having a Security interest - 2,604,479,555 51.20%

Chance Talent Management Ltd

in shares (note 1)
R EEEREG AL
(H7t1)
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Notes:

1 It represents security interest held by Chance Talent
Management Limited (“Chance Talent”). Chance Talent's
intermediate holding company is CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, and its ultimate holding company is Central
Huijin Investment Limited.

2 As at 31 December 2022, the number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 5,088,207,546, which has been
used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during
the reporting period are set out below:

(@) Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which is approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 16
September 2011 and expired on 15 September 2021.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the
Company’s shares subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. All options granted but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.
The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share
option schemes operated by the Company.
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.

Without prior approval from the Company's
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares to be issued
under the options of the New Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue.

Options may be exercised at any time not exceeding
a period 6 years from the date on which the share
options is accepted. The exercise price is determined by
the Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option were
determined by the Board at the time of grant.

46,000,000 share options (“Batch 1 Options”) under
the Share Option Scheme granted on 22 February 2016
and the vested option will be exercisable at an exercise
price of HK$0.285 per share in accordance with the
following schedule:

25%: from 22 February 2016
25%: from 22 February 2017
25%: from 22 February 2018
25%: from 22 February 2019
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On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
(“Batch 2 Options”) were granted to the directors,
consultants and employees of the Group at a cash
consideration of HK$1 per grantee which entitle the
grantees to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420 per share.
The exercise price is determined with reference to the
highest of (i) the closing price of HK$0.420 per share
as quoted in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of approximately HK$0.412 per share as
quoted in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.01 per
ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company.
The validity period of the Batch 2 Options is 6 years
from the date of grant (i.e. 24 April 2018 to 23 April
2024 (both days inclusive)). The vesting period of the
Batch 2 Options is as follows:

40% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April
2018,

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April
2019; and

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2020

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of movements in the number of outstanding HEHANERETEIE T BARITE
share options under the Share Option Scheme during ZEREHBEYFBLOT

the reporting period are as follows:

Nurber of shares options
BRERA
Cancelled/
Granted  Exercised Expired Exercise
Beginning during during during Endof  priceper  Date of grant of Exercisable
oftheyear  theyear  theyear  theyear the year share  share option period
KEER  BEER  AEER Sk Bk
REEY b ik EE/ER EX & RiRE &8
Directors EH

M. Guo 3 2,400,000 - - (2,400,000) 0 HKS0285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
028557 ERE E-RECAITIAE
ZRZTIR ZBIIEZACT-A
2,000,000 - - - 2000000  HKSO.420 24 April 2018 24 Apiil 2018 10
23 April 204
0420%T “F\§ R \ERR-TEAE
MAZtEA  —E-MEMA-TZH
Mir. Wang Chao I8k 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) 0 HKS0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
02855 ERE E-RECACTIEE
ZRZTIR ZBIIEZACE-B
Ms. Amika Lan £ Guo ~ Amika Lan £ Guo 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note Rtk 23 April 2024
042047 3\ ZE-)\EMACTEAR
MAZtEA  —E-MEMA-TZR
s. Ma Shujuan EMRLL 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKSO.A20 24 April 2018 24 Apiil 2018 10
23 April 2024
042047 “F\§ R \FRRA-TRAE
MAZtEA  —E-MEMA-TZR

Sub-total it 16,200,000 - - (5,400,000) 10,800,000
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Nurber of shares options
BREHE
Cancelled/
Granted  Exercised Expired Exercise
Beginning during during during Endof  priceper  Date of grant of Exercisable
oftheyear  theyear  theyear  theyear theyear share share option period
KEER  KEER AEER Sk BR#
REEY R i dH/ER EX & RURH T8
Employees 5

Sandy Lan Hua Guo~ Sandy Lan Hua Guo 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note (W) 23 April 2024
04207 “E-NE CE-N\ERACTRAE
MAZTEA  ZE-REMA-T=H
Daisy LanLan Guo~ Daisy Lan Lan Guo 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note) ) 23 Apil 2004
04207 “E-NE CE-N\ERACTRAE
MAZTEA  ZE-REMA-T=H
Stephen Zhen Hang Guo Stephen ZhenHang 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKSO.420 24 April 2018 24 Apiil 2018 10
(Note Guo (4 23 April 2024
04207 “E-NE CE-N\ERACTRAE
MAZTEA  ZE-REMA-T=H
Other employees S 17,600,000 - 0 (17,600,000) 0 HKS0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
21 February 2022
0.285%7 “E-8F ZERECACTIBE
i s = R St oy ol
28,000,000 - - - 28000000  HKSO420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 Apiil 2024
042047 “E-NE CE-N\ERACTRRE
MAZTEA  ZE-REMAZT=H

Sub-total it 58,800,000 - 0 (17,600,000) 41,200,000

Total it 75,000,000 - 0 (23,000,000 52,000,000

Note: Mr. Guo is an executive Director, the Chairman and
a substantial Shareholder, and Ms. Amika Lan E Guo,
Ms. Sandy Lan Hua Guo, Ms. Daisy Lan Lan Guo and
Mr. Stephen Zhen Hang Guo are associates of Mr. Guo.
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(b) Convertible Bonds

On 30 January 2019, the convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$500 million (the “CB") was
issued to Primary Partner, which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Guo, at interest rate of 1% per annum with
conversion rights to convert into a maximum of
1,213,592,233 shares of the Company at conversion
price of HK$0.412 per share.

Details of the CB are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company disclosed above, at no time during the reporting
period, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of
the employee’s merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as
an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees of
the Group, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above and note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme for Hong Kong employees and participating in social
insurance for its employees in the PRC in accordance with
the relevant PRC regulations, the Group has not operated
any other retirement benefits schemes for the Group’s
employees. Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme
in operation for the reporting period are set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.
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(b) FIARMES
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the
Group after 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’'s corporate governance
practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
accompanying the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
INFORMATION AND DIRECTOR’S INSURANCE

Pursuant to the memorandum of association and Bye-laws of
the Company, the Directors and other officers, for the time
being acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices
or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain
through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the reporting period,
which provides appropriate cover for certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to the existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of

its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the best knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company'’s issued shares at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent
non-executive Director, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process and internal controls. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the audit process and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee which comprised Mr. Chan
Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Lam Wai Fung,
Dominic, all being independent non-executive Directors, has
reviewed the accompanying financial statements prior to
their publication.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the reporting period have been audited by Moore. Moore will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Moore as auditor of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Guo Jiadi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBAMBEES

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Shareholders of
China Sandi Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 95 to 264, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPAs Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

86 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

Moore Stephens CPA Limited g X
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, 2] E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong 7% E
g
T +852 2375 3180 B
F +8522375 3828 w e
n ==
www.moore.hk = =

BHEZAZERERATIIMCERR
(RERZZMAEAZZFRLE])

ER

BB BZEINNEISE264EMHE =
HIERERAR ([ERF]) RENEBEA
Al(ABIEEE]) WEAMB®RE &
FERER-ZZEZZF+A=+—HH
REBMRARE HEZBLEFEN
RABERREMEERKER LA ER
BEMARMGABRERER UREKEAY
BREME(BEIZESHBRZIBME) -

BARR SGEVBRRERERTES
AEAg ((BEETHA®]) BMHW
FEVBHREE ([BEHBKREE
ANDEEmMA TR SEEER_-F
T CF+T A=+ -—HNEEEBRR
K BEEEHEZALFENGEANK
RBELREERENE YDERFER
ARGz RBERERZERE -

RRNER
BAMEREBEESEFAMASHEMNER
EATEA ([FABEFER]) ETER -
BPEZSEATAENEEE EAR
SIZBMR B FRAMBRRAENE
EIEshEE—TEBL - REFE G
fAgBRmOEXREFABERE TR ([E
PRl > HABLR BEEE - YEE
TERTATHNEMERBEEME K
PItEE  RPMESHNEFT BRIELTRE
FEE AR MNET B R IRHER -



Key Audit Matters

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBA®HRES

ERELER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FREZEEISEIERMAEZEH
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the RAUABEGAVEBRENEEZZ A
consolidated financial statements of the current period. EEMNFEHE SLFTEHEERMERE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit BESAUERRMEAEERBERE I
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and Moy LEEENREHRER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
HREZER

Valuation of investment properties

REWYXRIGE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined
with the estimates associated with determining
the fair value. As disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties of the Group were shopping malls,
hotels, office units, commercial units, residential
units, kindergartens, car parking spaces and
investment properties under construction in the
Peoples Republic of China (the “PRC") amounted
to RMB10,734,280,000 as at 31 December 2022,
representing 41% of the Group's total assets.
Net loss on changes in fair value of investment
properties of RMB7,111,000 were recognised in
the profit or loss for the reporting period.
BPSREMEGESERAREZETE  RAAR
REMEZEBRLBRBGEEVBRREER KA
AREFERTFEERZ GG - Re M BmKK
HI7TARE R T-—F+-_A=+—H &
SECREMERRAFEARKANME (THE])
ZEYEEG BE WABAM HMESBAMEE
B #HRE FESREEREVEARE
10,734,280,0007C * 1 EEEBEEZ41% °
BREHAREDNELATEEHFEBARE
7,111,0007C 2 R Bz #ER ©

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRONMEEBERERSE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

BB ERENENGEEAERSNREF B

o Understanding the managements process for
reviewing and evaluating the work of the Valuer;

s THEBEMNEHRAMEEMNIIERANE
=2

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o FHALEMBERET O RTEES

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
about the valuation techniques, the performance
of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted in the valuations;

s MEEMTHEEEMLERT WETHHRR -
HERARANERRR
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BYRBEMBES

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BREXRER

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

REYENGE(F)

All of the Group’s investment properties are
stated at fair value based on valuations performed

connected with the Group (the “Valuer”). The fair
value of the completed investment properties was
determined by adopting the income capitalisation
approach and direct comparison approach
which are dependent on certain key inputs,
including term yield, unit rent, adjustment made
to account for differences in location and level
and analysis of recent market sales evidence of
similar properties. The fair value of investment
properties under construction was determined by
adopting the residual method approach which are
dependent on gross development value, estimated
construction costs to completion and comparable
land price. Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
e ESENREVMEHENHE SE£EH
mEEN B L EEMAERM ([HER]) ETNMHE
BRATEINR - B TKRENEZ A TELERA
WABRERBZLEE  RIZFHARKRLO®R - &
UHE ANEMKFEEMERABREEDE
ZIHMSHERBEOMEE T IZRAREE
EoHEEREMEZAFEDRAREE  BIE
BEREE TIZMAREXNARAILLER LM
BRET HEMARERMEEIEGABIEZ
FHIBEREE MBS mR M 173 EE -
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HAREXER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRONMEEBERERSE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of the investment
by an independent professional valuer not properties included:

BAERFEREDEEEESZENEF B

Engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist in evaluating the valuation performed
by the Valuer, including the reasonableness of
significant unobservable inputs and the accuracy
of the source data adopted by the management
of the Group and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to existing tenancy
profiles, market data for a selection of investment
properties, publicly available information of similar
comparable properties and our knowledge of the
real estate industry;

ZREBMNAMAEEER BB A G EETH
fmE EREemELs EXETEELMGE
BiPTERAMEX T A B RE ABURN G IE N &K
RBENEEERREHESRR EEREME
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBA®HRES

Key Audit Matters (continued) BREXSHE(E)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HAREXZER EMELRSNTEEAREXSER

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

REWF1G1E (F)

Our procedures in relation to the NRV of the
inventories of properties included:

B EFEN R ZEERFENEF B

o Obtaining an understanding on the managements
process of determining of the NRV of the
inventories of properties;

s THEEEEEVEGFEAEZRFEMIBIE

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future costs to completion of the properties, on
a sample basis, by comparing it to the actual
development cost of similar completed properties
of the Group; and

o IATERYMENMAREKANSEL  HHAR
MEBZEMER SEERUECTIVENE
RN AETER &

o Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling prices used by management with reference
to market prices achieved in the same projects or
by comparable properties, including an evaluation
of the appropriateness of the comparable
properties used by management of the Group
based on our knowledge of the Group’s business
and real estate industry in the PRC.

e ZEHAEBXFELBYECRENTISER
AEEEEEANAAHEEBNAER B85
i EEETEREERY EEEEBRTHE
FHETENMBMERNAELEENEE
1 o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBAMBEES

HAREXER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRONMEEBERERSH

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BREXER

Valuation of inventories of properties

WEFELE

We identified the assessment of net realisable Our procedures in relation to the NRV of the
value (the “NRV") of the Group’s inventories inventories of properties included:
of properties as a key audit matter due to the HMIMMEFEM AR FEMNEFBHE -

significant estimates involved in the determination
of the NRV of these properties. As disclosed in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had completed properties for sale
of RMB4,037,326,000 and properties under
development for sale of RMB8,934,231,000 (the
inventories of properties) as at 31 December
2022, which are situated in the PRC.

BPER ESEEYMEFENAZIRFE ([ #
REFEEDFHABREREE  NERETZSE

WMEM 20T E R —_F+-_A=+—
H BEXfBEZEBMNRFPEMNGFEERIWEA
R 4,037,326, 000t R FEHERIPYWEARE
8,934,231,000C ([EHFE]) -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, management of the
Group determined the NRV of the inventories
of properties by reference to the estimated
selling prices of the inventories of properties,
which takes into account a number of factors
including prevailing real estate market conditions
in the PRC, estimated costs to completion,
and costs necessary to make the sales. Based
on management’s estimation of the NRV of
the inventories of properties, the write-down
of inventories of properties amounted to
RMB7,763,000 as at 31 December 2022.

Wnr e M B HREMF4F R ESEEEE
REEMEFENF B FER  2RZENE
FENRGEE HbPZRZEAEZ BETH
WIRITEMEMSMRRL TLZ2EARARIEE
ZWERR BRIEEEBUHMEFENRAI R F
BERNEG RZEZZF+-A=+—H ¥
FEZHBERR/ARE?,763,0007T °
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Obtaining an understanding on the managements
process of determining of the NRV of the
inventories of properties;

TREREETDEEETLREENBE

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future cost to completion of the properties, on
a sample basis, by comparing it to the actual
development cost of similar completed properties
of the Group; and

TR ENGREAANSIEN TR
MEEZEDERE EEFERUETIVENER
FEKAETHR : &

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling prices used by management with reference
to market prices achieved in the same projects or
by comparable properties, including an evaluation
of the appropriateness of the comparable
properties used by management of the Group
based on our knowledge of the Group’s business
and real estate industry in the PRC.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 31 March 2022.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

BYRBEMBES

HfihEE
EEEHE T - F+_A=+—H
HTFENGAUERERE S — B %26
B ZREMR —_E - _F=A=1+—
AZERRBERERBER -

Hit &

BERREFATHMEN -HMEHNE
RERMEEN ETEBEEEMBE R
R N B APT R L B A AZ BB RS

BMHEEAMBBRERNBEALLTERER
ER  RPTIHZEFEBERER
EAEANEE S -

BABRMEREMBRENERZ - B
MEXRMEEMER ELBRES
TREMEHRTREAMBRRAR
MEEZBRETMTENBERAFEERXN
ABAEUTFFEERERBRANER -
ERBMHTOIE IREMABSE
MERTFEEAHEREL  RMAFTR

EZEE st E - RPVRBERRS -

BERARESRAEERENGREMHK
BRAEREZEE

BERAESARERBEEGMIAS
BHENBEERHREEMRE LR BE
PR BERERBGEEVBTRE AT
RAMBHRRFELEEMAFHRER
UREZEERRREGE BB RERAL
ZHARES  AEHEEVBERRIE
RPN IKGE R MG M E R RRR AL -

ERBEGAMBHREAKF EFAAF
fh BERERELENEN  LHEERIT
MTITREEFELLBERNER UL
EARELERSTEMR KRIEFEH
BER BEEEBRIFLLE  HHEHR
MERNERTR -

RE=ZAZRARALT

20224 5 91



Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBAMBEES

The audit committee of the Company assists the directors
of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBAMBEES

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Yu Ngong
Practising Certificate Number: P06734

Hong Kong
31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

SREREBEREMEZEKRER

For the year ended 37 December 2022 #BZ_—F - —F 1+ =-H=+—HIFEF

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aF AR¥FT ARETF T

Revenue W25

Goods and services o R R 5 3,333,142 2,783,154

Rental of investment properties KEMEHES 5 115,826 144,400
Total revenue @UT A 3,448,968 2,927,554
Cost of sales and services 3HE & IR TS Ak AN (2,491,971) (2,113,085)
Gross profit EA 956,997 814,469
Other income H A A 7 7.414 6,718
Other gains and losses Hib e R EE 8 (38,670) 33,596
Recovery of trade receivables H 5 & W R IE Hf 8E Y =]

written-off - 8,141
Change in fair value of investment &2 A FEEF)

properties 17 (7,111) 9,499
Change in fair value of derivative AR ESRZITETR

component of convertible bond AN X = =F ) 28 101,430 121,832
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENE QR 2 BB 30 (401,989) -
Selling and marketing expenses HERZERY (202,180) (218,415)
Administrative expenses ITHRA X (125,700) (213,980)
Finance costs A& B A 9 (117,778) (178,165)
Profit before tax K & BT v A 10 172,413 383,695
Income tax expense PTG TR 11 (158,137) (178,277)
Profit for the year NEE A 14,276 205,418
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

REREBEREMEZE KSR

For the year ended 37 December 2022 B ZEZ-—F - —F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2022 2021
—E-= T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B it ARETF T AR For
Other comprehensive income Hit 2wk =
Item that may be reclassified Rt BT HE Bz
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange differences arising BMBINBREREE 2
on translation of foreign VE H ZERE
operations 6,276 (6,696)
Total comprehensive income for REZEHEABE
the year 20,552 198,722
Profit for the year attributable to: LA~ AT EIGAEE T
— Owners of the Company - KN NRIERS A 42,103 169,707
— Non-controlling interests - FERER (27,827) 35,711
14,276 205,418
Total comprehensive income LT ATREEZEKA
attributable to: HAEE
— Owners of the Company BYVN/NISIE 7 ¥ =N 48,379 163,011
- Non-controlling interests — JEPEAR RS (27,827) 35,711
20,552 198,722
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRREZF
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARED) 14 0.83 3.34
Diluted (RMB cents) BE(AR%ED) 14 0.16 0.96
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R

37 December 2022 R-ZE-——#+_-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B i AR¥FT ARETF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENEKE 15 57,694 62,106
Investment properties "EME 17 10,734,280 10,564,740
Properties under development BRERBYE 18 - -
Deferred tax assets BEEHRIBEE 19 74,601 56,373
10,866,575 10,683,219
Current assets RBEE
Inventories of properties MEFE 20 12,971,557 15,993,608
Contract costs B AR AR 24 76,682 121,063
Trade and other receivables and JrE UK BR 3R K2 H A E YR IE
prepayments VA K B AN 518 21 886,185 924,345
Deposits for land use rights GTEERTYMEZ LM
for properties under development FBHRERS
for sale 105,689 105,689
Prepaid income tax T FTIEH 91,904 187,526
Amounts due from related JE U FE 8 A B 5 TE
companies 38(a) 66,322 311,644
Amounts due from non-controlling & U Fff /&8 A 7] FE 12 AR f& 58
shareholders of subsidiaries g 38(a) 257,550 559,586
Restricted/pledged bank deposits ZERE BB RITER 22 487,926 509,164
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRERS 22 310,947 592,854
15,254,762 19,305,479
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and JE T BE B LA K2 L 4th JE <
accruals RENETER 23 2,208,681 2,396,604
Contract liabilities BHEE 24 8,977,138 10,271,377
Income tax payable BT TSR 482,271 444,089
Amounts due to related companies &< & A & 1A 38(a) 10,873 730,337
Amount due to ultimate controlling  J& 1o &% 48 $5 JR I B8 3k 78
shareholder 38(a) 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings due BITREMEE—
within one year — F N F|Ef 25 1,933,730 1,798,570
13,712,319 15,740,603
Net current assets REBEERE 1,542,443 3,564,876
Total assets less current EEHERARBESE
liabilities 12,409,018 14,248,095
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR &R

37 December 2022 R-_FE—-——#+—-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aF ARETF T AR For
Capital and reserves ERREE
Share capital A& 2 26 42,890 42,890
Reserves Eke 4,838,740 4,793,162
Equity attributable to owners of RAEER ANELER
the Company 4,881,630 4,836,052
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 192,711 269,609
Total equity B 5,074,341 5,105,661
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Amount due to a related company  JEf{f — R #8:E Q& FIA 38(a) 223,750 443,750
Debt component of MR ES 2 EHE D
convertible bond 28 404,491 344,973
Derivative component of Tﬁ%ﬁ%‘?}z
convertible bond PTHEITAE 28 6,179 102,071
Promissory note R R 29 519,026 455,357
Deferred tax liabilities RILFHIBE A& 19 1,394,941 1,389,621
Bank and other borrowings — WITREMBEE -
due after one year — FE 1% 5 H 25 4,786,290 6,406,662
7,334,677 9,142,434
12,409,018 14,248,095
The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 264 FBOSE2E4B VAW BHEN ST ==

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 31 December 2022 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Guo Jiadi
B3
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRBHEX

For the year ended 37 December 2022 #ZE_—F - —F+=-H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FLAREARG
Share-based Property Non-
Share Share compensation Capital ~ Merger ~ Statutory  Translation Other ~revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits  Subdotal  interests Total
Rt WRHAEE g aft HE #8 B NERER & FER
it BE ZRERE L] L L] L] e e & it & it
RMB000  RMBOO0  AMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  AMB000  RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMBO0  RMB'000  AMB'OO(
NEEFT AEETT ARETT ABETT NEETR NEETT NEETL \EEFT AEETT AEETT AR £
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
]
At 1 January 2021 HW-8z-%-5-A 4881 833,35 12981 705 (1636270 195414 (7288) 120733 1008997 3008148 4672807 233898 4,906,705
Profit for the year REREH - - - - - - - - - Te9%07 169707 /1T 205418
Exchange differences arising on translation EpEEY
of foreign operations - - - - - - (6,6%) - - - (6,696) - (6,6%)
Total comprehensive (expense) income TEERA(HR)UALE
for the year - - - - - - (6,89) - - 169707 163,011 B 198,722
Evercise of share options fifeimE 9 bt} (118) - - - - - - - 134 - PES
Lapse of share options ERESN - - 821 - - - - - - 87 - - -
At 31 December 2021 42890 833,698 12,03 725 (1636270 195414 (13984) 1207336 1008997 3178682 4,836,052 269,609 5,105,661
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 42,103 2103 (21811) 14276
Fuchange differences arising on translation of EEERE
foreign operations - - - - - - 6,276 - - - 6,276 - 6,276
Total compreensive (expense) income FERRE(RR)WAGE
for the year - - - - - - 6,276 - - 2103 48319 (27.877) 20,552
Evercise of share options i - - - - (2.801) - (2,801
Lapse of share options ERESN - - 2801) - - - {907 (49,0m)
At 31 December 2022 it 3 o o 42890 833,698 9235 705 (1636270 195414 (7708) 120733 1008997 320785 4,881,630 192,711 507434
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREHR

For the year ended 37 December 2022 BZE - F - —4#F+-H=+—HIFFEZF

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve represents deemed contribution from equity
owner regarding to the waiver of loan for funding the
construction of an investment property in 2012.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share
capital of the combining entities against cash consideration
paid and other considerations issued by the China Sandi
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) upon completion of
business combination under common control.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred
from net profit for the year of the subsidiaries established in
the Peoples Republic of China (the “PRC”) charged on the
subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial statements) in accordance
with the relevant PRC laws until the statutory service reaches
50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve cannot be reduced except for in setting off the
accumulated losses or increasing capital.

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, comprises of:

(i) the difference arising from the share premium reduction
which was being effective and approved by the Bermuda
Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016. Under the
share premium reduction, entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company as
at 29 February 2016 in the sum of RMB3,049,440,000
be reduced, with part of the credit arising therefrom
being applied to offset the accumulated losses of the
Company in the sum of RMB1,824,634,000 in full
and the remaining balance of the credit in the sum of
RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the other reserve
of the Company.

(i)  RMB17,470,000 debited to other reserve of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019
represents the difference between the amount of
consideration shares issued and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest acquired plus the waiver
of amount due to non-controlling shareholder of
RMB38,588,000. The waiver of amount due to
non-controlling shareholder is a non-cash transaction of
the Group.

Property revaluation reserve represents the accumulated
amount of the differences between the carrying amount
and fair value of right-of-use assets and properties under
development upon transfer of such assets to investment
properties, and the related deferred tax effects recognized in
respect of such differences.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERERER

For the year ended 37 December 2022 B2 —F - —#+-H=+—HIFE
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ANREFT ARETTT
Operating activities RETH
Profit before tax B A5 AL g A 172,412 383,695
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs A& A 117,778 178,165
Bank interest income RITH B WA (3,057) (3,494)
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERREITE
equipment 5,908 8,424
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE - 12,074
Recovery of trade receivables written-off W 15 e LT B K 8 - (8,141)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE 401,989 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and THEDE HE M
equipment R BB 404 162
Loss on disposal of an investment HEREMEZEE
property - 237
Change in fair value of investment REMEZ N TFEE
properties 7,111 (9,499)
Change in fair value of financial assets EATFERAERE
at fair value through profit or loss ([BZRAFEFAER]
("FVTPL") ZHMBEEZAFE
- - (2,587)
Change in fair value of derivative AMBRER 2 TETA
component of convertible bond Bz N EEE (101,430) (121,832)
Gain on early termination of lease RAMRIEHE 2 e - (86)
Exchange loss (gain) ME 5 B8 (Meas) 38,292 (32,292)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERERER

For the year ended 37 December 2022 &

2 oF -

Fr_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFIT
Operating cash flows before movements LBEECEEAZ
in working capital KERSME 639,407 404,826
Decrease (increase) in inventories of MEFERD (EM)
properties 1,310,737 (845,889)
Increase in trade and other receivables and & Y BR 5% Kz L 4t 8 Uk 5 18 LA
prepayments R IERTFRIEIE N (200,175) (60,754)
Increase in deposits for land use rights for &R R Y% 2 + (P F
properties under development for sale FEYR 4 18 N - (105,689)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other FEASTBR 20 DA N2 B fb JE (< 3R 1B
payables and accruals NEE RN CHEY) 693,558 (367,584)
Increase (decrease) increase in contract &S XA Gl )
costs 44,381 (49,056)
Decrease (increase) in contract liabilities AXHaER g (1,329,144) 2,612,243
Cash generated from (used in) operations BTG (FTA)IRS 1,158,764 1,588,097
Income taxes paid EATFEH (37,241) (135,372)
Net cash generated from operating KRETHMERESFE
activities 1,121,523 1,452,725
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERERER

For the year ended 37 December 2022 B2 —F - —#+-H=+—HIFE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fr AREFIT
Investing activities REES
Bank interest received 2R 1T F 2 3,057 3,494
Proceeds on disposal of property, plantand HEWE - BWENEHZ
equipment Fr 1S 38 - 88
Proceeds on disposal of investment HEREMEZFIENRIEA
properties - 4,063
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets at HERAFEFAEBTEZ
FVTPL IS EE 2 RS IA - 2,643
Advance to related companies Bl RN E=E - (1,025,234)
Repayment from related companies FERRIER 49,227 1,260,696
Advance to non-controlling shareholders of A B /& A 7] JEFE A% AR B 24 3%
subsidiaries (29) (692,231)
Repayment from non-controlling Bt BB X B FEHE AR AR EBRE K
shareholders of subsidiaries 302,064 229,238
Placement of restricted/pledged bank FEXRE,/BIEERT
deposits T (1,481,425) (456,085)
Withdrawal of restricted/pledged bank RIEZR G,/ BHEIFRT
deposits 75 1,502,663 148,491
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E®% - WE L& H (1,073) (3,647)
Payments for investment properties REMENK (118,307) (718,155)
Repayment from third parties FZFEN (2,500) 20,500
Advance to third parties ME=F K - (20,835)
Net cash inflow on disposals of subsidiaries H&MB R A 2R EHEA
FRE (66,603) -
Net cash used in investing activities BREETBMABRSFEEE 320,279 (1,246,974)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERERER

For the year ended 37 December 2022 &

BFoF==

=

Fr_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARKEFIT
Financing activities RMEEE
Interest paid for bank and other borrowings 277 & H & & 2 2 K & (376,229) 644,977
Interest paid for lease liabilities HERGBZENHME - 9)
Interest paid for promissory notes EA BB ZEMNFE (19,754) (31,806)
Interest paid for convertible bonds ARRES ZEMFE (4,296) (8,172)
Advance from third parties E=HaR% - 383,125
Repayment to third parties ME=FEX 128,840 (17,114)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings — EiEHR{TREMEE (1,672,712)  (4,400,733)
New bank and other borrowings raised FTIGIRITREMEE 1,015,830 4,176,000
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERRE - (364)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR BB 2 FT 1S 3K IB - 234
Advance from non-controlling shareholders [t & 2 7 3 122 f% f% 58 24 3¢
of subsidiaries - 27,388
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders {232 M /& A 7] JFIE A% A% 3R
of subsidiaries A - (100,190)
Repayment to related companies FEAERRENR (2,163,147)  (3,373,148)
Advance from related companies RN TN 1,361,484 3,545,532
Net cash (used in) from financing mEEE (FrA)
activities FEREFE (1,729,984) (444,234)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BERBESZEOAD) EM
cash equivalents FE (288,183) (238,483)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzReRELEE
at the beginning of year 592,854 838,036
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNEETE R E) 7 F B 6,276 (6,699)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEERAELEE
at the end of year 310,947 592,854
Analysis of the balance of cash and RERREEELEHKRDWT
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 310,947 592,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Stock Exchange).
Its parent and ultimate parent is United Century
International Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (BVI). The ultimate controlling party is Mr. Guo
Jiadi. The address of registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and Room 2008, 20th Floor, 118 Connaught
Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

—RER
ARABARBREIMERLZ AF
ERAR -HBROREBHER S
FrERAR (IBXRFT]) - E&
N A M B R A B United Century
International Limited (7 % J& Bz % BF
S(RBEZHE]FZMKILZA
A)) o AR F A IMEELE o K
RElzAMPEER T ELEME
7 4t 2 Bl iz A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda® BB LR THEEFH118I
2012008 °

ARel/—HREERRR] - EE
EMBE QR Z T2 EBENHIEI -

ZEEAMBHRENARE (AR
¥ 2SN RARBIZNEEER -

PEI=ZEZERERAR 202263 105



APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

EREEVBREEN(H
EMBREER ] 2BFTA

REFEBRHERZEBUBR
EEAZERTA

RAFE AEEEHEREREL
SEtEi ARG ([EAEMAE])E
e T BEBMERE LR ZEFT
K-ER-_F-__F-AF—-BxkZ
BFIR 2 FEREE AR AR

2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-2020
cycle

BT B I EME

BRI 2EBRSIELR
2R
F35 (BFTA)

BAUB®RE B
AEBI 551655 NA=Z1THE
(EFTA) Covid-19

HEEAESER

ARG ER M BE R
F16%5% &E BE
CCHES) R&aiz

Fir 15 518

EXGF LR BB A 4
F375% —BAKA
CCHES)

BB EETE
2R HAR
(IBFTA) —NFE

—E-FF
BAE
FREMH#

The adoption of the above new or amendments to
HKFRSs has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position for the current and
prior periods and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

1 06 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

JER Ll BB HE LR 2 HFT
HEFTANEANEE RN AHRE BT
HiRE 2 B S R R Rtk & sk R
ZEERARAMBRR BEELE
BEREE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

B £ 08 B 5
B 5 Al |) 2 BT A
(%)
EEMEERERZRETER
Bt % ) 5 2 Al
AEBUYERFEMAUTERME
RMARERZBEETELYBREE

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (Revised)

Insurance Contracts
and the related
Amendments'

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback’

Classification of
Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction'

Presentation of
Financial Statements
— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Al :

BEMB®RE REAEHR
ERIF1758 BB RT A
AT KRS REEREHE
BB 1058 & NG SR WNE]
BEGH AR ZHENEE
F28(EFTA) HEFIE
EAVKHREER ERADN
F165E (BRIA) HEERFE
BREG AR BESBEARY
15 (BETA) HIERE’
BEEFER SHRROEE
FIRRER
B #5345 A Bl
B mE B25%
(BT &)
BEGFER SN ESR
F8% (BT A)
BB GRTER HE-QXFEE
F12% (B5]R) MHEERAE
REMETHE'
EAREES  HERRE®R-
(&&1&35T) ERAHE AR
ERERIERH
BHE RSB

January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

! RZZBEZ=F—-—HA—Hszi’&H
W2 FEAIRAERR -

2 RZE_MF-—HA—Bzszi&HA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group has commenced an assessment of the related
impact to the Group of the above new or amendments
that are relevant to the Group upon initial adoption.
According to the preliminary assessment made by the
directors of the directors of the Company, except as
described below, management does not anticipate
significant impact on the Group's financial position and
results of operations.

Regarding the Amendments to HKAS 1, in addition
to the obligation to redeem through cash settlement,
the transfer of equity instruments upon the exercise
of the conversion options that do not meet equity
instruments classification also constitute settlement
of the convertible instruments. Upon the adoption of
this amendment, given that the conversion options are
exercisable anytime, the total of host liability and the
derivative component amounting to RMB410,669,000
would be reclassified to current liabilities as the holders
have the option to convert within twelve months.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary uses. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MERSUMBRRZEER

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTESHEEX#E)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 RAGEUVBBRRZEE(H)
financial statements (continued)
The directors of the Company have, at the time of ARANREERNIELZEVER
approving the consolidated financial statements, XEBAEEH AKEHER
a reasonable expectation that the Group has TERNRAITER RREEK
adequate resources to continue in operational oo A HEHER S A B
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they BKRRNEEFRAFELER
continue to adopt the going concern basis of et EM -
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been Br N & 5T ISR Pl B R & EA
prepared on the historical cost basis except for RAEEMERERMITAENRAY
investment properties and financial instruments BFtE/  HKEPBRRIRE
that are measured at fair values at the end of the SPRAAREERR -
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value BEERA—RENRABBRINE
of the consideration given in exchange for goods ElREmHREZATFE-
and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to AFEERFEEHEMHELRHE
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an EREMEFR ST EEELEER
orderly transaction between market participants WHskEEEBEAEIMNNE
at the measurement date, regardless of whether B M wmZBRESEE A
that price is directly observable or estimated using B = sl Al R H M i B Rl i
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair HoEmiELHEENSE R
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes HEESNBETEEeZESR
into account the characteristics of the asset or EXEBENED BIXEER
liability if market participants would take those HAEERBENATLERS
characteristics into account when pricing the asset ERZEEFE W EFREUIE
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for MERFPIEFEN,/ HBEAR
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the MAFETDREEEET - HE
consolidated financial statements is determined BREEE®REERF25E
on such a basis, except for share-based payment [ AR - 3 ) #8 E /9 LA IR 19 1+
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 TS BREBUBSRE
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that ERIFE16H [HEIHE AN
are within the scope of HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and HERXS URKBEQAFEEBI
measurements that have some similarities to fair MAEE BN IFERFER
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable g ENHFE L ELNFE2HR
value (“NRV”) in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in [FE | /n] IR % E ([ r] IR
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”. FE]) BB G ERE365

[BERE]NEREERI -

REZHEERERAT 202253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participants ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. wBHGZEE i%iﬁ%zzgfﬁ&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date of the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

3.2 FESFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MESCUBERR2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FE xr

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and
non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial
assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the “Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting” issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangement
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangement of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirers previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirers previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied. i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and
service (for a bundle of goods and services) that
is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group’'s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
goods or services.

1 1 8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

For sales of properties, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains the control of the
completed property when the key was delivered to
the customers and the customer has obtained the
ownership of the property. The deposit received
for sale of properties are presented as contract
liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For provision of property management and
related services, the Group agrees the fixed rate
for services with the customers upfront. As the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance,
the revenue is recognised over time when the
performance obligations are satisfied. Monthly
payment of the transaction is invoiced to the
customers in advance each month.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satistaction of a
performance obligation (continued)

Output method (continued)

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

1 20 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUSRESUBERR2ERE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESTHER@®

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFERE(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers KREEFEHHKA (&)
(continued)
Existence of significant financing component GFHEEXBEL 7 (&)
(continued)
For advance payments received from customers REBEAREBERTRERX
before the transfer of the associated goods BEMAED EKBZIRELE
or services in which the Group adjusts for the JHBEERIRBIIERPI
promised amount of consideration for a significant MEMNRBEME @ NEBEE
financing component, the Group applies a AR AEBHREE Z2ERA
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate XFBZ BT MER SR xR
financing transaction between the Group and ZHBHE - HENERXNE
the customer at contract inception. The relevant N ERUE EEREEE
interest expenses during the period between the m R AR EE ARSI E
advance payments were received and the transfer EMEERAK -
of the associated goods and services are accounted
for on the same basis as other borrowing costs.
Contract costs & HIE AR
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract EEaHZBEKAK
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those EEAHZBERAIEAREE
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract BISEFPAKFES ZKA
with a customer that it would not have incurred if MAERSZEL  ATEEE
the contract had not been obtained. BRAKA -
The Group recognises sales commissions as an M A HA A W B B B Ak A - Bl K
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset SEREREEReA—BEHE
so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit Eo-FIRAEEREZERNE
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent FEZEENABE Z2ERXRE
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or — R RGEENIBEREH -
services to which the assets relate.
The Group applies the practical expedient of Mz ERABE — FRNBHR
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a B BAEEBERA
contract if these costs would otherwise have been TREERE XHEMEBEEEK
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year. KLAESEHL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or
arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases (e.g. offices and dormitory)
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

1 2 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
or inventory as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property and inventory are presented
within investment properties and inventories of
properties respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

REVBHRRME

E- A+ A=+ —HIFFE

gwé,ﬁﬁizgﬁﬁ

= e e

3.2 FESTEHEK (&)

HE (&)

KEBERATNA (B)

EREEE &)

o AKERNIFEKLIFENLH
BE BERMEBEEME
SR EREEEEER
B 1R RGP AR E 1Y
AR5 EE A B R AR A T

FRRERDBRAREBEQFER
‘tqugZ?xéfff%%@I\ s
BERKAREEARFITE
FBEBEE YHEES
BZEMEMAEFELIE -

AR EN A RN S IR
EEDHEBEHEEEMAED
ERREENS  AHEMRRE
BEEEBRIRAMESERFH
RERHEERITE - EHEMIF
M ERABREEREREE
R E AL EHE A F 8 R E (X
BREERE) NEHEFTE °

AEBRGEEMBARRARAE
TRHERENEFAFEEEZ
EHAREEZIIRERARB -
NERENERFETERZE
REEBEDHZIRNREY
XIRMEFEIA

REHERS
ENAREEEREIRER
B BEHREEREIRARK - 11
FRAFEFE - I8 ERE
HRAFEFEDNABRRSE
SIMAENREFFAEREEE
XA

REZHEERERAT 202253

123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

[ine item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

1 24 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MERESUBBRRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TESHBER#

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFERE(E)

Leases (continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued) REBFIERZATANA (E)

Lease modifications MHEER]

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a WHEBEATEBERL IIAREEE

separate lease if: BHEEBIIER—EEBHEE

N

e the modification increases the scope of the o  ZIEEXBBILINGER—
lease by adding the right to use one or more ek ZEEBEEZER
underlying assets; and RBAHEEHE: &

e the consideration for the leases increases e LHEMEZRE ®EMZ
by an amount commensurate with the TRRAE NS EEXLE
stand-alone price for the increase in scope 2EBER  UNEAKM
and any appropriate adjustments to that BTeHN2BERmEER
stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances BAREH 2 EEE A -
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted B EMEL—TBEBHEE AR

for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures ZHEEEHMME  AEBIZRLK

the lease liability based on the lease term of the BEHREECZHB BREAN

modified lease by discounting the revised lease BRAEM BB Z B ETBEIR K

payments using a revised discount rate at the REERGEITHENR  UE

effective date of the modification. MTrEMEERE -

The Group accounts for the remeasurement AEERBEBESHEEE

of lease liabilities by making corresponding ETHERARZ UHHEHEAR

adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets. HEITENE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments
for operating leases that depend on an index or
a rate are estimated and included in the total
lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as revenue when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

1 2 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MESCUBERR2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FE xr

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor
Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications, including
lease incentives provided through forgiveness or
reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the re-translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

3.2 FESTEHEK (&)

HE (&)

AEBERL N (F)
HEER
TERRBGRLGANEE
ERNREZEHARLSHEERE
Ao RREABBARKIRSER
iz E2RE -

AEEKKEHEETBEHR
ERAMEFERHEEAR
I # A B R E & E TR
SEAHENHRASHEED
HEMK—#D -

S
RRHEEENEEER B
WRE UZERBIEEBIA
SN2 EBH ONE)ETZRS
B 5B RITER T IAMRE
RoMBEHR RINETIE
ZLEBBEBRAMBYRITLZ
ERTABHME -

REELREHHRESEERAM
EXZERZE RELHE
Z B R FER o

REZHZERERAE 20225 #H 1 27



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss.

1 28 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The change in functional currency of the Company
was applied prospectively from the date of
change. All items were translated into RMB at
the exchange rate on that date. The cumulative
currency translation differences which had arisen
from the translation of foreign operations up to
the date of the change in functional currency were
not reclassified from equity to profit or loss until
the disposal of the relevant operations.

The change in presentation currency of the
Group was applied retrospectively, as if the new
presentation currency had always been applied.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under other income.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to

employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. wBHGZEE i%iﬁ%zzgfﬁ&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—F - —F+=-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

REVBHRRME

E-—F+ A=+ —HIFFE

gmé,ﬁﬁﬁzgﬁﬁ

= e e

3.2 FESTEHEK (&)

#HE (E)
BT IR B &L B E A A
&ﬁﬁﬁZEﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ
B HEMASKEEENERE
@%@H%%%%WT%%X
TEREANER R - BZEFR
EHRBEORENEREZEME
EHREERAEEEECESRE
R RN A R A B R
i A B R AT R A R E A 4
BEEs - AR -

EEMAEE BEEENE
B BR IR ST - T TA
T 6 B T2 908 R Bt g
2HABHEERRYD -

BEEREEERAGBENAGER
BENEERERMPBATE
HERANREGESE  YRER
WEBREFETRER LEH
AT R (MBRBEN) G2 -

ERERARBEREEZFTER
BR B8 7 &= ] 38 B 20 $ 5 A R
WhsgEEEENMBERTE
PREE ZHRBERR -

PEI=ZEZERERAR 202263 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properly over time,
rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess
of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. wBHGZEE i%iﬁ%zzgfﬁ&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administration purposes,
are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as right-of-use assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position
except for those that are classified as investment
properties or inventories. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property from inventories of
properties to property, plant and equipment when
there is a change in use, which is evidenced by
commencement of own use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. No depreciation is provided for
properties under development. On completion,
properties under development are transferred
at the carrying value to property, plant and
equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MESCUBERR2EER
x ®

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation including
properties under construction for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

The Group transfers an inventory of property to
investment property when there is a change in
use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced
by the inception of an operating lease to another
party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfer a property under development
or a leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as it evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs (continued)

Before the Group recognises an impairment
loss for assets capitalised as contract costs
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, the Group assesses and recognises
any impairment loss on other assets related to the
relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets
capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining
amount of consideration that the Group expects to
receive in exchange for related goods or services
less the costs which relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not been
recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit to which they
belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment
of that cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. wBHGZEE i%iﬁ%zzgfﬁ&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories of properties

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be sold under the ordinary course of
business upon completion of development and
properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets,
properties under development for sale/properties
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and NRV.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis
including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. NRV represents the
estimated selling price for properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties for sale upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

REVBHRRME

E-—F+ A=+ —HIFFE

gmé,ﬁﬁﬁzgﬁﬁ

= e e

3.2 FESTEHEK (&)

2HMITA(E)
EEE (#)
MBEEDBNRENE(E)

FTEEBYBEERERIRAF
BEFf AR E - M —ERK
ARERIFEESE TR
78 B 75 5 2 B S35 A E A
ZEBA HUEE T R R A
RE REXRERVHTEEER
B RSB ] S AT RE
EBEBZBEARENERRF
BEEHAEMEEIKES -

MBEER TIBARFIER
P

e WEBNIZEMNARNEH
EHERE 3

s RUMAHERBFEXAEH
AEHEENER#NE/RT
BEAM—®Mn ALAA
AT ERE R R HAE R R
B

s BRAWETRABIER/H
MTAZITETE:-

It AN - 7K & AT RS AT A
—Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
RNFEFARMEEE S ([
N EAAREMEERE]) G
ENMBEERAFENAR
M2 AR S B RIET A
B Sk KRR D & 5T #E AC ©

PEI=ZEZERERAR 202263 1 45



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—F - —F+=-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the other gains and
losses line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ®EGZEH m&%zg&&
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITE K (4

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
restricted/pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) and other items (financial
guarantees contracts and trade receivables for
rental income) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
without significant financing component. The ECL
on these assets are collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instruments as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and quantitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAERCHBRRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTESTERE#

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFERE(E)

Financial instruments (continued) AT HE)

Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items HREENTEMEHEE

subject to impairment assessment under A EEosR BT R BT 2 H

HKFRS 9 (continued) I8 B 2R fE (&)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued) (i) EERRKELFE)
In particular, the following information taken ERIE . AL SRR
into account when assessing whether credit ETAVEHAE AR -
risk has increased significantly: FE . AEEeEEUT

BH -

o an actual or expected significant o 2RITBSNR (10A)
deterioration in the financial instruments KNP EEIRE
external (if available) or internal credit 92 St 35 HA A I B 2
rating;

° significant deterioration in external ° H 2@ T Ao
market indicators of credit risk for a MEIEEEE RS
particular financial instrument, e.g. a EeEEE L e
significant increase in the credit spread; BRI 2 AIEHe 0

o existing or forecast adverse changes o E S N g
in business, financial or economic 15 18 A5 ok ¥8 B A
conditions that are expected to cause BB TE B 48 B (S
a significant decrease in the debtor’s BABTHERS
ability to meet its debt obligations; {F B 1 & 3| K 18

ClIEERE

o an actual or expected significant o B AR A 2
deterioration in the operating results of -
the debtor; 1t

J an actual or expected significant adverse o BTG AHERE &
change in the regulatory, economic, or % R 1 IR B T _JZ
technological environment of the debtor %8 5 30 B A B
that results in a significant decrease EHER AR ﬁﬁ
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt EBREETHE HE
obligations. 3| A8 41 38 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i)
the financial instrument has a low risk of
default, the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUGEMBBRRZIEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESTHER®
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 TESHBER(E)
Financial instruments (continued) THETAE)
Financial assets (continued) B EE ()
Impairment of financial assets and other items VBEEREENBHFHREE
subject to impairment assessment under BB BEETRENE 2 H
HKFRS 9 (continued) I8 B 28 (&)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued) (i) EERRKIELFE)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date MIABERELME A
that the Group becomes a party to the EE /A EEAES
irrevocable commitments is considered HEIETE BWR ARG
to be the date of initial recognition for REETVSHERBE -
the purposes of assessing impairment. RELEEER R 8 721
In assessing whether there has been a RYBERELERD
significant increase in the credit risk since BIERE  NEERE
initial recognition of financial guarantee BB BB T E B AN
contracts, the Group considers the changes in 5_&/\%’]
the risk that the specified debtor will default
on the contract.
The Group regularly monitors the AREBEFHERBAHZR
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify ZE R A e jjl]E’]
whether there has been a significant increase 12 AE E’j&,& I[E/\m
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate RVEHES ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{%ﬁ
to ensure that the criteria are capable of Eﬁﬁ,—ﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁf\ T8 380 HE A
identifying significant increase in credit risk HO=E R EZEN
before the amount becomes past due.
(i)  Definition of default (iy EHNEE
For internal credit risk management, the A EERREEM
Group considers an event of default occurs 5 AEER Z%MW*BE
when information developed internally or P sk 4#E SN BB RO BT 45 & K
obtained from external sources indicates that B EBATKAER
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, HERA(BEAEEH) X
including the Group, in full (without taking tagzmE (WET AR
into account any collaterals held by the SEFAFENEMEKTFR)
Group). B ANHIREBA S -
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group |mam Bt S AT A - fiw B
considers that default has occurred when BEE®BHEIAEIOA - K
a financial asset is more than 90 days past EEBGIERBELEY
due unless the Group has reasonable and GIERNEREESENEA
supportable information to demonstrate BESEANEHEARE
that a more lagging default criterion is more %AE’jLi’jTE EF A
appropriate. A 5 & Rl e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. Evidence of
credit-impairment includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z -—F_-—#+_-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUGEMBBRRZIEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESTHER®
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 TESHBER(E)
Financial instruments (continued) THETAE)
Financial assets (continued) B EE ()
Impairment of financial assets and other items VBEEREENBHFHREE
subject to impairment assessment under BB HETREN B ZE
HKFRS 9 (continued) fth I8 B Z BB (&)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL () FTENERTEHEEERE
The measurement of ECL is a function of BHEEEENGEDE
the probability of default, loss given default X - ZBLOBEX (A
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a BEHNEKEBENEBEE) X
default) and the exposure at default. The EAR A RS - E B
assessment of the probability of default RNEXNERBRTIBIERE
and loss given default is based on historical S EE N ATEMEERETT
data and forward-looking information. FiE - BHEEEREENG
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased 5T I B R K8 K 3 2 0
and probability-weighted amount that is HEm o H R IR b0 #E &9 8
determined with the respective risks of JEEARRMET - A&
default occurring as the weights. The Group BREERBTEEEREL
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL 5 1& (F PR R P 0 B
on trade receivables using a provision matrix AI1THEE J7 AL 5 EWER
taking into consideration historical credit RZEHEEERE WK
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking ﬁ%?{%%?\%\g&$jﬁa
information that is available without undue NENAI &S Z B 1 & &
cost or effort. TEL FE -
Generally, the ECL is the difference between —fm=s c EHIEEEIE
all contractual cash flows that are due to the ERBEEOENAEER
Group in accordance with the contract and FBEaHNRERERER
all the cash flows that the Group expects to BB ERES REZ
receive, discounted at the original effective FEZERBMAE - WP
interest rate determined at initial recognition. BABETONRAEEEAR
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used %,ﬁ\gfﬁ o tIEWFE E A
for determining the ECL is consistent with s ETFEEHEE ff}%ié
the cash flows used in measuring the lease ﬁﬁFﬁZfﬁﬁmgéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ\
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16. BB SR A LE R E 1698 5T

%EEH&ZT EREMBZR

TRE—H

For a financial guarantee contract, as the M EREYME - A
Group is required to make payments only RAEEEEREB AR
in the event of a default by the debtor in HEBIBAERIAE 2K
accordance with the terms of the instrument AEATFHTE - WIEHBHEE
that is guaranteed, the ECL is the present BEHRAEHRAFEENE
value of the expected payments to reimburse Y 7ZEEEREY
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs BE > MZERESRE
less any amounts that the Group expects to REBBEHEHEEA B
receive from the holder, the debtor or any AR E A 5 W E 2
other party. &5 -

REZHEERERAT 202253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts
for which the effective interest rate cannot
be determined, the Group will apply a
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables from
contracts with customers are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
° Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

o External credit ratings where available.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents

of each separate group continues to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #[% =

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts,
the Group recognises an impairment loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount with the
exception of trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

REVBHRRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and
ultimate controlling shareholder bank and other
borrowings, promissory note and debt component
of convertible bond are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Convertible bond

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component
and derivative components are recognised at fair
value. In subsequent periods, the debt component
of the convertible bond is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the debt and
derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of
the debt portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bond using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of all investment properties
at enterprise income tax (“EIT”) rate. The carrying
amount of deferred taxation on change in fair value
of investment properties at 31 December 2022 was
RMB1,237,159,000 (2021: RMB1,248,681,000).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—F - —F+=-H=+—HIFEF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties of RMB10,734,280,000 (2021:
RMB10,564,740,000) are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer (the “Valuer”). In determining the fair value,
the Valuer has based on a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates of market conditions. The

4.

HARETHERETFTEE
AEZEZEFERR 2

AT EEMREZETERR(E)
REYXELFE
"EYEAR10,734,280,0007T
(ZZ=——%: AR#¥10,564,740,000
TO) R IE B L F XA ERD ([fHERD])
ETZHERAFENEK EEFE
NFER - GEM S RS RE
HETFTEANGELIETEE - B

management has excised their judgment to determine BECELHE UEBEEHEMA
the relevant assumptions that used in the valuation are $E R *“}iﬂgeiﬁﬁ‘miﬂ ZEBE
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to EB82F (HFBERMFE17)  BEE
these assumptions as detailed in note 17, would result REBKEMENATFEHIRES

in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment NRAHGERER REMEE KR

properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Net realisable value of inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of the
cost and NRV. The directors of the Company make
significant judgments in determining the NRV of these
inventories of properties. The NRV of inventories of
properties is the estimated selling price for properties
less estimated costs to completion and costs necessary
to make the sales, which are determined based on
prevailing real estate market conditions in the PRC.

Based on the experience of the directors of the
Company and the nature of the inventories of
properties, the directors of the Company determine
the NRV of estimated selling price these inventories
of properties by reference to the estimated market
prices of properties, which takes into account a
number of factors including recent prices achieved
by similar properties in the same project or similar
projects, and the prevailing and forecasted real estate

5 FT 3R 2% o 98 4 9B 1 4R
A% -

WRFEZ 85 FE
MEFEETIRKA KA &3 FEM
EPREEINR - ARAEERE
EXENEGFEZAZRFERKE
ERHE -MEFEZABERFE
BYEMBAEER T L AR
RHEZBERA - TR ER
TEMEMRERE -

ERNARAEFTNEREMEFE
MMEE  ARRABEZ2EYENM
AAmGERGIEETRE  BHE
FE B R\UEE ARUMENLD
HIE 8 A Rooh B 09 3R 17 M FRURI 5 4t
EMR)NEEZENEFENER
FENGFEE - ARREFZ2E
AEEEMBEEETKERNER
B B RN B 5 T 3R B T 55 BUR A

market conditions in the PRC. The directors of the BB TR ZEMENRLRKA o
Company estimate the future costs to completion of ARBEZTL2EREELENHE
the inventories of properties by reference to the actual NEHEATBEHEE 2 NWBER R
development costs of other similar completed projects ﬁfaDJr

of the Group, adjusted by certain current market
data. The directors of the Company estimate the cost
necessary to make the sale by reference to the historical
selling and marketing expense incurred.
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories of properties
(continued)

If there is an increase in future costs to completion
or a decrease in estimated selling price, the NRV will
decrease and this may result in write-down of the
inventories of properties. Such write-down requires
the use of judgment and estimates. If the expectation
is different from the original estimate, it would impact
the carrying value of the inventories of properties in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

In addition, given the volatility of the property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the
actual outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may
be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between actual
outcome and the estimates would affect profit or loss
in future.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of inventories of properties amounted to
RMB12,971,557,000 (2021: RMB15,993,608,000), net
of write-down of RMB7,763,000 (2021: RMB7,763,000)
located in the PRC.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax
varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities
of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have not
finalised their LAT calculations and payments with the
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
estimate is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The
Group recognised the LAT based on managements best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the income tax expense
and the related income tax provisions in the periods in
which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses and temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. As at 31
December 2022, deferred tax assets of RMB74,601,000
(2021: RMB56,373,000) have been recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies and
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables from contracts with customers.
The provision rates are based on aging of debtors as
groupings of various debtors taking into consideration
the Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

Trade receivables from rental income, other
receivables, amounts due from related companies
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
assessed for ECL individually and the provision rates are
based on the historical default rates, past due status
and the financial capability of individual debtor taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue
cost or effort.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade and other receivables and amounts due from
related companies and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 32, 21 and 38(a)
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

Segments

7 &

5. Wz
Wz 5 &
For the reporting period
REHA

Property Property
development investment Total

MERR MERE mat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

Types of goods or service & RERFEER

Sales of properties MEHE
— Sales of residential units -FEBMUEE 2,781,159 - 2,781,159
— Sales of commercial units - FHEBEMIEE 80,813 - 80,813
— Sales of office units - WREBMHE 416,083 - 416,083
— Sales of car parking - FEAMNHEE
spaces 18,563 - 18,563
Property management and ¥ E 2 MHBE R
related fee income PN - 36,524 36,524
Revenue from contracts with RE &P & LW A
customers within scope of (BEY %R EZER
HKFRS 15 F1SREEA) 3,296,618 36,524 3,333,142
Rental income AE WA - 115,826 115,826
3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Geographical market i E T %
Mainland China Fh [ K e 3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Timing of revenue iy 8 7 32 A
recognition
At a point in time T 5 18 B 5] 2 3,296,618 - 3,296,618
Over time N—EREH - 36,524 36,524
3,296,618 36,524 3,333,142
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) W5 (&)
Set out below is the reconciliation of revenue from TXHENWKBEEFEFAEA ZWZEE D
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in MERPHRENSTEREER

the segment information:

For the reporting period

BEHA
Property Property
Segments development investment Total
2 &P NEZRRE MERE Aot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT ARETT

Revenue disclosed in DEER T EN

segment information W 28
External customer INER R P 3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Less: rental income o el A - (115,826) (115,826)

Revenue from contracts with KB & P& 49Uk A
customers 3,296,618 36,524 3,333,142
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

REVENUE (continued) 5. W)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wi o i (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-_—F+_RA=+—HILFE

Property Property
Segments Development investment Total
7 8P MERER MERE mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEHRTIT AEETT ARETT

Types of goods or service & @R ER

Sales of properties Y EIEE
— Sales of residential units -EEEMHEE 2,106,543 - 2,106,543
— Sales of commercial units — PHEE B[N E 123,282 - 123,282
— Sales of office units - REBAHEE 425,739 - 425,739
— Sales of car parking spaces — (=& {754 E 112,112 - 112,112
Property management and ~ ¥ E 2 MHBE R
related fee income W A - 15,478 15,478
Revenue from contracts with KB & F 4 49U A
customers within scope of (BB % REAR]
HKFRS 15 FISKEBEA) 2,767,676 15,478 2,783,154
Rental income Ae U A - 144,400 144,400
2,767,676 159,878 2,927,554
Geographical market &%
Mainland China Fh [ K e 2,767,676 159,878 2,927,554
Timing of revenue Wy 325 2 B8 B
recognition
At a point in time 7 5 8 B 5] 2 2,767,676 - 2,767,676
Over time N —EZBE - 15,478 15,478
2,767,676 15,478 2,783,154
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —ZF = —

5. REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

the segment information:

Fr-_A=+—HIFE

5. W& #)
W 3% 5 R ()
TXHINKEELPAN T WEES
MERPRENS BN YEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HILHFE

Property Property
Segments development investment Total
ol MEZE MERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AR T ARETF T
Revenue disclosed in PEERFTEE
segment information Y Uk 2
External customer HNER R P 2,767,676 159,878 2,927,554
Less: rental income B e A - (144,400) (144,400)
Revenue from contracts with REEF & LW A
customers within scope of (BB SR E %R
HKFRS 15 FE155EEE W) 2,767,676 15,478 2,783,154

For sales of properties, the Group normally receives
30%-100% of the contract value from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreements, while
construction work in respect of the properties being
purchased under the sale and purchase agreements are
still ongoing. For those customers who use mortgage
loans provided by the banks, the remaining amounts of
the total contract values will be paid to the Group from
the banks once the customers meet the requirements of
the banks. These advance payments of 30%— 100% of
the contract value from customers resulted in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until sales of the properties are
recognised as revenue. The Group receives full payment
from the customers before physical delivery of the
completed property.

Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains the
control of the completed property, which occurs when
the key is delivered to the customer and the customer
has obtained the ownership of the property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

REVENUE (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group promises, in the contracts for sales of the
properties, to ensure that the foundation and main
body are qualified, and meet, national and industrial
standards. If the test fails, the customer has the right to
terminate the contract.

The Group also provides warranty in relation to the sale
of properties, but such warranty does not include the
following situations:

1) Damage to the property and its auxiliary facilities
caused by force majeure;

2) Damage to the property and its ancillary facilities
caused by improper use by the buyer;

3) Damage to the property and ancillary facilities not
caused by the Group.

U % (%)

W 255 ()
REBPUYEWES NP ELER
MERTEBEAEBRREAEARE
TEEE MARAKR BEARE
BIEAH o

AEBENRMEHESREHBRE K
BRRELTEREATER

) AR ZMERERE
RIEERNIBE

2) HAERERATEMHZDER
HEEEREEKREBE

3) WHEAEEERODERE
£ 15181 -
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REVENUE (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
customers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if a customer defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to retain the customer’s sales deposit and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank. The guarantee period commences
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and end after the customer obtained the individual
property ownership certificate. The related financial
guarantee contracts issued to banks in favour of
customers in respect of the mortgage loans are not
recognised separately as the fair value of the guarantees
is immaterial.

For property management and related services to
the tenants of the Group’s investment properties
and occupants of properties managed by the Group,
the Group agrees the fixed rate for services with
the customers upfront. As the tenants or occupants
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance, the revenue
is recognised over time on a straight line basis when
the performance obligations are satisfied. Monthly
payment of the transaction is invoiced to the customers
in advance each month. The performance obligation in
the contracts with customers are provision of property
management services, security services and janitorial
services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

Y & (#)

W 3 9 R (8)
AEBEORETFROAMAEE D%
BRI UMRBESEENKRER
BIZUER - BB ERZIER - 4
RN ER IR R RIS 2 -
BERBZRATERAEEKEE
BH 2 R EERERE A ESF
BoEBEBERT AEBMALE
EEMERSRWENE  DKkE
AEBMABTIAZE@MKE £
REBREEBRBEZRE L B SR
NN EFREERNEES R
R RIRBERUEE AT HAN
FOBEMEETBERANT &
BEER REAEROAFEY
REK o

RAASEBEREMENEL MAE
BEREEMENERPRERHENYESE
BLREBRGMS  AKEBEEF
BABERGOEETER - ANHE
PG B AR KREFEREAREE
BHOMEHRONE  WEERELD
BEEERBREREBREESR -
AEBEZARAMATPHASAXR
HGNRER -BEPFEHNMNENEE
SREHRVMEEERS  RERBE M
BFIRTE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

REVENUE (continued) 5. W&

Disaggregation of revenue (continued) WDk (&)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining R_EBE__FE_T_—F+_H
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially St+—HOEEHRTERHNRE(RE
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and the PR ER D RIERK) 2 R B ERIERR
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: WAz TEERRF ST 0T

Sales of properties

MIEHEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETT

— Within one year
— More than one year but not more
than two years

— More than two years but not more

than five years

-—FR 6,903,240 6,702,782
- —F L BTHBB

4 2,073,897 3,010,558
-MFEUNE - BTBB

hEF - 1,882,594

8,977,137 11,595,934

Relating to property management and related services, HYESEBELHABREmMS @ A&
all of the Group’s unsatisfied performance obligations BEFERBIHNERAYBHNE T
for contracts with customers are for periods of one year BWEIR A —F KA T o EH
or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction B SREER SIS B W
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not WEONEZEZERETELONK S
disclosed. B o
Operating leases REIAE
Rental income
HEWA
2022 2021
—E2-- - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Lease payments that are fixed E ks =N 115,547 133,372

Variable lease payments that do not PEURT B A E 2
depend on an index or a rate AT E MR 279 11,028
115,826 144,400
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information regularly reported to the Group’s chief
executive officer (the chief operating decision maker
("CODM™")) for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the type of goods and services delivered or provided.
The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

Property development — development and sale of

2 EER
BOBRBEREFESMEEMZ A
AEBITHRAR (TELERRE)
TEHRENENBEN RN LIEMH
ZEAmERGER - AKEREE
B SRS R ESIR [LE DB &Y
Al E R EE SRR

MEBREY — DERBEREHEE

properties

MEREER — HHAREMELE

Property investment — lease of investment properties

and provision of property management service HYEEIE RS
Segment revenues and results DB EREE

UNRErREREEDRE D 2
S B ek Ko S4B AT

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:

For the reporting period HEHRA
Property Property
Segments development  investment Total
2 &P MEBRE MERE # ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

Segment revenue 2 EB U =
External revenue EapIN & 3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Segment profit palk: D 175,959 19,921 195,880
Other income H A 63
Other gains and losses H Wz & &8 (38,393)
Change in fair value of AIMRES ZITE

derivative component TEAEMHz2AFE

of convertible bond & 101,429
Unallocated corporate

expenses ROBRAFRX (6,511)
Finance costs B & AR (80,055)
Profit before tax f 5 Al v A 172,413
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHEPER )
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEWEREE E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—ZE-—f+=-A=+—81
FE
Property Property
Segments development investment Total
7 &B MEER MERE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T ANE¥Fr ARETFT
Segment revenue Pl
External revenue oMK 2,767,676 159,878 2,927,554
Segment profit 7 B % 152,231 154,108 306,339
Other income H b A 60
Other gains and losses H bz B8 31,201
Change in fair value of BEAFER ABEE
financial assets at fair ([BERFEFA
value through profit or loss 8% ]) 7 B8 & E
("FVTPL") Z N FEEE 2,587
Change in fair value of AMRES 2 014
derivative component of TEHD 2 TFE
convertible bond b= 121,832
Unallocated corporate
expenses RO BLARIF X (6,584)
Finance costs Bl & A AR (71,740)
Profit before tax & F5 Al A 383,695
The accounting policies of the operating segments are K D E 2 & FTBUR BT 3T 2

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned BED
by each segment without allocation of part of other
income, part of other gains and losses, change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL, change in fair value of
derivative component of convertible bond, unallocated
corporate expenses and part of finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of =

resource allocation and performance assessment.

=

AEEY AHBEER D REMR
MR 2 E A B AR D
HAB A - 35 K b gk R AR -
BAFES AL HEEZA
F 18

#E AMREFZITETA

FEMRRAGEZAAE -

RE=ZAZRARALT

MAZAFEES ROBERFH
S EEDBERANEL DR - 1T
BYTEIREERREERERD
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —ZF = —

Fr-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIEXR(#)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and THRAEBAEHBR2H LKL D EL
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: oz EBEENRBESN
Segment assets TEEE
2022 2021
—®== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFT
Property development W) ¥ B R 15,110,857 19,311,816
Property investment MR E 10,861,777 10,671,468
Total segment assets NMEELETE 25,972,634 29,983,284
Unallocated assets: KO EE
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RIE S 1,904 2,508
Unallocated corporate assets ROMAREE 146,798 2,906
Consolidated assets EEBE 26,121,336 29,988,698
Segment liabilities DEHEE
2022 2021
—E- —E-—4F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR T T
Property development MEEE 17,573,013 21,672,314
Property investment Y ERE 2,478,270 2,243,191
Total segment liabilities DB EEATE 20,051,283 23,915,505
Unallocated liabilities: RORBE:
Debt component of convertible bond Al E A 2 B R D 404,491 344,973
Derivative component of A]mRES 2
convertible bond PTETEZS 6,179 102,071
Promissory note HEEE 519,026 455,357
Unallocated corporate liabilities KO ARAEE 66,017 65,131
Consolidated liabilities SEBRE 21,046,996 24,883,037
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

J all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain restricted/pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash and unallocated corporate
assets not attributable to respective segment.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than debt component of convertible bond,
derivative component of convertible bond,
promissory note and unallocated corporate
liabilities not attributable to respective segment.

DEER (&)
SHEEREE (&)

REEIBEENREDHEOEE
RIS

s BRITEREZDIMETXRH
SBERRITER  RITER
EBREARRDEAREE
SN FBEBEEBDEERED
B e

s HMBREBVNEEREZDE
BRSO BN ES
ZEBHED  AIBRER 20T
EI,\E. DoEEEBRRRSD

REBERRS -
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEERE (&)

Other segment information (continued) BopER (£2)
For the reporting period
REBR
Total
Property Property  reportable
development  investment segment  Unallocated Total
BES:
NERR nERE po:it ) it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL ARETR  AREFT  AREFL  ARETZ
Amounts included in the measure of seqment  FEAFEXT N TEEREE
profit or loss or segment assets: Vs b
Addition of non-current assets REXRDEE 1,073 215,628 216,701 - 216,701
Bank interest income RFBIA 3,024 30 3,054 2 3,056
Finance costs HERK (24,269) (13,454) (31.723) (80,055)  (117,778)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BERR B E (5,885) - (5,885) 23) (5,908)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  HEREE
plant and equipment b6 304 - 304 - 304
Change in fair value of investment properties &% A TELE - (1111) (1111) - (1,111)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZEE (401,989) - (401,989) - (401,989)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F--E+-f=+-RIEE
Total
Property Property reportable
development  investment segment  Unallocated Total
2%
NEER MERE pax:iFk AAR fazt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFE AREFT  AEEFT  AREFT ARETIL
Amounts included in the measure of segment 5/ £ 7 58X # HEEE 5
profit or loss or segment assefs: JEF:
Addition of non-current assets REXRPEE 3,647 799,720 803,367 - 803,367
Bank interest income BAMSHRA 3426 58 3484 10 349
Finance costs BERA (105,818) (607) (106,425) (71,740) (178,165)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BERERBITE (8,327) - (8,327) (97) (8,424)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRERENE (11,952) - (11,952) (122) (12,074)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HENE  HEREE
plant and equipment s (BB 5 - 5 (167) (162)
Loss on disposal of an investment property ~ HERENEZEE - (237) (237) - (237)
Change in fair value of financial assets EATEAABR HBEEL
at VTR ATERY - - - 2,587 2,587
Gain of early termination of lease ROLLAE 2 NE 1" - 1" 75 86
Change in fair value of investment properties &A% 7 ATELE - 9,499 9,499 : 9,499
Recovery of trade receivables written-off B RN ERHKE 8,141 - 8,141 - 8,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following tables set out information about the
Group's revenue from external customers by cities in the
PRC, based on the location at which the properties are
sold, properties are invested and services are provided.
Information about its non-current assets is analysed by

REVBHRRME

P CE g A= —HIFFE

o EBE K (#)

i & & ¥

TR RLENE BEYER
BRI FE R R T E S BB
EEREIPES R ER - I
ROEEENIREEMENIEME
ST o

geographical location of assets.
Revenue from external customers: KEINIDBEFE B Wz -
2022 2021
—s-= T —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#¥FT AR For
Nanping RS 9,015 806,097
Xian A% 1,455,478 825,298
Baoji g 1,054,215 547,316
Jilin FHR 6,980 75,479
Shanghai Bupis) 455,579 561,019
Yongtai K I 65,584 -
Weinan pNE] 179,631 -
Fuzhou 2 M 222,486 112,345
3,448,968 2,927,554
Non-current assets: FREEE -
2022 2021
—s-= T —
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR#¥FT AR For
Fuzhou &I 4,656,013 4,654,773
Shanghai 8 3,896,654 3,813,571
Baoji % 1,569,365 1,545,340
Xiamen B 184,900 186,200
Hangzhou L 237,100 205,500
Yongtai K IR 217,610 184,715
Xian A% 28,647 30,502
Nanping ¥ 205 2,515
Jilin HR 50 50
Hong Kong B 79 112
Others Hitb 1,351 3,568
10,791,974 10,626,846

Note:  Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

Wi HrnBEETERELZFEE

RE=ZAZRARALT
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER @
Information about major customers EBRXEEFZ2ER
There is no individual customer who contributed over HE T -_—_FERZTE-_—F+=
10% of the total revenue of the Group during the years A=zZ+—BLFE TEENEF
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. HAEBEHBAWR ZBEREBIRE10% -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfzlgA
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Bank interest income RITHF B UL A 3,057 3,494
Government grants I #68 BY 1,224 318
Others HAh 3,133 2,906
7,414 6,718

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtwaEREE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—1F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AEETTT

Loss on disposal of property, plant and  H&¥¥ « HiE &

equipment RBEZEE (304) (162)
Loss on disposal of an investment HEREMEZEE
property - (237)
Gain on early termination of lease RAMRIEHE 2 W - 86
Change in fair value of financial assets & A FEFF ABm 2 M7
at FVTPL BEZATESE - 2,587
Exchange gain, net PE W Wz - F5E (38,366) 32,459
Others Hib - (1,137)
(38,670) 33,596
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-—F - —F+=-H=+—HIFFE

FINANCE COSTS 9. WERA
2022 2021
—g=-=f —T-—%
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFIT
Interests on bank and other borrowings R{T M HEMEE 2 58 376,229 722,899
Effective interests on convertible bond — AR G5 2 BT & 34,681 30,471
Effective interests on promissory note 7%):&%—5?)?2%5’ F 2 45,373 41,268
Interests on amount due to a related e —EEERRE IEZ
company F & 58,294 53,310
Interests on contract liabilities EHBEZFE 34,906 312,840
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEBEZNE - 9
Total borrowing costs BEE KK 549,483 1,160,797
Less: amounts capitalised to inventories M : R ERFEHE AR
of properties x| (374,955) (922,007)
amounts capitalised to investment RERFPEREMESF
properties under construction = | e = (56,750) (60,625)
117,778 178,165

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the

FREAEZEERARE —RE

general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a B UEEEREEZHIZIHEE AR
capitalisation rate of 8.02% (2021: 8.17%) per annum {t¢?8 02% (ZZE=—F:8.17%)
to expenditure on qualifying assets. S

E o
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

10. BR® AR R

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Profit before tax has been arrived at BR 15 Al & A 2 FOBR
after charging (crediting): (5t A) -
Auditors remuneration % BRI % B 1,750 1,921
Directors emoluments i 3,526 3,512
Staff salaries and allowances BTI#® KEM
— Bonus — fE4T 5,493 9,464
— Salaries - e 77,262 156,392
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K48 7 51 2 i 7% 10,493 10,568
Total other staff costs Hib 8 TR AR 93,248 176,424
Less: amounts capitalised to inventories & : RN EFEHRER(L
of properties &% (17,159) (47,674)
amounts capitalised to investment RERTREMES
properties under construction - N | e (1,592) (1,315)
74,497 127,435
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERAIZ ZFEKAR
as an expense 2,484,939 2,106,192
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELRETE
equipment 5,908 8,424
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE - 12,074
Gross rental income from investment REMEEE2HES KA
properties R (115,826) (144,400)
Less: direct operating expenses from B FARBELEES
investment properties that WAZKREMEZ
generated rental income HELERX
during the year 7,033 6,893
(108,793) (137,507)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 10. BB ANEF (&)
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AEETIT

Selling and marketing expenses, mainly  $4& & & #HHAY T B0

comprise of:
— Estate agency fees —EREER 106,794 76,209
— Business taxes and surcharges —ZEF S LT NE R 30,201 34,189
— Salary and welfares — H N K AE F 26,615 46,318
— Promotion and advertisement —EELREEFHAX

expenses 12,669 26,305
— Electricity and utilities, property - BHARRHEEE-

management fee MEERB 10,445 8,904
— Office supplies N 2,180 2,247

Administrative expenses, mainly THAZFZEEE

comprise of:
— Salary and welfares — 5B 22 A 58,189 95,210
- Legal and professional fees —EZRREXER 17,089 42,421
— Electricity and utilities, property - WADSUNGE S 3

management fees MEERE 6,752 3,098
—IT and human resources management —&AERE & A HER

expenses EEMRAX 3,164 6,016
- Office supplies — A A 1,838 2,793
— Deprecation of property, plant and —ME - WERZE

equipment e 1,351 2,172
- Donation — 1R 180 6,518
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FiIBBMEx
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#FT AR FT
Current tax: AERRE IR -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PRI EFTSH
in the PRC ([EEmBH]) 83,740 90,522
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") TR ER ([ i
BER]) 62,801 90,311
146,541 180,833
Under provision in prior years: BEFERETR
EIT in the PRC R EEFTEH 93 3,972
LAT in the PRC A B+ b IS (E R 22,812 -
22,905 3,972
Deferred tax iR AT 7 18 (11,309) (6,528)
158,137 178,277

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulation. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rate of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable exemptions and deductions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &%

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

REVBHRRME

S —E A=+ —AILEE

=

11. FIBREX®)

EREMEMEZAKERAFAH
15 B0 5 < B2 B 0 Al A 2 1 B an

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled 4T
to the profit before tax per consolidated statement BT
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as T

follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —_=Z=_—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFL __NRETFT

Profit before tax Fk 5 A1 o A 172,413 383,695
Tax charge at the applicable tax rate of XA K25%=tE 2
25% (2021: 25%) B(ZEZ—%F :25%) 42,684 95,924
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FLE# B 891 5 1 7] F10R
tax purpose Az MET e 23,008 25,056
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FE BB S HBRT
purpose WAZRBHE (17,273) (31,032)
Under provision in prior years wEFEREEDTE 22,905 3,972
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MEERAKIEER 2 B%
- 53,900 55,994
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BALAIAERHIBEE
recognised (15,288) (35,366)
LAT T IEER 62,801 90,311
Tax effect of LAT THIEER 2 MG E (15,700) (22,578)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries FH fit &) 5K 1 [& 48 &4 27
operating in other jurisdictions pd ) NGB ES
R 1,100 (4,004)
Income tax expense for the year FAMBEHRAX 158,137 178,277
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

12. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 12.EE FETHRAEREES

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION [ K
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the FHANENIENEAARIEESNINE
directors of the Company during the year are as follows: HEBWT
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RIKER
e  HEeRER AR )
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AR®TFT
For the reporting period REHA
Chairman £S5
Guo Jiadi 2z 1,547 129 - 1,676
Executive directors: HITES
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 894 15 909
Wang Chao T - 743 - 743
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE.
directors:
Chan Yee Ping, Michael BEa T 69 - - 69
Ma Shujuan 58 69 - - 69
Lam Wai Fung WEE 60 - - 60
1,745 1,766 15 3,526
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REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE - FETHAEBRES
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued) € =)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RINET
we  HeREE SRR @t
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
For the year ended BE-Z--5+4Z8
31 December 2021 =t+-HLEE
Chairman E3
Guo Jiadi 2 1,489 124 - 1,613
Executive directors: HTEE!
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 860 15 875
Wang Chao T - 836 - 836
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Chan Yee Ping, Michael FRAa T 66 - - 66
Ma Shujuan 5MA 60 - - 60
Lam Wai Fung (appointed on ek (R-ZF-—%
10 April 2021) A +HEZT) 48 - - 48
Zheng Yurui (resigned on X (W-_F-—#
10 April 2021) A+ BEHE) 14 - - 14
1,677 1,820 15 3,512

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’s and independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Guo Jiadi is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his remuneration disclosed above
includes those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

No directors waive any emolument during the current
year or the prior year and none of the directors have
received any inducement pay for joining or upon joining
the Company.

NERMTRHTETEZMERTER
AR RAEEBEREESTH R
B o

A EFTRIEMITE R LB IFHTT
EE e RBRFERARRES
ZRAENE o

AT ETRARBITHAR K
EXHBEZMEBREIESITHRAE
BRFEZREMNE -

RAFERE-—FERBEEETRE
TRAME BBETCFAESERMA
AN AZR 2 B B i YR R A ] 22 D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Employees’ remuneration

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included three directors (2021: three directors),
details of whose remuneration are set out in the note
12 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining two (2021: two) high paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

12.

EE FETHRAEREESR
& )
EEME
FAN AEBREZOHFEE B
—HREE(CE - —F =g EE)
EMMeFBHRN L XHFE12 - 5
MH(ZEZ—F MWMB) IERDQA]
EERTHAR S HFEENIHS
HIBWT

2022 2021

—E=-= —E - —4F

RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR¥F T AR F T

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 1,495 4,196
Retirement benefits scheme contributions EK4g |5+ 24 5% 266 202
1,761 4,398

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

WHARREEHFHMN FLATEH
Bz&zm#HEEABWT

2022 2021

—E-C —E - —4F

No. of No. of

employees employees

ESEE 1ES 25

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0008 7T 2 -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T &
1,500,000/% 7T -
4,000,001 8L E

5,000,000/ 7T -

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - F - —F+-H=+—HIFFE

DIVIDENDS 13. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary FA SR &5 B 9 W £ R A+ sk 2 2 R A5 R
shareholders of the Company the (“Shareholders”) BYRABEBIRIARE (TIRE]) -
during the reporting period, nor has any dividend been NERRESHEEEREZEZRRN
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: FAEE(ZEZ—F : #) o

Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per AKARHEANEHSRERNKL S
share attributable to owners of the Company is based BRNTIREIATEESE

on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BFNEIBETIBEATE -
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETF T ANEETF T
Profit for the year attributable to owners &K &% A A FE(G
of the Company F A5 42,103 169,707
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ERATRREHFEBEEL R
shares on convertible bond Re# s 2 (32,078) (108,693)
Earnings for the purpose of diluted ARAEEREERNZ
earnings per share B % 10,025 61,014
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e BB RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—-F - —F 1+ _-H=+—HIFFZF

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14. BRER &)

Number of shares Ligvig 4=
2022 2021
—E-C —E - —4F
‘000 ‘000
FiR TR
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BRI EGRELRRT
shares for the purpose of basic T B AR ANRE &
earnings per share 5,088,208 5,087,441
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EREETBER S
shares: T
Convertible bond AR E S 1,213,592 1,213,592
Share options B e - 22,637
Weighted average number of ordinary FARAEEREBERF 2
shares for the purpose of diluted I AR N4 I &
earnings per share 6,301,800 6,323,670

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. For the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the potential ordinary shares
of the Company included outstanding share options.
The calculation of the dilutive effects for share options
is determined by the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to the outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the assumed
exercise of potential ordinary shares in relation to
the outstanding share options has anti-dilutive effect
(2021: dilutive effect) to the basic earnings per share
as the exercise price of the options exceeds the average
market price of ordinary shares during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

Fr_HA=1—HIFE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ —-F ——

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 1% - BERZHE

Furnitures,

office
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold and motor
buildings  improvements vehicles Total
HELHR HENE &R BOE
BT £ RERSE EH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT NREFT ANREFT ANREFT
CosT KA
At 1 January 2021 WZE--F—-f—H 53,288 17,793 40,775 111,856
Exchange adjustments Rk - (61) (145) (206)
Additions RE - 2,478 1,169 3,647
Disposals = - (204) (641) (845)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F
+=A=1-A 53,288 20,006 41,158 114,452
Exchange adjustments s - 141 360 501
Additions NE 3,006 947 126 4,079
Disposals HE - - (5,531) (5,531)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - (8,898) (1,723) (10,621)
At 31 December 2022 WZE-—F+-A=+—H 56,294 12,196 34,390 102,880
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Zii7E
At 1 January 2021 WZE--F—-f—H 4,389 10,344 29,978 44,711
Exchange adjustments EHA% - (56) (138) (194)
Provided for the year AEERE 1,100 4,293 3,031 8,424
Eliminated on disposal HE N B 1 7B 4 8 - (37) (558) (595)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—-E+-A=+—-H 5,489 14,544 32,313 52,346
Exchange adjustments AR - 140 352 492
Provided for the year AEERE 318 3,200 2,390 5,908
Eliminated on disposal HERH - - (5,127) (5,127)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBAT - (7,106) (1,327) (8,433)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—#+-RA=1-H 5,807 10,778 28,601 45,186
CARRYING VALUES ERE
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—#+-RA=1-H 50,487 1,418 5,789 57,694
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-A=1—H 47,799 5,462 8,845 62,106

RE=ZAZRARALT
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥  BERRKRE#®)
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment after Ly BERKHFEERLHK
taking into account the residual values, are depreciated FIaBEEAEGSEZ LN TER
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per E:
annum:
Leasehold land and Over shorter of HE+HMRET REE A
buildings lease term or 40 years 404
Leasehold improvements Over shorter of THEYEREE NSl
lease term or 5 years FHHEf s 54F
Furnitures, office equipment 19% - 32% FE - WAEERER 19% -32%
and motor vehicles HE
The Group holds land use right in respect of its AREFBGHEMAPENEE LR
leasehold land and buildings situated in the PRC which BFEALTMEREE ZZEHEL+
are used for its business, where its offices are primarily HWEEFEEAREER  mMEBEA
located. The land use right in the PRC has expiry date EXTENMRAE AL E S
on 14 February 2054. Lump sum payments were made R -_TAMNFE_A+MBEHE-
upfront to acquire these land interests, and there are EIRAIELE — RN R A KEZZE
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of T A -
the land use right.
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HEWE mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ABREFr AR For
As at 31 December 2022 N-—EBEB-_—_+=A
=+—H
Carrying amount FREE - - -
As at 31 December 2021 R=-ZT=-—F+=A
=+—H
Carrying amount BREE - - -
For the year ended B8z —_F+=
31 December 2022 B=+—RHILLEE
Depreciation charge HEER - - -
For the year ended BE-Z-_—H+=
31 December 2021 B=+—HILEE
Depreciation charge WEEZEMH 11,690 384 12,074
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For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

17.

REVBHRRME

16. FRAEEE #)

2022 2021

—E== TR —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETTT

Expense relating to short-term leases A %8 B fE\E’JE'ﬂSE 283 26
Total cash outflow for leases HER&RLE 260 399

Additions to right-of-use assets

N E@ﬁﬁ%éﬁfx

During the year ended of 31 December 2021, the Group
leases various offices and dormitory for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 12
months to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable. As at the year ended 2021, those lease
contracts of this part is terminated in advance.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out shopping malls, hotels, office
units, commercial units, residential units, kindergartens
and car parking under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly or quarterly. The leases typically run
for a fixed period of one to twenty-five years (2021:
one to twenty-five years). Certain leases of properties
contain variable lease payment that are based on 7 to
14% (2021: 7 to 14%) sales and minimum annual lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessees option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

17.

REZE2-_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H
EFE AEBHELZHERLE
BEUHEEC R FEIVEES
YMETETHERE AT —@AE=FH

Hi 1% {8 Bl & % Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ@?z HPga
AR R AR - R EE HH & ¥

1&?7%&%%5&% REBRBE
MERLETE DO RIRBAITH -
BE_T_—F ZWBHorzcMEES

HIERRIAR LE

AREBERBPRE
#) o

BEFIEHE

EREEEREREEER R
EARFARAEUBEERE) A
FHRNTE -
BEUF
AEEHAEEREAT 2B

BoBE WABEMN BEEMN-
11%%@ R ENEEMN B

CHERANEFEELZN -HBBETAE
F NF—=2_+HF(ZFT=—
F:—EFTRHE) HETYENEE
BEERT%NEILA% (Z T = —F:
T%E14%)MZEREMN K ERE
HABREMNREFEEENK -

7N 5% [ R A & 22 B 1 1 B 1 R
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWME &)

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
BRI BESH
REWME REME et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 W-_E-—%—A—H 8,537,440 144,000 8,681,440
Additions NE - 799,720* 799,720
Transfer R 245,460 (245,460) -
Transfer from right-of-use assets HRACRAEEE
(note 16) (Bit16) - 847,813 847,813
Transfer from properties under EEOEEDRYE
development (note 18) (Hii#18) - 230,568 230,568
Increase in fair value recognised in RIEREA N FEE N
profit or loss 7,340 2,159 9,499
Disposals k== (4,300) - (4,300)
At 31 December 2021 NZEZ—F
+-A=+—H 8,785,940 1,778,800 10,564,740
Additions = - 176,651 176,651
Transfer i 115,219 (115,219) -
Decrease in fair value recognised in RiEmERAFERD
profit or loss (10,479) 3,368 (7,111)
At 31 December 2022 i =
—A=+—H 8,890,680 1,843,600 10,734,280
* Amounts includes payments for leasehold land of * wemAEHE T - —F+ =
RMB191,580,000 during the year ended 31 December A=+—BItEENEE -
2021. AR #191,580,0007T °

All of the Group’'s property interests held to earn
rentals are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.

AEBRKEHERAURRAES
WETEM SRR N BRAKRE
MEARR AR TFEEAGE -
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties are situated on land
in the PRC for which the land use rights in the PRC are
subject to the expiry dates ranging from 40 years to 50
years from the grant dates. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the land interests, and there
are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms
of the land use rights.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2022 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Graval
Consulting Limited (Graval Consulting) (2021: Graval
Consulting Limited (Graval Consulting)), independent
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The Group engages third party valuers to perform the
valuation. The Group’s management has discussions
with the external valuers on the valuation assumptions,
techniques, inputs and results when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.

During the reporting period, the fair values of the
completed investment properties were determined by
adopting the income capitalisation approach and direct
comparison approach which are dependent on certain
key inputs, including term yield, unit rent, adjustment
made to account for differences in location and level
and analysis of recent market sales evidence of similar
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair value of the completed investment properties
was determined by adopting the income capitalisation
approach and direct comparison approach which
are dependent on certain key inputs, including term
yield, unit rent, adjustment made to account for
differences in location and level and analysis of recent
market sales evidence of similar properties. The fair
value of investment properties under construction
was determined by adopting the residual method
approach which are dependent on gross development
value, estimated construction costs to completion
and comparable land price. Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed below.

17. REWME #)

AEBALEMEMRFABRA L -
B A T ERENERBE BN
?ﬁmaﬁiﬁmi 504 - B 12
ATVEH — R M~ 3R A U B + 3 i 25 -
H@%imﬁ%%mﬁﬁ B E
BENE

R-_TE-_—_F+-_A=+—H 'K

SEEEMENAFEDEERNE
BEREEz B EXMAEMEED

EEEARAR ([EEDCERBEM])
(ZE-—F  EECEEBAERA
AREAHETNEEMET -

AEBERE=SHEMETZMG
B R FEMBHREETEHES
AEBEEEED HINBEE TR
RERR - BT - WA RE

RNBERE CRIKEDENHR
FEDEBBRABERMOERBERL

BEEE EEBORRETEIE&HA
g EREEMKER Bl -

AL E RKFERELOFENUR
BUMETTSHER BN -

Rt ZEWEZAFEE 25
MEZESLRERRAEESRH
ﬁo

ERTIREMENAFETIERBK
ABRLERERLBEEE  H
BRAETEEZEG AL 2EHA
BWHR -BUES BEE KK
FERERMAZRUARBLUME SR
HMGHEHEBEN SN -EERE
MENAFTEDRBAGEELIETE
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R RIEEMREEH AEBE 2 F
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWE #)

The following table gives information about how TRFIIWRZEZZFERZZE =

the fair values of these investment properties as at i—i—: A=+—"HZEREWEZ

31 December 2022 and 2021 are determined. The ${E#E‘Et\ SBEENTEESE

valuation technique used and the key unobservable RE="Mz2TWEDMELERAMGE

inputs to valuation of the investment properties B'zm&jggﬁﬁ ASEBIOT -
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are

as follows:

At 31 December 2022 R-—E-_—_+=-H=+—H

Relationship of

Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable

held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs ~ Range inputs to fair value

AYE TIRERAHER
AEERRZRENR AVE ER ftERM EXTUBEEANE €E ATENBE
RMB'000
NEFTT

Investment properties, Fuiian: ~ Level 3 Direct comparison Adjusted market unit ~ Fujian: An increase in the adjusted
including office units, 0.00 method* based on rate (Adjustment market unit rate used
hotels, residential units market observable taking into account  Shanghai: would result in an
and car parking Shanghai: transactions of the differences in 1. Residential units, increase in fair value,

35,300 similar properties and ~ location and level) RMB150,000 per sqm: and vice versa.
adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the
subject property.

REN% BEBREN. BB FIR BENEEY - RER SR¥OREUME  BR: RS T
BE - FEEMR 0.00 PoxemsnEE  (BHREERKTE EMAEHATESEN
BEf RARBRE R EREE) - L R e

L RENDE MR «
35,300 I EEEUETIA
AR E150,0007 ¢
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 December 2022 (continued)

17. REWE &)
R-—B-—&+=A=+-8(#)

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TIRERAHER
ATENBE

Fair value
Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques
YR
BR EERE

Investment properties
held by the Group

Significant
unobservable inputs  Range
16
RMB'000
NERTT

AREERZRENR EXTUERGARE 4B

Level 3 Income capitalisation ~ Discount rate

approach income

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair

Investment properties,
including shopping

Fujian:
4,654,540

Fujian:

malls, commercial
units, residential units,
office units, hotels,
kindergartens, and car
parking

Shanghai:
2,611,610

Other;
1,589,230

BEBNES
@%ﬁ@‘&%ih‘
ﬁf@E ha

AR
4,654,540

1
2,611,610

fof:
1,589,230

capitalisation of the
net income.

E=8 WARRE -
BEXL-

Rental value

HAE HEE

E2EE

1.

Shopping malls and
commercial units,

range from RMB64.5 to
RMB215 per sqm per
month and discount rate
range from 4.5%t0 5%;

Residential units, at
RMB28 per sqm per
month and discount rate
from 1% to 1.5%;

Kindergartens, RMB26
per sgm per month and
discount range from
5.5% t0 6%;

Hotel units, range from
RMB 84 to RMBI6 per
sqm per month and
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%;

Car parking, at
RMB15,000 per unit,
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%.

BOBESRAFENLN
?%H@ﬁﬁ%ARﬁ
64.5TEARE5T
FRENF45%Z5%

FEBNERETRX
ARBBTL  FTHEN
T1%Z15%

HEEERETNK
AER26T %
1S 5% 6% -

@Eﬁﬁﬂ?%ﬂ_
FERRARESAT
ENRM6T
TRENTF45%%5%

BELBEARY
15,0007 B X
NF45%%5% o

RE=ZAZRARALT

value.

The higher the rental
value, the higher the fair
value.

REES ATEYE-
HeBEES ATEH

m/ e
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. BEWYEE (&)
At 31 December 2022 (continued) RZIE-ZZHF+ZHA=+—H (&)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs ~ Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIREBAHER
AEERRZRENR AVE ER ftERM EXTUEZQARE 4R ATENBE
RMB'000
NEETT
Shanghai:

1. Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB58 to RMB190
per sqm; discount rate
range from 3.5% to 4%;

2. Office units, range from
RMBI5 to RMB105 per
sqm; discount rate range
from 3.5% t0 4%;

3. Hotels, RMB77 per sqm;
discount rate range from
3.5% to 4%.

b

1. BUESREEELN
TEEHRARESST
EARB1907  TEE
NE35%F4% :

) BARHATETHK
AEBBTEAEH105
T ARENT35%2
4%

3. BEETHAAREN

T RENT35%E
4%
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 December 2022 (continued)

For year ended 31 December 2022 &%

REVBHRRME

CEC CHFEF A=+ —HIFE

17. REWME #)

R-ZEB-ZZH+ZA=+t—-H@#)

Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs ~ Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIRERAHER
AEEREZRENR AV BR fERM EXTUEZQARE 4R ATENBE
RMB'000
NEETT
Others:

1.

Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB25 to RMB62
per square metre (sqm);
discount rate range from
4.5% to0 5%

Hotel units, range from
RMB35 to RMB49 per
square metre; discount
rate range from5.5% to
6%

Office, range from RMB
39 to RMB62 per sqm;
discount rate range from
6.5% t0 7%

Kindergarten, range
from RMB17 to RMB40
per sqm; discount rate
5.5% t0 6%

i

1.

BUBESRALEMN
THEEAA(FAAR])
ARESTEARER
T RENT45%E
5%

ERENNTETIA
ARBBTEAREL
T IRENF55%E
6%

HAENFEFTRA
RE39TEAREGLL:
NEERNT6.5%F7%

PRENFETTRA

REVTTEARRAOT
TEENT5.5%Z6%

REZHEERERAT 202253
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 B Z=—F-—4F+=-A=+—HIFEF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. BEWYEE (&)
At 31 December 2022 (continued) R-ZEBE-_—FE+=-A=+—H (&)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs ~ Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIREBAHER
AEERRZRENR AVE ER ftERM EXTUEZQARE 4R ATENBE
RMB'000
NEETT
Investment properties Fujian:  Level 3 Direct comparison 1. Adjusted Fujian: An increase in the adjusted
under construction, 402,400 method* based on market unit rate market unit rate used
including office units, market observable (Adjustment taking 1. Hotel units, 21,000 per  would result in an
hotel, residential units Shanghai: transactions of into account the SqM per year. increase in fair value,
and car parking 1,204,100 similar properties and differences in and vice versa
adjusted to reflect location and level); 2. Commercial units,
Other: the conditions of the RIMBA4, 700 per sqm per
237,100 subject property. 2. Estimated total year.
construction cost
(Estimation taking  Shanghai:
into account the
cost of construction 1. Office units and hotels,
and installation and at the land price of
decoration cost). RMB12,500 per sqm per
year
ERRENE  AEHD R RIR ERMEE -BEBE 1 SRETREL  BR: MRBAENAELE
Efp B -HEEL 402,400 UYEPAR DL S (B3 R E EMRERATEEN
REEf RHREFE IR PkT£ER 1 BREELBTHIKEE R
Lk: BEBHNE AR « EEIR AR®21,0007 ¢
1,204,100
2 [EHERERE ) BEENETHIAEE
Eft: (st REERK AR#4,7007T -
237,100 KRZEREEH

5o ba:
I BABHREE i

BRBIAABEAR
#12,5007T -
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 # %

CEC CHFEF A=+ —HIFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWE #)
At 31 December 2022 (continued) RZIE-ZHF+ZHA=+—H (&)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs ~ Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIRERAHER
ARERECRENF AYE BR fERM EXTUBERANE €E ATENEE
RMB'000
NEETT
Others: An increase in the
estimated construction
1. Residential units, at cost would result in an
RMB14,600 per sgm per  decrease in fair value,
year and vice versa
2. Car parking, at RERERAENHEH
RMBO90,000 per unitper ~ AFERD * R °
year.
3. commercial units,
RMB16,000 per square
metre (sgm) per year
Estimated total construction
cost to complete amount to
RMB339,849,000.
Hff
I BEERSTIRES
ARE14,6007 :
2. RENBESEARY
90,0007 ©
3. BRENETAA
([FHxK])BEARE
16,0007C :
[ BRER AN ERNRRA
AR #339,849,0007T °
Total 10,734,280
@t
* The fair values of certain investment properties at 31 * R-EBE-_—_FR_EBE-_—F+=
December 2022 and 2021 were determined by reference B=+—8 EFE&EYWEIATE
to the analysis of recent market sales evidence of similar B R2EEUME ZEBRTES

properties compared with the premises under valuation
(the Subject). Each comparable is analysed on the basis
of its market unit rate; each attribute of the comparable
is then compared with the Subject and where there is a
difference, the unit rate is adjusted in order to arrive at
the appropriate market unit rate for the Subject.

HEEBREMEDE (EN]) &
THBATRERE - SATEL®TY
BEMGEML RS JELR
ZEEBMEEEBFHETLR
HWEEEZR  AFEBBEMLEAS
R ZEBUEE MBS B X -

REZHEERERAT 202253
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

17.

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
both years.

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties
were pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 34).

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The properties under development were located in the
PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group transferred properties under development of
RMB230,568,000 and the relevant right-of-use assets
of RMB847,813,000 to investment properties under
construction and the details are disclosed in note
16. The aggregate difference of the fair value of the
properties under development and right-of-use assets
at the date of transfer over their carrying amounts are
insignificant.

1 98 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

17.

18.

BREWE #)
RWEEER - A A%
R

R-_E_—_F+-_R=+—H &
THREMENNRAREBEBR LD 2R
TTEERMHER (E34) °

RETUE
BEFMEMRFE -

RBEz_Z2-_—F+-_A=+—H
EFE AEEBERTFUWEAR
#230,568,000C X HEEF AEE E
ABRB847,813,000 0 82 B = fE @2 4%
EWME FRBREENMMFI16FAHE
PYERFREEERERBH Y
AFEHEEEABECREZBI TS
j(o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

19. DEFERRED TAX 19. EEH I
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated ABNEAMBERRAREN & TE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax EHRBEENRBECDEE HYH
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is SEREMECHRBESGR ZOTMAT :

the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2022 2021

—E-= L — —

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARE TR ANEETT

Deferred tax assets REFIEEE (74,601) (56,373)
Deferred tax liabilities R IEEE 1,394,941 1,389,621
1,320,340 1,333,248
The deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the AFEENBEFFEAEERRAZIE
Group and movements thereon during the current and ERHIEaE(BE)RESFHNOT
prior years:
Temporary
difference
Change in Temporary ~ Temporary interest
fair value of Accumulated ~ differences  differences  expense Write-
investment tax of provision oncontrat  oncontract  down of
properties  Taxlosses ~ depreciation of LAT costs  liabilities  inventories Total
# L
RENZ BitfE  RERAR AMAsz  HEER

20VERD  RERR fif (EEEE  EREE  ERER  HARK it
RVBOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBOD  AMBOD  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMB00
ARETL ARETL  AGETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETR AGETT  ARETX

A1 January 2021 RZE--£-5-A 1,246,830 (17.477) 111,406 (15,421) 16,998 (10) 2550 1339776
Charge (credt)to profitorloss for -~ 118 (tA) EMER
the year (note 11) (1) 1851 (14,824 22781 (1,099) 10,557 (25,794) - (6,528)
At 31 December 2021 WNoEz-E
+Zh=1-8 1,248,681 (32.301) 134187 (16,520) 21555 (25,804) (2550) 1,333,248
Charge (credit) to profitorloss——— #1% () EERER
for the year (ote 1) W) 079 @Y 21506 - ) - S )
At 31 December 2022 R-E--E+-f
=t+-H 1,246,903 (56,480) 155,693 (16,520) 19,098 (25.804) (2550) 1,320,340

PEI=ZEZERERAR 202263 199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

19. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

19. BB E (&)

20.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax
losses of RMB377,003,000 (2021: RMB325,092,000)
available to offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of
RMB225,920,000 (2021: RMB129,204,000) of such tax
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of RMB151,083,000
(2021: RMB195,888,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profits streams. The unrecognised tax losses
will expire gradually within 5 years to year 2027 (2021:
within 5 years to year 2026).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for the year
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB2,054,201,000
(2021: RMB1,949,078,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary

RZEZZF+ZRAR=+—H"
AEBAEADATEEBEEARE
377,003,000 (ZF = —F : AR
#325,092,00070) A A {EIK 85 &
RomH e Rz EHMEBEREER ARE
225,920,000 (ZEZ—F : AR
#5129,204,0007T) & & R IE & i 18
BE - AR BEEFRIREAET -
AT ERAKTHEEEARYE
151,083,000 (Z &= —F : AR
#195,888,0007T) fE R E E T 1H &
E-RIERBREEBEBEBBEREZE_ZF
“tFRRAFRESER(ZEZ—
F:ZEZXFHAFA) -

BEFECEMSHEZ BZZF
NF—A—RAfE FENBRRA
LA BREL 2 5 A P E R 2 IR B BN
TR - 6 BB WE W AR5 E
BB A A AR B s B Bl Bz B R &= KR
A E#2,054,201,00070 (— & = —
F: AR%1,949,078,0007T) 5t &
FAELEHIERE RAELEE
MR RO TR ERE MMM

differences and it is probable that the temporary TR ZEFE N R N2 A R FE B 15 Ak B8
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. E
INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES 20. MEFE
2022 2021
—E-= —E=-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR F T
Completed properties for sale ERKZHFEME 4,037,326 1,997,746
Properties under development for sale FEREDYHE 8,934,231 13,995,862
12,971,557 15,993,608
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES (continued)

For year ended 31 December 2022 &%

REVBHRRME

CEC CHFEF A=+ —HIFE

20. WEEFEE (&)

RMB’000

AR TF T
Analysis of leasehold lands: ME LD -
As at 31 December 2022 R-—EBE-_—_F+=-H=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 6,374,607
As at 31 December 2021 R-—E-_—%5+=-HB=+—H
Carrying amount IREE 8,500,326
For the reporting period BEHRA
Total cash outflow BB M -
Additions = -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_E-_—H+-B=+—HIEE
Total cash outflow BB ML 941,208
Additions NE 1,555,152

All the inventories of properties are situated in the PRC.

Included in the amount are properties under
development for sale of RMB2,815,831,000 (2021:
RMB6,477,886,000) in relation to property development
projects that are expected to be completed in more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting

period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group entered into new
commitment for acquisition of land use rights that have
not yet commenced, the total future undiscounted
cash flows amounted to RMB83,000,000 (2021:

RMB83,000,000).

At 31 December 2022, certain inventories of properties
have been pledged as security for certain banking

facilities (note 34).

A YR T R R o

THPAREFEERETYEARE
2,
R #6,477,886,0007T) @ Hi 78 H1 75
BESREHRES T —_@ARNRIZ
YEBKRIEB AR -

815,831,000t (T = —%F : A

RZZE-_—_F+=-_A=Z=+—H ' &
EERWEmABELZ LHER
MRS FT A
=% 5 AR 83,000,000 (= F

AREKRERB 2R

— 4 AR#%83,000,0007T) °

R—_ZE-_—_F+=—_A=+—H"' A
FHEFECEBERAE THRITE

B MR (FH3E34) -

2022F 201
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. EWRER X & H 1th FE Uk TR 18 BA
PREPAYMENTS KA FRIE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Trade receivables J& UK BR 3R

— contracts with customers —RERFEY 17,768 11,922
— rental income (note a) — e WA (B ita) 28,747 8,078
46,515 20,000
Other receivables (note b) Hh pE U R TE (f1aEb) 157,195 126,773
Less: Allowance for credit losses o EEEIBEBE (73) (73)
157,122 126,700
Prepayments (note c) FE S FRIE (K7 atc) 359,947 261,814
Other refundable deposits HEMaREERS 34,724 40,228
Other tax prepayments H b BB TE N K8 287,877 475,603
886,185 924,345

Notes: i

(@) The Group had pledged trade receivables from rental
income of certain as at 31 December 2022 to secure
bank and other borrowings of the Group (note 34).

(b)  The amount comprised mainly advances made by
the Group to various parties, including suppliers and
employees.

()  The amount mainly represents prepaid construction cost
of RMB346,888,000 (2021: RMB217,388,000) for the
Group'’s properties under development for sale.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days
(2021: 30 days) to its trade customers from date of
issuance of the invoices. Trade receivables arise from
rental income which is invoiced in advance monthly or
quarterly in accordance with the terms of the related
rental agreements.

2 02 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

(a)

(@)

RZE__F+ZA=+—H" =K
SEEEBETHSEANEK
B EAAEERITLEMEER
RIER (BIEE34) ©

ZHRATEBRRAEEREANAS
T (BREHEERRER) (FHHR

e

ZRETBERAEERFERR
FYENTBENEIRERNARE
346,888,000 (ZE = —F : AR

#217,388,0007T) ©

AEBAMEESEP 2 FHEER
HBE#REHBHEF /308 (=
T —F:30H) - BREFKARE
FREMBHEGZZEREAX
BFERAMAZZNES WA -
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. BEWERR R HEME WA
PREPAYMENTS (continued) RFEARIE#)
The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s NTRAEBRRINMEBHAR
trade receivables presented based on the date of the RESWAGTERHZME
properties delivered and date of demand note for rental UTBR SRV BR R D AT -
income were recognised:
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETF T
0 - 30 days 0-30H 22,418 1,750
31 - 90 days 31 -90H 3,683 169
Over 90 days B0 H 20,414 18,081
46,515 20,000
As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade R —_F+-_/F=+—H "
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying REBZEWERERGES T 2IER
amount of RMB24,097,000 (2021: RMB18,250,000) mME DB EHAERE ARE
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out 24,097,000 (ZEZ—F : AR
of the past due balances, RMB20,414,000(2021: 18,250,0007T) H) FE UK BE 3Kk » I Z 55
RMB18,081,000) has been past due 90 days or more mEIE T - AR®20,414,0000T
and is not considered as in default based on the (ZE=2=-—%F: AR¥18,081,0007T)
Group's historical credit loss experience from these B HI0HA A - BREAEFA
corresponding debtors. ZEREBRREAZATEEEERK
SRl ARWAR BEL ©
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other e Uk BE % H b pE Uk S 1B DR B BT
receivables are set out in note 32. HFF ISP E32 ©
RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/ 22. ¥R ?'ﬁIJ/E',}E, b1 iﬁﬁ'ﬁ-?ﬁ’\/

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Restricted/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances which, in accordance with the applicable
government regulations prevailing in 2022, are
placed in restricted bank accounts, amounting to
RMB459,926,000 (2021:RMB502,602,000), which can
only be applied in the designated property development
projects. The balances carrying interest at variable
interest rates ranging from 0.25% to 2.60% (2021:
0.3% to 1.50%) per annum.

RITEBRRES
ZRE,BEBETER
BE-_ZZ-__FBTHEABBRFZE
B BFEASBRHHETES ZEITLE
#8 A R#459,926,0007T (=& = —
£ AR #502,602,0007T) £ 7] A
RIETEWEEREER - BHENT
0.25%%2.60% (ZE=—% : 0.3%
£1.50%) 2 F AR B

RE=ZAZRARALT
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

22. RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/ 22. SR& CHEHEITER

BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) BITHEBRERRE (#)
Restricted/pledged bank deposits (continued) SR BEBRTERE)

The amount of RMB28,000,000 (2021: RMB6,562,000) R-E-_—_F+=-_A=+—H" A
was pledged for bank and other borrowings as at 31 R #28,000,000c (ZE=Z—%F : A
December 2022, as detailed in note 34. R #6,562,0000T) E sLIR 17 M H fib

fEEFER  FRENME34 -

Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE
The bank balances carry interest at market rates which RITEBIENTEF0.25%E1.78%
range from 0.25% to 1.78% (2021: 0.1% to 2.60%) (ZE=—F :01%%E260%) 2
per annum. G KRR o
Details of impairment assessment of restricted/pledged SREEBIEFRITERRETAE
bank deposits and bank balances are set out in note 32. R RERT A F BN E32 »
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 23. EBRRUREENKIE
ACCRUALS KEER
2022 2021
—E-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Trade payables (note a) FERTBRZX (BT ita) 761,790 877,928

Other payables (note b) H th jE S FRE (A7 aEb) 707,796 722,638

Deposits received from tenants B AR e 27,817 26,296

Other tax payables H A A T IE 110,681 58,756

Accrued construction costs (note c) FERTIREERK AR (B7 itc) 600,597 710,986

2,208,681 2,396,604

Note: Vo=
(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables (a) LTAEERBRZQEH2Y 2 ER
presented based on the invoice date: BEFEEW DT -

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AEET T

Unbilled ENGES 229,473 229,481
0 — 30 days 0-30H 15,098 214,393
31 -90 days 31 -90H 52,360 64,186
91 - 365 days 91 - 365H 96,034 113,129
Over 1 year BiE1F 368,825 256,739

761,790 877,928
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

24,

(a)

(b)

(0

(continued)

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for payments to contractors and suppliers of property
development projects and purchases of construction
materials. The average credit period granted to the
Group is from 6 months to 1 year. The management
closely monitors the payments of the payable to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.
Details of the financial risk management polices by the
Group are set out in note 32.

Included in the amounts are balances amounting to
RMB151,094,000 (2021: RMB444,031,000) which were
advanced from independent third parties for short
term borrowing purposes, which are non-trade related,
interest bearing of 3.75% per annum and repayable on
demand.

The accrued construction costs relate to construction of
properties under development for sale and investment
properties which will be transferred to trade or other
payables on achieving payment milestones as stipulated
in the agreements with the subcontractors.

CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT

23. BRI U R H ith B FRIE
FESTER#)
WisE - (48)

(@ (&)

EBNEARTIZEERMERRE
BERBEERMAAETREERS
SN ZHRBAZREETE - AAE
BREZFHEEMREAZE—
FoERBRYEREMNFAZN
BAEI  LARELR P A JE 1 SR RE
ERBERAXN - AREZEHHR
RERBR 2 FHIBHNMFE32

(b) ZHREREBEILE=FEEER
Z B F A AR 151,094,000
(ZZ2=—%F : AR%444,031,000
o) RIEEFHEE - K3T75%F
FRFABRAERERER -

(0 RBABEREAFIRFEERRTY
EWRERRERBEDBEMAL
BT RENNREREEEE
BWRTESAEMENFTENOR

24, SHNREREHNEE

LIABILITIES
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —4F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T AR EF T
Contract costs: BHKA
Incremental cost to obtain contracts WEE 47 I8e kA
(note a) (Hizta) 76,682 121,063
Contract liabilities: aHaE:
Sales of properties (note b) W EE (K ib) 8,977,138 10,271,377

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 B Z=—F-—4F+=-A=+—HIFEF

24. CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Contract costs capitalised relate to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into sale
and purchase agreements for the Group’s properties
which are still under construction at the reporting date.
Contract costs are recognised as part of selling and
marketing expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period in which revenue from the related property sales
is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised
in profit or loss during the year was RMB65,236,000
(2021: RMB55,356,000). There was no impairment in
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or
the costs capitalised during both years.

The Group receive payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in property sales
contracts. Payments are usually received in advance from
sales of properties.

The contract liabilities of RMB8,977,138,000 (2021:
RMB10,271,377,000) as at 31 December 2022 represent
the deposits received from pre-sale of properties.

Included in revenue recognised for the reporting period,
RMB3,104,280,000 (2021: RMB2,635,713,000) was
included in the contract liabilities at 31 December 2021.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the relevant
group entities. For the current year, the effective interest
rate used for this adjustment is 4.75% (2021:4.75%).
As this accrual increases the amount of the contract
liability during the period of construction, it increases
the amount of revenue recognised when control of
the completed property is transferred to the customer.
For this purpose, only the advance payments that are
expected to be recognised as revenue after 12 months
from the date of advance payment would be considered
to contain significant financing component. As at 31
December 2022, approximately RMB34,906,000(2021:
RMB312,840,000) of the carrying amount of contract
liabilities subject to these schemes contain significant
financing component.
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25. (RITREMEE

2022 2021

—E=-= - —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T ARETF T

Secured bank borrowings EEFRITEE 5,689,490 6,531,232
Secured other borrowings EERBEMEE 1,030,530 1,674,000
6,720,020 8,205,232

Note: et -
The other borrowings were raised from independent third
parties, which are financial institutions, financial asset
management companies and a property developer.

HERDREBILE=T N BE
B 2REEEELNRAINYERES -

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are
repayable based on scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements as follows:

REBEE R e A P78 BEE & 5 B
EEEN LAEENREENT

Bank borrowings Other borrowings

RITIRE Httg 8
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--F T - —F —E-=-F —F - —4&
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT NRET T ARBFT ARET T

Within one year —F R 1,580,198 1,668,570 353,532 130,000
More than one year, but —F LA E BT
not exceeding two years B W F 2,315,092 1,495,700 60,732 394,000
More than two years, but ~ FRE £ - BFER
not exceeding five years B\HE 807,200 2,638,962 616,266 1,150,000
More than five years AFLE 987,000 728,000 - -
5,689,490 6,531,232 1,030,530 1,674,000
Less: Amounts due within 5 : mEIBEE T~
one year shown Fime—FRA
under current FIEf &R
liabilities (1,580,198) (1,668,570) (353,532) (130,000)
Amounts shown under ERHBEBEE TR
non-current liabilities NGt ] 4,109,292 4,862,662 676,998 1,544,000
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

25. BRITREMEE &)

AEBEBZEERRNT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—1F
RMB'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Fixed-rate borrowings BEEFMEEE 2,602,720 4,032,092
Variable-rate borrowings FEFREE 4,117,300 4,173,140
6,720,020 8,205,232

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's
borrowings are as follows:

AEBRBRENERMNRGELLT :

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

Fixed-rate borrowings, per annum BEFFEEER 2.8% - 11% 4.75% — 12.8%
Variable-rate borrowings, per annum JZB)FEF|KEE 4.75% - 7.27% 5.25% - 7.75%

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2022, the bank and other borrowings
were guaranteed and secured by the followings:

(@) Mr. Guo lJiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse
of Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to
banks for the bank and other borrowings with
principal amount of RMB3,766,450,000 (2021:
RMB4,179,370,000);

(b) Bank and other borrowings were pledged by
Group’s investment properties, properties under
development, inventories of properties, trade
receivables from rental income, restricted bank
deposits and equity interests in subsidiaries. Details
of the pledged assets are set out in note 34.
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

In respect of bank and other borrowing with carrying
amount of RMB427,000,000 (2021: RMB1,110,000,000)
as at 31 December 2022, the Group is required to
comply with the financial covenants throughout the
continuance of the relevant bank and other borrowings
and as long as the relevant bank and other borrowings
is outstanding.

The Group has complied with these covenants
throughout the reporting period.

25. BRITREMEE &)

MR —E-__F+-_A=+—8BH
BRI E A A R #427,000,0007T (=
T —44: AR#¥1,110,000,0007T)
MIRTTREMEEMS - EHBIR
ThREMEENRERRAUARRE
HRERITREMEE N REERE &~
SERMNBEETHEREY -

AEBEEEFERENANGETHR
HIZHTE o

SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Number of shares Share capital
gk g=| g 7
2022 2021 2022 2021
—_E-C —EFE-— —E-= g
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TR TR AREFT AREFT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of BREE0.0178
HK$0.01 each T E AR 200,000,000 200,000,000 1,979,280 1,979,280
Convertible preference 7] # % {8 5 i%
shares 602,000 602,000 4,902 4,902
Issued and fully paid E#TREE
At the beginning of RFEH]
the year 5,088,208 5,087,208 42,890 42,881
Exercise of share 170 RS R e
options (note) (K1:E) - 1,000 - 9
At the end of the year R &R 5,088,208 5,088,208 42,890 42,890
Note: Bist -

During the reporting period, the Company issued 1,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each upon exercise of share
options. The new ordinary share rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

BEHRARRANBEREETERRET
1,000,000/ & X E {H50.01/8 7T 2 & 8
o EBREMATHEER 2RA
B ZARFHA -
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U AHEHESHEXS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
16 September 2011, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
board of directors in its sole discretion considers
eligible.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will
be determined by the board of directors at the time of
grant.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.
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For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date specified in the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercisable period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
the grant of the share options.

On 22 February 2016, a total of 46,000,000 shares
options (Batch 1 Options) were granted to the directors,
employees and others providing similar services of the
Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee
which entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.285
per share. It shall be exercisable during the period from
the date of grant, first, second and third anniversary of
the date of grant respectively in the following manner:

(@) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the date of grant;

(b) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the first anniversary of the date of
grant;

() 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the second anniversary of the date of
grant;

(d) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the third anniversary of the date of
grant.

27. LR BEEZNRRZ &)

BROBREZEZENERTB2H
BARTHER  ARAREWRA
XHEHIBTZREBANRE - X
HEREZTERAARRESRE
E - YRETEBHMGERERMALL
MERBATSERBERERL A
HIRERT+4F o

RZE—-—RFEF-_A=-+=-ZH &%
46,000,00017 i A& (58 —HLEE AR )
ERTASECES  EB RIEH
BEREMNEMAL  SZEKRA
AYNBEREUVEIL - ARAAE
BREZEMR0285B L ZITHEER
BAQNRIFERERR - HA 5B RE
HHAH EBEHBHE-—AF MAF
N = iBEFRIBEANERATARITE

(a) ML BERIARMREITE
25% BB AR 4

(b) ML B H—BFEREARK
AITE25% 0B AR #E

(0 WEHBHAMBFEEAE
AJTT1825 % 5 B HE

(d RELEBH=ZAFLEHMAE
A[1T{H25% B8 AR o
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

— = — —

=

27.

On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
(Batch 2 Options) were granted to the directors,
employees and others providing similar services of the
Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee
which entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420
per share. It shall be exercisable during the period from
the date of grant, first and second anniversary of the
date of grant respectively in the following manner:

(a)

period from the date of grant;

(b)

40% of the option will be exercisable during the

30% of the option will be exercisable during the

period from the first anniversary of the date of

grant;

(0)

30% of the option will be exercisable during the

period from the second anniversary of the date of

grant.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

Fr_A=1—HIFE

URHBAREZNAARRS (&)

RZE—-N\FONA-_+IHHE &%
59,700,000 B A% & (58 —#EHE AR #E)
ERTAEEZEE EENREMH
HERBNEMAL BR2EARA
BARTNEEREVET - ARATE
BRI EIR T AR0.4208 T 2 1TF B2
BAQNRHLEK -Han Rl RIIT
HYHH REBH—RAFERMBEF
HEE AR AT RITE :

RELEBHEREEANE a7
40% B8 f 4

(a)

R H B8 —BFRE A
AJTT1E30% M5 R HE

(b)

PR B IR F R HA TR A A
RIT1E30%ME AR o

(©

BREAREMN ZFHBOT

Exercisable period  Exercise Price

R B BEHE TEEE TEE
Options granted to directors, 22 February 2016 Immediately to 22 February 2016 to HK$0.285
employees and others 3 years from the 21 February 2022
providing similar services date of grant
ETE% EEREHEMN —T—XF FRERHAHE —ZT—XE_A 0.285/% 7T
BRI < H A+ 2 BB —A=-+=H FT34F —+-B%
¥ —E-_—_%—-H
—+—H
Options granted to directors, 24 April 2018 Immediately to 24 April 2018 to HK$0.420
employees and others 2 years from the 23 April 2024
providing similar services date of grant
ETEF EERRE#EBEN Z—T-N\F RERHARE —ZT—-N\FHA 0.4207 7T
Rz B A+ 2 AR E MmA—-+mAH 24 —+mA
—ETZNEMA
—+=H
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REVBHRRME

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27,

(continued)

For year ended 31 December 2022 &% —

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by directors, employees

E-—Ff A=+ —HIFE

LR BEEZNRRS (&)

TEREREREHANEE REERH
BURBzEMALTHAEZANRTA

and others providing similar services during the BE IS 4 2
reporting period.
2022 —E-
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Option type 2022 year year year 2022
—EC-CE —ECCE
-A-H +ZA=1-H
FRERR EARTE ERRE ERfE EREN HRTE
Batch 1 Options: E-HERE:
Directors S 5,400,000 - - (5,400,000) -
Employees and others EERREBEURE
providing similar services  Ef AL 17,600,000 - - (17,600,000) -
Batch 2 Options: E-HERE:
Ex-Directors AES 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
Directors % 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000
Employees and others EERRHEURE 2
providing similar services  Efti A+ 18,200,000 - - - 18,200,000
Total st 75,000,000 - - (23,000,000) 52,000,000
Exercisable at the end of ~ EXRA{7E
the year 52,000,000
Weighted average exercise  AIE 51715 &
price HK$0.3793% 7t HKS$0.379% 7t HK$0.4203% 7t

RE=ZAZRARALT
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

27. AR BEEZNARRS (&)

TREBEHRE_T - —F+_H
S+t HLEFERESE REBERH
BURBzEMALHAEZARA

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by directors, employees
and others providing similar services during the year

ended 31 December 2021. BN RE Y B E) o
2021 —E-—F
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Option type 2021 year year year 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
—A-H TZA=1-A
BRERY RAITE EREHT FNIE FRRM HAITE
Batch 1 Options: E-HERE:
Directors B 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000
Employees and others EERREEURE
providing similar services  Ef AL 18,600,000 - (1,000,000) - 17,600,000
Batch 2 Options: E-HERE:
Ex-Directors EE 27,400,000 - - (4,400,000) 23,000,000
Directors ) 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000
Employees and others EERRHEUREZ
providing similar services  Effi A+ 18,200,000 - - - 18,200,000
Total @t 80,400,000 - (1,000,000 (4,400,000 75,000,000
Exercisable at the end of &K {T{F
the year 75,000,000
Weighted average exercise I 15171 (E
price HK$0.38075 & - HK$0.285% 7  HK$0.3807%,r  HK$0.379/ T
During the year ended 31 December 2021, 1,000,000 Rz -—F+-_HA=+—H

options were exercised and the related weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised was
HK$0.51 per share.

1EE 1,000,000 B I HE B JETTE
AR BB EETE S R
2 MR R THE B ER0.51

BT e

No options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

+_H_+ HIEFE - *ﬁiﬁ%#ﬁ
(ERCIE-1E
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. UG AEESZNHERS (&)

(continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the BHREERBENFRAAGRKRE
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over JIESEEETE ZEAFMTB 28
the previous 6 years. The expected life used in the SEHOREBEEIERB 2 & EMET
model has been adjusted, based on management’s best MAFTEE  TERSRITRER
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise P 2 0 2 F LA o

restrictions and behavioral considerations.

For the past ten years before the valuation date, no HERHMAETF HESEHL
dividend has been declared and paid to the shareholders KR ETFTARRAIRE - ZIHRIE
of the Company. Dividend yield is assumed to be zero WHRERENRGEZEEE -

in the Binomial model.
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

28. CONVERTIBLE BOND 28. AIARES

The movement of the debt and derivative components
of the convertible bond for the year is set out below:

RERN A BRREFZEHRITE
TEMEKE D 2 BB -

Debt Derivative

component  component

BN fTET A

i) HER 2

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANEB¥Fr AREFIT

As at 1 January 2021 N-_E-_—F—HF—H 333,112 230,798

Interest expense (note 9) MER (K :29) 30,471 -

Interest paid ERFE (8,172) -
Change in fair value recognised RiBmERZ

in profit or loss NEEEE - (121,832)

Exchange adjustments bE X, 3 (10,438) (6,895)
As at 31 December 2021 R-_TE-—F

+ZA=+—H 344,973 102,071

Interest expense (note 9) MERXZ (#i9) 34,681 -

Interest paid ERFE (4,296) -
Change in fair value recognised in profit RIEZFHERZ

or loss NEEESH - (101,429)

Exchange adjustments PE 3 A2 29,133 5,538

As at 31 December 2022 RZEZ—F+=H
—+—H 404,491 6,179

Binomial valuation model is used for valuation of the
derivative component. The key inputs used in the model
are disclosed in note 32(c). The share price as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 were HK$0.22 and HK$0.48
respectively.

On 30 January 2019, the Company issued 1 %
Convertible bond (the Convertible Bond due in 2024)
in the principal amount of HK$500,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB428,319,000) to Primary Partner International
Limited (Primary Partner) as part of the consideration
for acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (All Excel).
The convertible bond is denominated in HK$. The
Convertible Bond due in 2024 entitles the holder to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time starting from 30 January 2019 to 30 January
2024 at a conversion price of HK$0.412 per share.
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RZZE-—HhLF—-—A=+H XA
Bl MPrimary Partner International
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28. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

The conversion price is subject to adjustment arising
from alteration of the nominal amount of the shares
caused by share consolidation, share subdivision, rights
issue or any other reasons as provided in the terms and
conditions of the convertible bond. The Company may
voluntarily redeem all or any part of the convertible
bond at any time following the issue of the convertible
bond and prior to the maturity date by repaying the
holder of the convertible bond all outstanding principal
amount together with unpaid interest accrued thereon
up to the date of voluntary redemption. Holder of the
convertible bond has no right to require the Company
to early redeem the convertible bond.

The Convertible Bond due in 2024 contains two
components, debt component and derivative
component (including conversion option and early
redemption option). Upon initial recognition, the
fair value of debt component is HK$336,051,000
(equivalent to RMB287,874,000) and the fair value of
derivative component is HK$317,907,000 (equivalent
to RMB272,331,000). The effective interest rate of the
debt component is 9.55% per annum and subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The derivative component
is measured at fair value at initial recognition and at
the end of the reporting period with fair value gain of
RMB101,430,000 (2021: RMB121,832,000) recognised
in profit or loss during the year.

The fair values of derivative component of Convertible
Bond due in 2024 as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, independent
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

28. KRB S &)

BRERAEERD A ROK
AR~ R B Sk AT R RS I R R B R A
PR TE 2 1A At 32 /R T 38 BUAR {0
HEZFMELFHE - AR AR
BLOAHAMEARRESTEAE
EfEARBEASBREE RN
MEREFETAIMRESRR RE A
Al A7) B 6] B RE B (=) = 7B sk AL f) 7
DABERES I BRERESFFKAEA
BREERARAREFELOARKE
%o

=

N\ZZE_NFRBH A BRESF
BEMEAKID  BHEAKI D
EOTETREBERKES D (BIEEIRE
MERERIZATE O BB ARHE) - ) P 7E
RE - BEHEAXBINAFES
336,051,0008 7t (FlHE R AR
287,874,0007T) * MATHE T EMAK
2o E A FE A317,907,0000 7T
(HHE M ARK#272,331,0007T) °
BEFEAKBINEBRNEASF
9.55% ' HB LB AT ER - £7
AT EHDRVILTERT RAME
HAREAFEFZ2 2FEKRITA
R #101,430,000T (=& = — & :
AR #121,832,00070) R EFERNIE %R
TR o

i = ——— —T-—%+=H
=t+—B - ZE-_MFEIHEH K
BREHFTETAXD 2 AFETIE
BAEETEEAE B IEEME
B EmT B AAER AR TET
ZIEEEE -
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

29. PROMISSORY NOTE 29. AR R

On 30 January 2019, the Group issued promissory note
with principal amount of HK$600,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB513,983,000) to Primary Partner as part of the
consideration for acquisition of All Excel. The principal
amount of the promissory note shall be settled either
in full or in part by no later than 30 January 2024.
The interest payable under the promissory note shall
accrue at the rate of 3% per annum for the first and
second years, 4.5% per annum for the third and fourth
years and 6% per annum for the fifth year after the
date of issuance on the outstanding principal amount,
respectively. The Company has the discretion to repay
all or part of the principal balance at any time prior
to the maturity date by giving 10 business days prior
written notice to holders of the promissory note. As
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair value effect
of the early redemption options are assessed to be is
insignificant. Holder of the promissory note has no right
to require the Company to early redeem the promissory
note. The promissory note is initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate of the promissory note is 9.55% per
annum.

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of promissory
note is RMB519,026,000 (2021: RMB455,357,000), and
the directors consider that the carrying amount of the
promissory note recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to its fair value.
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For year ended 31 December 2022 &%

30. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of 100% equity interests in Link
Equity International Limited (together with
its subsidiaries, namely, Best Way Industries
Incorporated and Bestway Success
Development Limited) (“Link Equity Group”)

The disposal of Link Equity Group was completed
on 1 March 2022 to an independent third party at
an aggregate consideration of US$10.

Details of net liabilities disposed of in respect of
the Link Equity Group at the date of disposal are
summarised as below:

CEC CHFEF A=+ —HIFE

30. HEKB AT

(a)

HH ELink Equity
International Limited 100%
RE(ESHEHNE X7 >
BlBest Way Industries
Incorporated & Bestway
Success Development
Limited) ([ Link Equity5£ [ |)
HELink Equity SBER =T
—ZF=A—HEK #RE
R10ETT °

Link Equitys R EE B8 2
EHEaBEFREFBERMNT -

RMB’000

AR For

Other payables H A & - ;1B (28)

Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEFE (28)

Gain on disposal of the Link Equity Group  tH#&Link EquitysE B 2 W 25 28

Total consideration BRE -
Net cash inflows arising from disposal: HEELEMNRSRAFE

Consideration received 2R AE -

* Less than RMB1,000

* DRARET000T

2022F % 2 1 9
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZF - —F+—

30. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of 100% equity interests in Xi'an
Sanxie Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Xi‘an Sanxie)

The Group realised that the purchased

H=+—HIFFE

30.HEMB AT (&)
(b) HERAZ=-HEXERLT
(TEZ=%1) 100%% #E

AEBEHIOAL=—HOE

land

of Xi'an Sanxie, which was obtained via a
government land auction, was relatively smaller
than expected and was surrounded by other
properties developers’ lands. After thorough
internal discussion, the Group decided not to
proceed with the development of the project.
As a result, the Group disposed of Xi‘an Sanxie.
The disposal of Xi‘an Sanxie was completed on
1 June 2022 to an independent third party at an
aggregate consideration of RMB67,850,000.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of
the Xi'an Sanxie at the date of disposal are

Eti (BRABN LHHEER
%) HEREHL - B EAM
VIERERON TR - &
BIAEDHRNEI - NEER
ETNBETZEENRE A
I AEBEHEAL =1 &
EALZ=ZHER_ZT=__F
A—BEK BREAEARK
67,850,0007T °

BERAZ=HBRHEAMNG
HEBEFEFABHMNT :

summarised as below:

RMB’000
ARETF T
Inventory — properties under development FE—FEXRMME
for sale 267,014
Other receivables H Ah & R IE 33
Bank balance and cash RITEHRERS 1
JE 1< BR SR A B2 L FE < 3R IE % FE 5T

Trade and other payables and accruals =) (167,715)
Net assets disposed of EREEETE 99,343
Loss on disposal of the Xi'an Sanxie HERLZ=tHEE (31,493)
Total consideration wRAE 67,850

Net cash inflows arising from disposal: HEELENIRERA TR
Consideration received 2R E 67,850
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of  Jil : EHERITEBR LIRS (11)
67,839
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30. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

30. HEMB QT (&)

() Disposal of 100% equity interests in Xi‘an () HERLBUEEHERRE
Diyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd PR A ] #9100 % AR RE ([ 7 =i
("Xi'an Diyue) 1)

In prior year, Xi'an Diyue borrowed from a PRC
property developer (the “Lender”), who is an
independent third party, (the “Loan”) while 30%
of the shares of Xi'an Diyue have been pledged to
the Lender as a security. During the year, the Loan
was due to mature. After internal discussions, the
Group decided not to proceed with this project in
view of the significant requirement of resources
to fulfil the significant capital commitment to
complete this project and the foreseeable return.
The Group decided to dispose of the whole project
as a package at nil consideration to the Lender.
The project was sold in this manner such that the
Group could eliminate the indebtedness to the
Lender of RMB600,000,000. The disposal of Xi'an
Diyue was completed on 25 August 2022.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of the
Xi'an Diyue at the date of disposal are summarised
as below:

RE—FE AR —
BEIE PRy ERE
mIERADEBEAER(E
;1) MR Z30% %
BEHFERAEAEAY -
FREREEH &R
Wi ERNEKZEBEEMERKN
BREREFTERELERKLE
REH AEBRENHET
ZIEE  AEBAEUANZTRE
HEEEBEEES—EAREBHE
FTERA - ZEBEEENREAFR
HE WASENLEFERE
KAREB AR%600,000,000
T HEALTBEABERZF
——ENAZTHEBEK -

FRAZBENHERRZD
HEEEFEFABRMNT

RMB’000
ARE T T
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE LB 17
Inventory — property under development
for sale FE-HEEERDPYE 1,100,160
Trade and other receivables and P LAY B R R L th JE LSRR TE K2
prepayments A B 35,940
Bank balance and cash RITEHREE R 44
JE 1 BR R A B2 L At JRE RN IE J2
Trade and other payables and accruals e & B (209,245)
Other borrowing H b8 (600,000)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFHAE 326,916
Loss on disposal of the Xi‘an Diyue HEAZBB . EE (326,916)
Total consideration BwR(E -
Net cash outflows arising from disposal: HEEEZReRE FEE
Consideration received 2R E -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of i : D HERITEBR RIS (44)
(44)

RE=ZAZRARALT
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30. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(d) Disposal of its 60% equity interests

30. HEMB AT (&)
(d) HEEAEFE-HEEEH

in Nanping Sandi Xiangsong Real

Estate Development Co., Ltd (“Nanping
Xiangsong”)

At the beginning stage, the location of project of
Nanping Xiangsong was originally set out as an
area of tourism and ecological resort. However,
at a later stage, the local government decided to
have an airport to be built nearby. This unexpected
change caused the Group to decide for disposal
of the whole project as a package in order to
minimise the cost to be incurred to sell the
properties individually by each unit. Therefore, the
Group decided to dispose of all of its 60% equity
interests in Nanping Xiangsong. The disposal
of Nanping Xiangsong was completed on 29
September 2022 to an independent third party at
a consideration of RMB30,000,000.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of the
Nanping Xiangsong at the date of disposal are
summarised as below:

ERBARAR ((HFEE]D
260% R &

R  BFEMEEARXN
B R AR E =ikl & ERE
BRE - AT EREREER
b 73 BT R TE FE MY AT B A A
52BN BB EHAKEIR
EREEBEER—BFL
S UHEEETEBLEY
EMEENRARERE - H
b AEBREHEERNEF
HFERNEIB0%ME - HERM
TEEER=-ZZ=Z=FNA
—thBRER RER/RARE
30,000,0007T °

ERmTEENHEASMZE
HEBEFEFABHRMNT :

RMB’000
ARETF T
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 2,170
Inventory — properties under development
for sale FE-SEREDPYE 638,668
Inventory — properties held for sale FE-BELEME 80,428
Trade and other receivables and JE WAt AR R R L th B LSRR B K
prepayments AT IR 203,270
Bank balance and cash RITHEBRRE 31,192
JE 11 BR R A B L th JRE A BN IE K2
Trade and other payables and accruals JEzt & (603,119)
Bank borrowings RITEE (228,330)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBEE (1,600)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 122,679
Less: non-controlling interests B SETE R HE (49,071)
Loss on disposal of the Nanping Xiangsong HEM¥FEME 2 EE (43,608)
Total consideration BwRE 30,000
Net cash outflows arising from disposal: HEEEAZRERE F5
Consideration received 2R E 30,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of 5 : EHERITEKR RIS (31,192)
(1,192)
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31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the composition of debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the bank and other borrowings,
convertible bond, promissory note, related companies
and ultimate controlling shareholder, disclosed in notes
25, 28, 29, and 38 respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Group, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
management reviews the planned construction projects
proposed by engineering department and prepares the
annual budget taking into account of the provision
of funding. The management of the Group assesses
the annual budget and considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
management of the Group also balances its overall
capital structure through the repayment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

31. X ERERE

AEBEEEEARURRAKE
EREANFELE UEBEBLE
15 M e AR B R A R AR K B
AEENEBRERRR I —FERRE

REBZEAELERFER (BED
BBt 5E25 ~ 28 ~ 29384 FE 7 4R
ThkEMEE TBRRES &K
EZ HEAGERENWE AR
THRR R BB QR R AR AR
ReFIE) BHekReFBEFER
AEBEHE ABERE(BRERERR
) A -

AEBEEEETREHNERNRE -
ERBEHNZ M2 BEEHFEHNT
REMESENGEZERE X HE
ERINESLHERREFERE -
AEBEEERRFGFEREMN
REBETKRAREEESHIEEA
Rk - AEBEETEBEERS
FR A B AT R B0 B B8 DA K B 1T 37
ERSEORAEERTHEERREE
LN
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. 2T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) 2RI EZHER
2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Financial assets HKEE

Financial assets at amortised cost RE KA E B EE 1,361,107 2,160,176

Financial liabilities L p =R

Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#Ek At E 7K EE 9,475,188 11,879,841

Derivative financial instruments PEEBMTA 6,179 102,071
9,481,367 11,981,912

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEBEEEEREE
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related companies and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, restricted/pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to related
companies, and a director, bank and other
borrowings, convertible bond and promissory note.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
monetary item will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Company and its certain Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Company (for which their
functional currency is RMB) have bank balances,
other receivables, other payables, amounts due to
related companies, convertible bond, promissory
note and intra-group balances denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$"”). The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

The Group considers its foreign currency exposure
is mainly arising from the exposure of HK$ against
RMB. The Group regularly reviews the balances
of assets and liabilities and the currencies in
which the transactions are denominated so as to
minimise the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk.

—E—-

T —Ff _H=F—HIFE

32. €T R &)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

S EEAREE
SMERRIEE B E R BEEE
FE 5 2 80 77 B9 2 TR o

ARAREETEAKBAR
(HIBHEBARK) BRI
B8 R RHOR - 2
NAE - BN REA R RE -
TRBRES  EARE RE
=02 R B A A T (158
TE) B - 4% B 5 5 B
R HOKE - H A E RSN E
3 % B R 4 5 B AR AR
) 51 I L IR 0% 98BS A 15 0
TEEKF -

AEBRAR HEEERREE
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities and intra-group balances,
with exposure to foreign currency risk which are
considered as significant by management, at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

32. €T R &)
(b) BIXERESEEERKE (&)

Ih B B B EE (4B

AN 2 B DA SNEE SHE 30 T AN
ERrzreBEERSEAEN
REBARAAGIEESR (BEEE
REBEREB)RNBERRZE
HEHT :

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-—-fF T ZE--—F —_T_-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT ARETIT AR¥TFrT ARETT
HK$ - intra-group BT —%£EBRA
balances N B fE 45 5% 270,566 289,066 53,375 53,081
HK$ - other BT — H A
balances 49,803 45,166 938,610 908,732
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2021: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against HK$. 5% (2021: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period end for a 5% (2021: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
strengthen 5% (2021: 5%) against HK$. For a 5%
(2021: 5%) weakening of RMB against HK$, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit and the amounts below would be

32. €T R &)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

BRE 5T

TERFINAEBRARKE LB
JCBE A p R 5% (ZF
T F 5% )RBIHRE &
MAZEBEEIE A BERINE
A FRAS% (T —:
5% ) BBREREL R - GRE
DITEBIER TIRE I AINE
STEzZEEEE BRBREH
RIZER 25% (Z T = —F
5% ) & @JLTTT Eﬂ*AZ T%

5% (ZE = —%F :5% ) %
Mmoo igme AR B
mTEﬂes%(_;_—fﬁ 5% )

SHBRTE G M EKR

negative. ﬁE’MHﬁ?&ﬁ“ T X& a5
BRa-
2022 2021
—E== —EZ—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETF T A BT T
Increase in post-tax profit F R B & FE N
for the year 25,186 23,534

In managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the relevant years.

EEERR BREIFTITNR
7 BB HMNE R J?I/’%Eiﬁ
[\ Bea I A e BR AR B 4F 2 LR
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. E® T B #®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHEMREEEEZEREE(Z)

policies (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to bank and other borrowings, debt
component of convertible bond, promissory note
and amount due to a related company as disclosed
in notes 25, 28, 29 and 38(a) respectively.
These financial instruments issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on restricted/pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group is not exposed to significant
cash flow interest rate risk on restricted/pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as the fluctuation
in interest rate are insignificant. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is presented. The Group has not
used any financial instruments to hedge potential
fluctuation in interest rates.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’'s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, other
receivables, restricted/pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and amounts due from related companies
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts, except that the credit risks
associated with financial guarantee contracts
is mitigated because they are secured over-by
properties.

2 28 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

32. €T R &)
(b) BMIREREEEERKE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the customers is limited as the
customers have continuous repayment. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
based on provision matrix.

The concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade receivables is minimal, of which there is no
customers represent more than 5% of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Trade receivables arising from rental income

Trade receivables from rental income are assessed
for ECL individually and the provision rates are
based on the historical default rates, past due
status and the financial capability of individual
debtor taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue cost or effort. For the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group assessed the ECL for trade receivables from
rental income are insignificant and thus no loss
allowance is recognised.

Other receivables (mainly made up of fund
advance to contractions) and refundable
deposits

For other receivables and refundable deposits, the
management makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there
are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables
are insignificant and thus no loss allowance is
recognised.

1= B /7 B K a8 715 (%)
EFERELZEWIRAL

HEREFERHEENR  A&E
A EFE AT m R (E SRR
BER - AEBECHIEHEMEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

32. €T R &)
BEEREEEERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Amounts due from related companies/
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

The credit risk of amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are managed through an internal
process. The Group actively monitors the
outstanding amount owed by each related party
and identifies any credit risks in a timely manner
in order to reduce the risk of a credit related loss.
Further, the Group closely monitors the financial
performance of the related companies which
mainly engage in properties development in the
PRC and financial capacity of non-controlling
shareholder and considering the future prospects
of the industry in which those debtors operate
in. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on the outstanding
balances individually. For the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed
the ECL for amounts due from related companies
and a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary
are insignificant and thus no loss allowance in
recognised.

The Group exposes to concentration of credit
risk in respect of amounts due from a related
company and a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiary at the amounts of RMB87,268,000 and
RMB168,346,000 (2021: RMB140,813,000 and
RMB362,146,000), respectively, representing 39%
and 80% (2021: 45% and 65%) of total amounts
due from related companies and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries. The directors of
the Company continue to monitor and assess
the financial status of the counterparties, and
they believe the exposure to credit risk on these
balances is not significant as the counterparties
are of good financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 # %

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Bank balances/restricted/pledged bank deposits

The credit risks on bank balances and restricted/
pledged bank deposits are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances
and restricted/pledged bank deposits by reference
to information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the
12m ECL on bank balances and restricted/pledged
bank deposits is considered to be insignificant and
therefore no loss allowance was recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts

For the financial guarantee contracts provided
by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers borrowing of mortgage loans to finance
their purchase of properties, the Group measured
the loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts
by reference to the loss on default based on the
current property value and the pre-sale deposits
already received. For the financial guarantee
contracts provided by the Group to banks in
connection with the related parties and third
parties bank borrowings, the directors of the
Company has performed impairment assessment,
and concluded that there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group is measured at an amount equal to
12m ECL. No loss allowance was recognised in
the profit or loss because the fair value of assets
pledged is higher than the guarantee amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 B Z-—L -4+ =-H=+—

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

HIFF&E

32. €T R &)

(b) MBEAMEZEEEREE(E)

1= B 7 B R Jal B 715 (48)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment RNEBRNEZERRTRTE
comprises the following categories: BIELATEER -
Other financial
Internal Trade assets/other
credit rating Description receivables items
Htp#HEE &
REE AR R FE 2 BR X ftb 18 B
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not  12m ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
e R 5% FHELREREBE BN & SHEHREEEE 12EAEH
EfFBHAT R —EERRE EEEBR
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired
BRBE B AL B RRERELST THEHEEERE 12ERBEHEE
BEEN —EERRME
&8
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
17 &t BIBABESNERSINEEER THEHEEERE 2HEBEEER
%ﬁ@@*ﬁ AR EE R R —EERRE —EERRE
A &3 0
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
E1R ERBERNEECHREERE 2HEHEERE HEHEEBE
—EERE —EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written  Amount is written
debtor is in severe financial difficulty — off off
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
2 ERBRTERARNEREV SN SRECME © 5 E M
BEAREEYEWEFIEN A ER
Al ==
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. @ T R (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BBEREEEERRE &)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE 7B R 6 E S (&)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TERFIWAEEWBEERE
the Group’s financial assets and other items, which HmIEH (BEXTEEEEIE
are subject to ECL assessment: A FTERAEERR
External Internal  12-month or Gross carrying
2022 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
CONPER APER 12ERS
—EC-CF =3 i R 2HEERR REAE
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBERAGECHEEE
Trade receivables 21 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL - 17,768
- contracts with customers R (not credit-impaired)
ERER-REEFPEH 21 TEF (Hit1) 2HRYEEEE-
(TEEERE)
Trade receivables - rental income 21 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 28,747
(Note 2) \
Y ERF-HE WA 21 A EER  N2EABRHEEESR
(Hiit2)
Deposits 21 N/A Low risk  12m ECL 191,920
(Note 3) \
HEoEEFIERTEREZES 21 TEA KRR N2EABRHEEERR
(f7:#3)
Other receivables 21 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 73
R (Note 3) (credit-impaired)
) T G 2 TEA B2 2EESESER
(Brit3) (EERE)
Amounts due from related 38(a) N/A Low risk  12m ECL 66,322
companies (Note 3) \
JEU B E N AR 38(a) A EER  NEABRHEEBER
(Hf#t3)
Amount due from a non-controlling  38(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 257,550
shareholder of subsidiary R (Note 3) \
Y —ZMBRREERRRERIE  380a) TEF KRR N2EABRHEEER
(f7:#3)
Restricted/pledged bank deposits 22 A2 N/A 12m ECL \ 487,926
SHE/BEBRITER 2 A2 TER  NEREHNEESA
Bank balances 22 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL \ 310,947
RITHE S 22 A3ZAa3 TEA 1REABHEEBE
Other items
HihER
Financial guarantee contracts 37 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 5,728,589
N (Notes 4&5) ‘
BBERELD 37 NE EERER  NLEARBEEER
(B4 R5)

PEI=ZEZERERAR 202263 233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ —-F——

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Fr_A=1—HIFE

32. €T R &)

(b) MBEAMEZEEEREE(E)

1= B 7 B R Jal B 715 (48)

(continued)
External Internal  12-month or Gross carrying
2021 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
CONPER APER 12ERYS
—E--F iot=3 i R 2HEERR REAE
RMB’000
AREFT
Financiql assets at amortised cost
REBERAGECHEEE
Trade receivables 21 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL - 11,922
- contracts with customers R \ (not creqit-‘impaired)
EUER-REEFAH 2 TEA (Wi1) EEHEEEE-
(L EEERE)
Trade receivables - rental income 21 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 8,078
(Note 2) ‘
EYERF-HE WA 21 i EKEER  12EABRHEEERER
(Hfiz2)
Deposits 21 N/A Low risk  12m ECL 167,028
R (Note 3) \
ERERFERTREES 21 TEA KRR N2EARHEEERER
(H1323)
Other receivables 21 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 73
R (Note 3) (credit-impaired)
Hb W IR 21 TEF B HBAEEBE
(Brit3) (EERE)
Amounts due from related 38(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 311,644
companies (Note 3) ‘
NG S 38(a) A ﬁEL\Fﬁ 1EABHEEBE
(H1i23)
Amount due from a non-controlling  38(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 559,586
shareholder of subsidiary R (Note 3) .
Y —EMBRREERRRERIE 3804 TEA KRR N2EARHEESER
(H1323)
Restricted/pledged bank deposits 22 A2 N/A 12m ECL ‘ 509,164
SBE/BEBRTER 2 A2 TER  NERBHNEESA
Bank balances 22 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL ‘ 592,854
RIS 22 A3ZAa3 TEA 1EABHEEBE
Other items
HihER
Financial guarantee contracts 37 N/A Low risk  12m ECL 7,403,897
N (Note 4) o
HBERED 37 EH ﬂiﬁ)ﬁ\lﬁﬁﬂ NEAEBREEERE
(hst4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. T HE %)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
=B B e R w B 1 (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: /l(/jift\r B

For trade receivables from contracts with
customers, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The trade receivables
from contracts with customers are assessed for
ECL based on provision matrix. The ECL on trade
receivables from contracts with customers at 31
December 2022 and 2021 according to provision
matrix based on historical are insignificant credit
loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
estimates without undue cost or effort. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The Group assessed 12m ECL for trade receivables
from rental income. The ECL on trade receivables
from rental income at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are insignificant according to the individual
assessments based on historical credit loss
experience adjusted by forward-looking estimates
without undue cost or effort.

For the purposes of credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information of the other
receivables, related companies and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. Except for the credit-impaired balance
of RMB73,000, which has been fully impaired,
the balances of other receivables are not past
due at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are considered by the management
to have sound financial position. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the risk of default
by these counterparties is not significant according
to the individual assessments and the ECL on these
balances are insignificant.

RREBBEPEHZ EBIARR
mME ASEBEEEBEEY
BREEFOHE AN
FEREZHBHEEERE
ATEBERE - -REBEREFA
#)2 JFE WAR FRAR 45 188 15 B e
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T ZFERZE—F+=A
=+—HB REENREES
FE B AR 7N I A8 0 19 AT IE 15 1
AAENRTIEEBIEBLR
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WAREK - BIEXRE FHAE
LA S BR B AR I R oK AR A
AR LB TERI (niE ) o

AEERKBERASKRAZRE
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BERE - R_T__FR-F
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TEK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

For the financial guarantee contracts provided
by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of properties, loan facilities
granted to related companies and third parties,
the Group measured the loss allowance on
financial guarantee contracts by reference to the
historical default rate of the customers, related
companies and third parties the loss on default
based on the current property value and the
pre-sale deposits already received and the forward
looking information. The directors of the Company
considered that the loss allowances on financial
guarantee contracts at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were insignificant to the Group.

Below are the credit rating regarding the financial
guarantee contracts:

32. €T R &)
(b) BIXERESEEERKE (&)

1= B 7 B R Jal B 715 (48)

Wi - (&)

4. BRAKEEREFEFEABERE
RABEEEWEMmMRT
RENPTBERED KT
BMENEIRE=ZHAZER
EME  AEELL2ERR
BEARREZTNBEE
HE REFYMEEETE
MEXNEBEBEREKESZS
AR ATIEEER BT 2B
ERENVEERE - AR
RESERR RZ2ET=-Z=
M—ZFE—_—F+=_A=+—
AR SIERE L EBEE
HAEEMFLTERK °

5. UTAEMBBERA QN
R -

Internal credit rating

RBEETR
Mortgage facilities granted to customers R FAREEYETFNILBRE Low risk
of the Group's properties 1K 2 B
Guarantees given to banks in connection  BLi% FREEE A B E 2L & A9 N/A (note)
with loan facilities granted to related T AR TEA (K7 a)
companies
Guarantees given to banks in connection FEFE=FHNEXRFEAFEIT N/A (note)
with loan facilities granted to third EH MR TERA (K7 a)

parties

Note: no internal credit rating have been assessed
as the assessment of loss on default was
determined based on the pledged property
value instead of the credit rating/historical
default rate of the related companies and
the third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the directors of the
Company, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by:

o continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows;

o maintaining adequate level of liquid assets
mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents
and held for trading equities securities;

o receiving pre-sale deposits for sale of
properties from customers; and

° applying long-term finance including
convertible bond, promissory note and bank
borrowings

32. €T R &)
(b) BIRERESEEERKE (&)

ARREEHRBESRRE
BEEKEE YERIAE
ZRBETREBREEER A
ERAEEZES FHER
HESMRDHESTEETK -

REEFBA T AZEFRE
BEx R

s FEEERANERRES

== .
JILEE

e RFITHHMEEEK

FoxZ2aERe MRS
ZEUEFEXZIRAE
B
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BAEFF » AR RER RIRTT

=Rt

o

PEI=ZEZERERAR 202263 23 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. T A %)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities and derivative
instruments. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

REEZmEE (E)
TRANASEFBRBERD
ETREZEMNEHBR - KB
DRBEAREEAER KT H
HAEEMBRBEZRMIRA
EREEL - TREEMNE R
AeRERE

Liquidity tables BB & K1E
Weighted ~ Ondemand 3 months Total
average  orless than to 102 2105 Over undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate 3 months 1 year years years Syear  cash flows amount
BERY *ER
MEFHNE  HMER  3EREIE 152% 125 BESE ReRELE KiE
% RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
% ABRTT  ARRTR  ARRTR  AREFn  ARBFT  ARRFT  ARRTR
piiry) i Sukat:
Trade and other payables ERERRAR
B3R 1497403 - - - - 1A 1497403
Amounts due to related EREENA7E
companes 10873 - - - - 10873 10,873
Amount due to a related ER-EEELT
company El 10.00% 5,663 16,98 208735 - - 136 23780
Amount due to a director Ei-48%3% 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings T REMEE
- fixed rate -EEHE 6.98% 456572 1726893 2500765 1878226 1,111,083  7,673539 6,720,019
Debt component of convertible R E% 2 &
bond Eh) 9.55% 4416 - 445,998 - - 450,414 404,491
Promissary note REZE 9.55% 23,845 - 631,79 - - 655,639 519,025
Financial quarantee contracts IS ERAH
(note 37) (37 5,728,589 - - - - 5728589 -
1826987 1743881 3807202 1878226 1,111,083 16367469 9,475,188
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 # %

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32. €T R &)

CEC CHFEF A=+ —HIFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREEEERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) &% R (E)
Liquidity tables (continued) TE B2 K15 (&)
Weighted ~ Ondemand 3 months Total
average or ess than to 102 2105 Over  undiscounted Carmying
interestrate 3 months 1 year Jears Jears Syear  cash flows amount
eyen AR
METEHE  HR3ER fEARIE 152% 155 BEE RenEsE ]
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
% NGEFT  AREFT AREFT ARETT  ARETT  AREFT AREFT
201 it il
Trade and other payables EREFRED
EfiE - 1,626,862 - - - - 16686 1626862
Amounts due to elaed ERBERARE - 730337 - - - - T3 T3
Amount due to a reated E-BEELT
£ 10 12218 36,653 45,51 - - 504,442 443,750
Amount due to a director Eff-428%3% - 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings ST REMEE
~ fixed rate -BEH% 183 A7859 171434 2030105 4,070,482 782,090 8814880 820523
Debt component of convertible T E% 2 B
bond a5 9.55 4,081 - 4,081 412,198 - 420,360 344973
Promissory note RAZE 9.55 22,038 - 2,038 519,125 - 563,201 455,357
Finandal quarantee contracts BB ERAH
(note 37) W#7) - 7403897 - - - - 7403897 -
10,121,103 1750997 251,795 5,001,805 782,090 20,163,605 11,906,137

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

32. €T R &)
BEEREEEERBE (&)

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB13,986
million whilst its bank balances and cash amounted
to only approximately RMB311 million. As at that
date, the Group’s outstanding bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB2,011,230,000
are due for repayment within one years.

These conditions indicate a uncertainly exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Group may not be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the assumption that the
Group will continue to operate as a going concern
notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at
31 December 2022 and subsequently thereto up
to the date of authorisation for issuance of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the
directors have adopted several measures together
with other measures in progress at the date of
authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, which include but not limited to, the
followings:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

for borrowings which will be maturing
before 31 December 2023, the Group will
actively negotiate with the banks before
they fall due to secure their renewals so as
to ensure that the necessary funds to meet
the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the future will continue
to be met. The directors do not expect to
experience significant difficulties in renewing
most of these bank borrowings upon their
maturities and there is no indication that
these bank lenders will not renew the
existing bank borrowings upon the Group's
request. The directors have evaluated the
relevant facts and circumstances available to
them and are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to renew such borrowings
upon maturity. Subsequent to the end of
reporting period, (a) bank borrowings of
approximately RMB148,294,000 have been
fully repaid whereas new bank borrowings
of approximately RMB16,000,000, with a
term of one year, have been raised; and
(b) the other borrowings of approximately
RMB100,000 have been fully repaid;

the Group would sell the investment
properties in order to improve the Group’s
financial position, liquidity and cash flows, if
necessary; and

the Group applies cost control measures in
cost of sales and administrative expenses.

32. €T R &)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

mEELEE (E)
RRERNEEMNT GRS AL
RRBESRBESK  UWEMN
Ht A ERFAEENRFEL
B EECERMNZIEEHEER
REZEREMERRE#EAD S
ERETHEMER B8R
TERRATEHE

() MBR-—_TE-_=%+=A8
=+ —B AT HAE
5 ASEBEBREERE
BEESRITRER - NIEIRE
BE EMBEREES
ﬁiK%l*%%@ﬁ@
DO BERKNONEES -
BEEEHERZERITEE
BB EBEAS D% SR
TEETEBINERR
# O AVENRBELRZXS
BITEABTTREASE
EREERBFRITEE -
BEECOTERETESDN

HEEERBR AR/
REE A REH R JHH%E
BREER - RBMEHRK

1% ()E¥%ﬂaz@fﬁm

B4 AR 148,294,000
T WEEEHRITEE
# N R #16,000,0007T °
HiRR & —F  R(b)EM{&
AR 100,000 2
TYEE
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fr_A=1—HIFE

32. €T R &)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial () 2RI EATETE
instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets FEEFRBEZMEEREERZ I
and financial liabilities that are measured at FETAECHBEERF
fair value on a recurring basis BEEZAFHE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial RERESER KEEBZET
liabilities remeasured at fair value at the end of R EERVBAaGEEREATE
each reporting period. The following table gives EHHBE FTERFHER A
information about how the fair values of these HEMBEEEZ AFEEETH
financial assets are determined (in particular the X (BRI EFFBGEAENLS
valuation technique and inputs used). AEHE) o
Fair value Valuation technique and
Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy inputs used
MKEE AF¥E AFEER FTAGERTRE AZE
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETIT
Derivative 6,179 102,071 Level 3 Binomial model Fair value
component is estimated based on
of convertible time-to-maturity, stock price,
bond conversion price, risk-free
rate, discount rate, expected
volatility and expected
dividend.
AR E R 20T 6,179 102,071 F=H/ —EAREBE-QNFERIEAA
£ TEREES IRE - BIRE - EERF X -

There were no transfers among different levels

during the year.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

32. €T R &)
() 2MIEATEHEH)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

F=RAFHEAEBZHE

measurements
Derivative
component
TTEITEIS
RMB'000
AR For
As at 1 January 2021 AT - —F—f— EI 230,798
Unrealised change in fair value recognised RIB25FER 2 R A F(EEEH)
in profit or loss (121,832)
Exchange adjustments ME 3 3 B (6,895)
As at 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H 102,071
Unrealised change in fair value recognised MIEmER 2 KR E IR N FEHEE)
in profit or loss (101,430)
Exchange adjustments FEE 5 3 3K 5,538
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-——#H#+—_H=+—H 6,179

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Group are determined as follows:

AEEMHEERMHEBELZ
NFERATEEEE

the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised costs is
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis, which the carrying amount
is approximate to its fair value; and

the fair value of financial guarantee
contracts at initial recognition is determined
to be insignificant, using option pricing
models where the main assumptions are
the probability of default by the specified
counterparty extrapolated from market-based
credit information and the amount of loss
given default.

s REENALEZHBKE
ErVEaBzZAFET
LR BR S REDMRE
ARATEEAET  HE
AEEEAFERE &

s NUTHERKUBERS
Wz R FEILTEKN T
ERMEEESEAEE
ETIEBRRRERTISE
EEREHBEEF IR
Al BEME RERFIE R
TZEBEE2E -
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33. S ZEIFffFEAWAEEYE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRIFVNAEBERELIHELED
arising from financing activities, including both cash BE BERESLIFRSEH -
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEHELANBEBERENANER 4
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future SEHReRERPTBERBS REE H
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated BAABAKRERERBEARE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing EHREREZEBE
activities.
Amounts ~ Amounts Debt
Amounts due to dueto  component
dueto ultimate non-controling of Bank and
Other Interest Lease relted  controlling  shareholders  convertible  Promissory other
payable payable  [ibities  compamies  shareholder  of subsidaries hond note  borrowings Total
B HHELR
i EABE  BHBR  FBEER TER 01
EfE  BAWR HERE MR HBRME BAMER ERY ANEE AffE &
RMB000 RuAB000 RMB000 RMB000 RWB000 RuAB000 RuB000 RMB000 RWB000 RuAB000
ARB7T  AEBFT ARBFT AREFT ABEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ABEFT AREFT
(note 400 (note 40 note 23)
(i) )
At T anuary 2001 78,020 3801 860 9839 9,626 780 311 460,809 842995 10461787
Finanaing cash flows 36,011 (644977 31 172385 (12800 6,17 (31,806) (2473 (A 467)
Bchange adjusments - - 4 - - (10,438) (14919 - (5,38
Termination of lezse fifis - - (300) - - - - (500)
Iterest capitled ERfils - 814 - 37U - - - 669,791
Finance costs BEHA - 90751 9 19,666 30471 41,268 - 178,165
At 31 December 2001 i
t23+-8 4031 116,122 - 1174087 9,626 314973 15357 80530 10,839,418
Financing cash flows 128840 (376,29 - (801.664) (429) (19754 (656,880 (1,729.985)
Bichange ad ustments - - - - 113 38050 - 61183
Termingtion of lease - - - - -
Iterest captalsed A 30164 - - - 3980
Finance costs 11,59 - 26130 34,681 45313 - 117778
At 31 December 2022 i
t2izt-8 8N 116,13 - 130718 9,626 404491 519026 1548350 9,691,204
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34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group's borrowings had been secured by the
pledged of the Group's assets and the carrying amounts
of the respective assets are as follows:

34. EERHA
AN S B E B AR R R R A (R AR
R HEEEMREGENT -

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—%F

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARMFrT AREFIT

Investment properties (note 17) wEME (W at17) 9,110,482 8,760,499
Inventories of properties (note 20) YMEFE (Kit20) 8,609,502 13,421,845
Trade receivables (note 21) FEWER R (BT a#21) 8,772 6,987
Restricted bank deposits (note 22) 2R BIRITE R (A aE22) 28,000 6,562
17,756,756 22,195,893

Net assets of subsidiaries (note) WEBARFEE (Kit) 2,298,724 2,772,550

Note: As at 31 December 2022, the entire equity interests

of Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd ("Fujian Sinco"),
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
were pledged to secure the bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the entire equity interests
of Xi'an Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Ltd (“Xian
Sandi”) and Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd (“Fujian
Sinco”), Xian Diyue Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd, Yongtai Gaojia Real Estate Development Co. Ltd,
Baoji Xingyaocheng and the 66.5% ordinary shares
of Longyan Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Ltd,
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
were pledged to secure the bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group.

iz RZE-——_F+=-—A=+—H"
BEANBEBRAR (B2
EE ARRZEE2EWNE
NADKMEERED TER - £
AR TAEBEIEBTREMER
HFELR ©

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 "
A= #EEREEFR QG
([AR=d]) REELREE
ERAA (BELEE]) AZX
HBEMWERZEBER AR - K
FREFHERERRAA
ERERNEBRERES
—HEMERZEAER QR (K
RElzEEZEMNBRR) 2
66.5%E BIREHFIEAAE
EERZBITREMERZE
R o
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35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At the end of respective period, the Group has capital

35. EXRK HAEE
REHIE  AEEY BAEENT

commitments as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR T T
Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ AELA T&IE 2 B 418
not provided in consolidated financial WARRERE P wE
statements in respect of: BEZERNAL -
— Construction commitments for —IRE YRR A
investment properties 987,136 1,098,420
Other commitments contracted for but BEUTEE 2257418
not provided in consolidated financial WARRERE P BEIRE
statements in respect of: VA 7 o AE
— Construction commitments for —FEYEEERIE
properties for sales 3,565,276 4,914,739
— Consideration commitments for —THFERAEKE
land use rights HE 83,000 83,000
4,635,412 6,096,159
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36. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

All of the properties held by the Group for rental
purposes have committed lessees for the next one
to twenty-five years (2021: one to twenty-five years)
respectively. None of the Group's property held for
rental purposes has been disposed of during the period
of 2022 (2021: RMB4,300,000).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are

36. REHELH
AEEBEAEEA
AEBMEFEHEDER KRR —
Eo+RE(E-—F: —F -+
F)RNH B EATE AR - fEEARE
BLaE2ENREE (22 —%F:
AR #4,300,000T) W ER -
T FHREmLEE -

MEZRBABEKEENROT

as follows:
2022 2021
—EC- 8 —E-—%F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T AR For
With one year — 202,058 191,648
In the second year F_4F 149,537 160,582
In the third year F=F 140,287 139,611
In the fourth year EHE 123,844 133,110
In the fifth year FERF 122,838 121,507
After five years HF1% 1,445,580 1,528,111
2,184,144 2,274,569
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 37. B HER
At the end of respective reporting period, the Group REREHR REBECDIRERE
had provided financial guarantee as follows: BEERMT :
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Guarantees given in favour of banks for: gtIA T &EEFITIEHE
BR:

Mortgage facilities granted to customers % FAREBEYE T F R
of the Group’s properties (note a) BRLE (K ita)

Guarantees given to banks in connection % T EE N T 2 & E
with loan facilities granted to related EIREIERTIRT

companies (note b) (H17Eb)
Guarantees given to banks in connection HEFE=H 2 EXFHE
with loan facilities granted to third RREIERTIRT (A itc)

parties (note ¢)

4,692,238 6,237,297

872,800 896,600

233,612 270,000

5,798,650 7,403,897

Notes: Hiat -

(@ The Group had provided guarantees in respect (a)
of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
customers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if a customer defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to retain the customer’s sales deposit and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank. The guarantee period commences
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and end after the customer obtained the individual
property ownership certificate. The fair value of the
financial guarantee contracts is insignificant at the initial
recognition. In the opinion of the directors, no provision
for the guarantee contracts is recognised as the loss
given default is low due to the value of pledged assets.
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(©)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
initial fair value of the financial guarantees given to
banks in connection with loan facilities granted to the
related companies which are controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi
or Ms. Shum Xi Xia, the sister-in-law of Mr. Guo Jiadi,
was insignificant as the fair value of assets pledged
is higher than the financial guarantees at the date of
inception and the end of each reporting period. Also, no
provision for the guarantees contracts at the end of the
reporting period is recognised as the loss given default is
low.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
initial fair value of the financial guarantees given to
banks in connection with loan facilities granted to
third parties was insignificant as the fair value of assets
pledged is higher than the financial guarantees at the
date of inception and the end of each reporting period.
Also, no provision for the guarantees contracts at the
end of the reporting period is recognised as the loss
given default is low.

REVBHRRME

CEC CHFEF A=+ —HIFE

37. M ERE
BaE : (4)

(b)

(@]

ARREZRR  BRETHERR
(A BIaLERF L ERSB
ZHRIRLAE LS B KRR
BEmERITRENMHERZD
ARFELTER AACDERE
EZRFESRAG A SRS R
EHIRZWBEER - W5 AR
HERMIBERBUE RIS HRD
SHERERS OOEE -

KRARAEERR METE=FE
REEMRARITRHA 2 M BER
2R RAFEITEER  BAE
EWHEEZRAFESXHMMGAS
RERERRZFBHER - BLI
HRBAERHNBRRE RS
HIRTSHEREREONEE -

RE=ZAZRARALT

2022F 249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

(a)

38. BEL R Z RAEER

The Group had the following balances with related

parties at the end of each reporting period:

(@) MNBEBWEHR AEEBHEAMN
RGBT R

Maximum amount
during the year ended

BEAEFEZRANE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C-F —T-—49 B —FT-—%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANREFT AR¥FT ARETFT
Amount due from JE UL B8 A R 5B
related companies (Bt EE) % (i)
(notes (i) and (i) 66,322 311,644 590,509 1,468,260
Amount due from R IEPNGE R
non-controlling % % 3R kIR
shareholders of (K &) % (iii))
subsidiaries N/A N/A
(notes (i) and (iii)) 257,550 559,586 iE A N A
323,872 871,230 590,509 1,468,260
Amounts due to JENREE N T R IE
related companies (BT a#30) % (i) N/A N/A
(notes (i) and (i) 430,718 1,174,087 rEA i
Amounts due to AL EPNSE
non-controlling B IR R 5K IR
shareholders of (B E0) % (iii))
subsidiaries N/A N/A
(notes (i) and (iii) - - TEH 38 B
Amount due to ultimate  JEfT S ARIER R R
controlling shareholder RIEB (B Z0) N/A N/A
(note (1)) 99,626 99,626 ~EA A A
Debt component of Al ES 2 E% N/A N/A
convertible bond % 404,491 344,973 i@ A N3 A
Derivative component of A EH 2 1% N/A N/A
convertible bond TAZS 7,856 102,071 TEHR i@
Promissory note AR RER N/A N/A
519,026 455,357 ~EA i A
N/A N/A
1,265,622 2,176,114 TEH 38 A
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For year ended 31 December 2022 &% —

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2022, except for the amount
due to a related company of RMB192,000,000
and RMB31,750,000 (2021: RMB210,000,000
and RMB223,750,000) which is non-trade related,
unsecured, charged at 9% and 12% (2021: 9%
and 12%) per annum respectively and repayable
after one year, all amounts are non-trade related,
interest free and repayable on demand. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 34.

Mr. Guo lJiadi is the controlling shareholder of
the Group and also is the director and controlling
these companies.

These entities have significant influence over
several non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group.

The Group entered into the following transactions

3. BEARZ KRR #)

(a)

(b)

(%)

Hrat -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RZEZZF+=ZA= +f
A BRENS—HE@EEA
IEAEﬁ%wzooooowE&)\
R #31,750,0000 (=& = —
£ AR#210,000,0007T &
AR #223,750,0007T) A& JF
ZH5EHE - mER HREZ
FRERI%12% (2T = —
F:19%K12%) :FERAR
—FERERIN - PTERIES
BIEFESHIEE 2EREAER
BREE - BAENGEFBR
R FE34 -

BB ERSAREE 2 EK
R MAZERRZES
WEHIZE AR e

ZEERUAEEETIHER
EMBRARTEERK -

RERN AEERERETR]

with its related parties during the year: SNATRS
Name of related parties Nature of transaction 2022 2021
BELS A8 XEME —EZF —T_—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ABRET T ABRETFr
Fujian Sandi Real Estate Development Rental income received
Co. Limited (note) - 80
BRE-EFMERZEBRLAR (M) 2WHESEA
Interest expense 58,294 53,310
MEXH
Primary Partner (note) Interest expense 80,054 71,739
Primary Partner (47:%) MEXH
Note: Mr. Guo Jiadi is the controlling shareholder of Mt S ERAER 2=

the Group and also is the director and controlling

these companies.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(c) The remuneration of directors and other members

3. BEARZ KRR #)

(@

REAN EFREMEEER

of key management during the year was as EBREZEEMT :
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB¥Fr ANBEETF T
Short-term employee benefits EEEERT 5,004 7,694
Post-employment benefits BEEEER 281 217
Equity-settled share-based payments #EzE4EE ARG AEE
Z S - -
5,285 7,911

(d) Mr. Guo Jiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse of
Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to banks
for the bank borrowings. Details of guarantees are
set out in note 25.

(e) As disclosed in note 37, the Group provided
guarantees to the related companies amounted
to RMB872,800,000 (2021: RMB896,600,000) in
connection with loan facilities at 31 December
2022.
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

39. AR FIFEMB AR ZHE

MEQR-—RER

RMERARARFERLEERFA
ZHBRRZFEHINMT

out below.
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company by the Company Principal activities
i/ fREEf/ KARRERERE KLARRARE o
KELAER i/ Eghy iR ZHH b11/] IERR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
L 3 B B
022 20 022 0 0 001 002 00
CECCE CE--£ CBICE CE--F CBCCE O CE--F OCECCE OCEC-E
Fujian Sinco* The PRC RMB290,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property investment
BELH e AR %290,000,0007 VESY
Fujian Jingdu Land Co, Ltd* The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
‘ property investment
EERBERARAT Gk AR100,000,0007 NEERRNZRR
Xian Sand* The PRC RB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
& E AR #100,0000007% VELE
Strike Again Group Ltd BV Us§1 100% 100% 60% 60% 100% 100% - - Securities trading
Strke Again Group Ltd FERAHE k3 515
Grand Infemational Development Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 - - 100% 100% - - - - Investment holding
ERERAERRAA ER 100E7 REBR
Guoshi Investment Group Company Limited* The PRC RMB200,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
PIRREEEFRAA e AR%200,000,0007 DEE
Fuzhou Gaojia* The PRC RMB1,500,900,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
property investment
I T ABE1 00900007 RARRARER
Shanghal Gaoja* The PRC RMB55,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
LERE Gk NRE55,000,0007 nx4R
Shanghai Sandi Real Co. The PRC RMB196,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
Estate Development Ltd* property investment
LEZERHEREERAA i AR 196,000,007 MERRRNERE
Baoji Sandi* The PRC RMB150,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
‘ property investment
BEicu E AR 150,000,000 NEERRIERE

RE=ZAZRARALT
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 30. AABTEWE AT 2B
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
General information of subsidiaries (continued) MEBAR—BRER (&)
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company by the Company Principal activities
AL/ #r23n/ rhAfEEERRE KLAAFRAZE
WEAFEE ih/aeny FAiELS 2ith 218 TERR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
i [ -t B

02 2021 02 bl 022 0 022 200
ZECCF CSC-F Z3CCE C5-F CBIE C5C-F ZEICE CECF

Jilin First Real Estat eDeveIopmemCo. The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property development
Um\ ed ("Jilin First"
EREERAER “EEWIH e AR 100,000,007 NziE
EGEE)
Yongtai Sandi Real Estate Development  The PRC RB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
Co. Ltd*
KEZERNERLERAA | ARE100,000,0007 VELE
Nanping Sandi Real Estate Development ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property development
Co. Ltd ("Nanping Sandi}*
HICERMEREERIENT G ARHE50,000,0007 VEGE
([m¥=#))
Wuyishan Gaojia Real Estate Development  The PRC RB20,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
Co. Lig*
HRLBERNERERRAT e NE20000,0007 Nz4E
Yongtal Gaojia Real Estate Development ~ The PRC RMB82,500,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
Co. Lig¥
IEBERHEREERAT e AR %82,5000007 Nz%E
Fuzhou Sandi Banbei Property Co. Ltd* ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
EA=ERNERERAT G ARE100,000,0007 VEGE
Fuzhou Sandi Bannan Property Co. Ltd*  The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
BN=ERmERARLA mE AR 100,000,000 ES
Baoji Ruijacheng* The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
LN G AR #50,000,0007 VEGE
Nanping Sandi Yunqu Real Estate The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property development
Development Co, Ltd
BT CREARUERERRAT G AE#50,000,0007 VEGE
* These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises * ZENTARPBEEK S INEE
established in the PRC. The English names of these ) Ez%gﬁgy%m@{ﬁ%
companies are for reference only and have not been =B ke
registered.
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z-F - —#+-H=+—HIFFEF

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
General information of subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, results in
particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in the PRC. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised
as follows:

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

Principal place of

39. RQARAIFENBARZHE

(%)

O 2 ) — AR (4
FEEHWARADFEERATESZE
REBXENEEZARANBAR
Al-EERA RUHEMHERA
CHBEEHEIRBRTE -

REEEE EDDEANERE
s L REAZ KA B A A
S A AAH S R RE R
IBARZEBEHMALT ¢

J_LE

%

Q iiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ‘}% A AT AME

ﬁE'L

Principal activities business Number of subsidiaries
FTEXEK FTEXEKHE MEXREE
2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
Property development The PRC 15 17
EE 9 a3
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

39. KRR AIFENBARZFHE

(&)

BREERFEREZZHFZENW

BARzFHE

TRANANEEEREAFIERE
BmZIFEEMBRRIFE:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting
Name of and principal rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
A B L ] FEREZFNECHER DEEFEREZCEN 2t FER
MEAREH EBTERY RERREE LA (B8) ER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—B-C-E —E--— “E--& ZE--F CZB--f Z—%T--
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBFL ANEETT ABEFi ARETT
Nanping Xiangsong The PRC 0% 40% - 51,152 - 49,071
RN e
Nanping Sandi The PRC 49% 49% (14,139) (2,068) 95,416 109,555
Bz i
Jilin First The PRC 49% 49% 434 4,442 72,147 71,713
ELEE i
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (14,122) (17.815) 25,148 39,270
BIEARER 2 ERIFEANBLR A
(27,827) 35,711 192,711 269,609

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’'s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z_-F - —F+_-H=+—HIF&F

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. KAREEMB AR ZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Nanping Xiangsong BYEE
2021
—E - —4F
RMB’'000
AR For
Current assets mENE E 932,063
Non-current assets EREEE 2,169
Current liabilities mEaE (809,954)
Non-current liabilities JEmBEE (1,600)
Net assets (liabilities) FEE (AR 122,678
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRRHA NELER 73,607
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR 2 49,071
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For year ended 31 December 2022 &

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

BEoF-=

Fr_A=1—HIFE

39. KRR AIFENBARZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Nanping Xiangsong (continued) BMYEEMEE)
2021
—E-—%F
RMB’000
ARETF T
Revenue W 761,528
Cost of properties sales ) 3 8H & B AR (573,085)
Other income RN 159
Other gains and losses H bl i K E5 18 3)
Expenses 53 (60,719)
Profit (loss) for the year RKEFEEZHH (EE) 127,880
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company ARQ G #E A A B & T (E1E) 76,728
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests FE42 {% 4 25 FE b i ) (E518) 51,152
Profit (loss) for the year REEZmH (BE) 127,880
2021
- —F
RMB’000
ARETF T
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BRI’ -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities &2 /F IR ERAGRHE) F5E 157,697
Net cash outflow from investing activities REZSZHE SR FRE 3)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEETH 2R RN FEE (166,842)
Net cash outflow WL S (9,148)
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z_-F - —F+_-H=+—HIF&F

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. KRB FEFEMRB AR ZE1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Nanping Sandi Bm¥r=d
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—1F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Current assets mENEE 1,874,470 1,823,823
Non-current assets IEFEEE 10,102 10,224
Current liabilities mEBRE (1,655,976)  (1,375,133)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (33,870) (235,333)
Net assets BEFE 194,726 223,581
Equity attributable to owners of KATIEE ATEGER

the Company 99,310 114,026
Non-controlling interests T IR = 95,416 109,555
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 30 AATTEWE A T 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Nanping Sandi (continued) MY=#0&)
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETF T
Revenue I % 9,016 44,569
Cost of properties sales ) 3 8 6 B AR (7.476) (32,223)
Other income H bW A 104 340
Expenses 53 (30,499) (16,906)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BE) & (28,855) (4,220)
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of KAREE AFE(
the Company (E1B) & (14,716) (2,152)
(Loss) profit attributable to FEPE AR i R e (B 1)
non-controlling interests gl (14,139) (2,068)
(Loss) profit for the year RNEE (EHE) &N (28,855) (4,220)
2022 2021
—E-CE B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARE T
Dividends paid to non-controlling EATIEERER 2R E
interests - -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from EsSEE) RS mA GRd)
operating activities R 143,538 102,799
Net cash outflow from investing activities ¥ & /& &) 7 IR & /i h 558 - (18)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing ®E)E&H 2 R4 ORL)
activities MAFEE (172,150) (241,541)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be (ORd) RAERE (28,612) (138,760)
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REVBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2022 #Z_-F - —F+_-H=+—HIF&F

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. KRB FEFEMRB AR ZE1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Jilin First EMNEA
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—1F
RMB'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Current assets mENEE 234,060 261,781
Non-current assets FERBEE 50 50
Current liabilities mEAaE (86,871) (115,187)
Non-current liabilities ETEEE - (290)
Net assets BEFE 147,239 146,354
Equity attributable to owners of KATIEE ATEGER

the Company 75,092 74,641
Non-controlling interests T IR = 72,147 71,713
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For year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE-F - —F+-H=+—HIFFEF

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

39. KRR ZHMBRRARBEER

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (4#)
Jilin First (continued) EMEAR (&)
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—14F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AR T T
Revenue I 5 6,980 75,479
Cost of properties sales LIES K= WiN (3,382) (51,162)
Other income Hiplg A 18 82
Other gains and losses Hah ki k&8 - 1,857
Expenses 53 (2,732) (17,193)
Profit for the year REE % F 884 9,063
Profit attributable to owners of iN/NETE N g
the Company 450 4,621
Profit attributable to non-controlling FE 478 I AR %5 P 4 58
interests 434 4,442
Profit for the year KEE G F 884 9,063
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#¥FT ARE T
Dividends paid to non-controlling B ERER 2R E
interests - -
Net cash outflow from operating KEEH 7B R FEE
activities (8,613) (21,810)
Net cash outflow IR & R (8,613) (21,810)
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For year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE =T -4+ =-A=+—HIFEF

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

40. &A1)z BB AR R £ 4 R

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR FiT AR F T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries WBRARZIELMRE 2,945,653 2,954,691
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 69 82
Right-of-use assets CREAE - -
2,945,722 2,945,773
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b e U F0E R FE A R 237 219
Amount due from a related company FER —EBEEAT 2 %E 1,740 1,609
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 52 1,329
2,029 3,157
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEaRE - -
Other payables and accruals HEMENZENESTER 181,031 150,691
181,031 150,691
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (179,002) (147,534)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABERE 2,766,720 2,798,239
Capital and reserves BEARFHE
Share capital (note 26) B& AR (Hfat26) 42,890 42,890
Reserves & 1,792,457 1,852,948
Total equity B 1,835,347 1,895,838
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Debt component of convertible bond M ELS 2B D 404,491 344,973
Derivative component of convertible AR ESZ
bond TTHE TR 7,856 102,071
Promissory note O E g 519,026 455,357
931,373 902,401
2,766,720 2,798,239
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mEMBBRNE

For year ended 31 December 2022 B Z=—F-—4F+=-A=+—HIFEF

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. AR F 2B RRARBER

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AAFmE2ES
Share-based
Share compensation  Translation Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HRHAEE
REE  <REES BEfe Rt ZitEE @it

AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTT  AGETT  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

(note i) (note i)
(W) (W)
At 1 January 2021 W-E--F-f-H 833,355 12,981 (35,382) 1,224,806 (218,010) 1,817,750
Profit and other comprehensive  REEEFIR
income for the year EzEkE - - - - 34973 34913
Exercise of share options TERRE 343 (118) - - - 225
Lapse of share options EREXN - (827) - - 821 -
At 31 December 2021 A
=t+-H 833,698 12,036 (35,382) 1,224,806 (182,210) 1,852,948
Profit and other comprehensive  REEEFIR
income for the year EzEkE - - - - (57,691) (57,691)
Lapse of share options BREXT - (2,800) - - - (2,800)
At 31 December 2022 WZB-F
+-A=1-H 833,698 9,236 (35,382) 1,224,806 (239,901) 1,792,457

Note:

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, represents the difference arising from the share
premium reduction which was being effective and approved by
the Bermuda Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016. Under
the share premium reduction, entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company as at 29
February 2016 in the sum of RMB3,049,440,000 be reduced,
with part of the credit arising therefrom being applied to
offset the accumulated losses of the Company in the sum of
RMB1,824,634,000 in full and the remaining balance of the
credit in the sum of RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the
other reserve of the Company.

Details of the share premium reduction are set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 15 April 2016.

The share premium reduction was approved at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 10 May 2016.
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HiEHE (BARARZEBAEGKRRE)BR
MEERIEENZE R-ZE—KF
A+ RAKBEREQAREMEERL
A - RIBHR ARG EE - BIRAA
AR EEENR_ZT—XR"F_A=+h1
Hz2Ep#ERE AR®3,049,440,000
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BEEBEARQRRZEFEBEBEARE
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